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unotrstanc that the ckçrCufl o;n: principal marters ;n our ratt was known to :re 

Goyer=ent ot Au Cr.aol ono( tc the az-s:itances of I.inancial sucoorZ cNen to the ItAt. anO 

The t, iaI report nas nct been OisCus:e.0 w,th either Sancs:orm or the controttoe) st-.2rern,k:'.vs 

ate unaware that our C:24 :epon has t)••.-en r:etivere, to you. 
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‘. It should be emphasised that much of ttle informaaon contained In nis report cs • • • • 
based on records y,41.icn nave pre,eiousty been concealed from us. as aud.itcrs. ang 

• - . bniy came to Sght as a resurt of our insztence on che Nes of Mr tslaqvibe 

\ e ed • $UCI1 t e-C-C(t -S having been In hr 3 cmrsonai pcs.sessian• 

• 

Cear Sir. 

REPORT ON SANDSTORM SA UHOEE ECT1OH 41 -OF THE BANKING ACT 1987 

,-',_, .r.,t-4-:-_-•.. 
in connecon win our audit cf._ toml S.A ('the C.omparTy) and its related 
enotles. inctuding SIndstorm 4-1-olce.i. C [dings) and Sandstorm Overseas 
(Overseas). together ale Sanecsicrin- Gr p (Sandstorm', 'the Groun or e tank), 
for che year ended 31 0e-cemoe certain irregutantfes were- drawn to ce....11 
attention aria to nal of ale Bank of England (the Bank) by the Chief Ex.ec-T.rvi 
°Muir, Mr Z2Jar IqOai in January 1991. 

In accordance with your letter of ihsnicoon of 4 Marc. 1991 we nave prepared a 
repon on these regularities and related matters ,,vnich nave come to our anenton 
Ounng the course of our WOCK. This comprzed worx in connecton win the audit of 
the financial statements inclucing•the review of reperrs prepared by an invesogaDon-
teazn, yytlich ed partners and surf of Price Watemouse, review of 
corresp ence and other hies previouVy helt, try the former Chief Exeartryv CC5ctr 
and ilterviews win senior management. 

Many ot CPA findings summansed in nis report anse from eJamination of 

otocurnerntatkon and elle:views YyTtil former management by me-mberz of ale 
Irryestigaton learn. WhIst trie findings are inevitably based on incomplete 
eiformadon, and certain details have not been corroborated. we bee-re nal tne 
enclosed repoct pmekles a fair reflection of at t‘as occurred. al=ugn detaled 
ella/y1 e.3 Of s-pedfic transactions green in Tits report snould be treated with care. 
Woni; by tt\e Investlgaton learn is continuing and it Cs expected that marry of ne 
ma tI e rs re pon ed MI be rettned further as cncs work p (cc fess es . 

e part oular rna C, e r drawn to the Bank's attention Cy Mr Id tal cOno-e.. me-,d pc erfrA 
C e pcs..44 of ap pe csinat e" S600 mdhcn nct re-c^rCed r rr . ^ N C Y"L" 

" 
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X:X dune 1991 
PA Earnes Esq 
Page 2 

reared ennties. The Government of Abu Dhabi has issued to Hoidings a comfort 
letier of $6.10 million in Tie event at these CiabiEties become repayaCle, as part c 
a package of financz1 support arrangements cx)cc..tuCed in May 1991. 

The accounbng records anti firiancal position of the Group have been faLsrfied in
reLanon to me above transacocns for a sucisLanciai number of years. in fact mera 
transacrlons represent only a part of a wnotesata decepoon to Wirtt andV 

" ,faisdy the Mena& po Sandstorm over of Sandsto over vie Last decade 
_ 

a senes 
compticated marupuiaoons..% These ino:u0e0 the use of a related tank (FOCI
Overseas). wmcn now appears 
nominee ano hold harmless atr _ 
MidOle Esstem inoMcuais: the f ar—titplartt 
by Ine Ruler of Au Dhabi aricChts. farr;ty; 
companies aria oceraoon of ba 

en controtled by Sandstorm managemeJ 
with a substannal number of prominent 

a of tunas paced under managemen 
ale lormacon of a sigrOcant number o 

Ls outside the Sans:Worm Group used to 
cisguLsa irte nature of iransacoons ano route funds: se creasicn of a further 70 o 
30 companies to assist u tne rinanc.Ing of Tie Gulf Group: agreements and 
unrecorded borrowings rnrougn mad parry banks (NC3) and Irrvestrnent insztutions 
(AMA): and a significant faisificacon of the accounting rec..ords (a...vying faise 
loans, fransac3ons and conftrmations).oh sucn a soak Mt the true financal nistor 
of Sandstonn is unlacety to be able to be recreate-1J. 

In order to place cria urvecorded•Oecosits in conte)1 we have briefly summarueci 
trie rirstory of Sandstorm and the manner in wsuch decepoon on sucn a so-ale was 
achieved with reference to some of ne maiot customers and shareholder 
arrangements and relaoonsnips. Our report is dmded into the followirx) secooru: 

1 1-Q3tOry and Current StarLz of ne Prcpierns 
2 Shares end C.aptai Notes 
3 Swing arrangements 
4 • Tre,21.ury 

.5 Gulf Group 
t5 WXYZ 
7 Unrecorded clePosits - 
8 Urvecorded Oeppsrs • Islamic canxing 

Tumbleweed and oners 

In addition. we have prepared a separate report for. rne Board in re-spect of cur 
Concerns in relaoon to Fork ana its relaLonship win Sancstorrn wnicn we enclose. 

Please let us know J we can be Cl any funPer a&ssrance. 

Yours farthfully, 
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CH 1: HISTORY AND C'JRRUTT STATJS OF THE ?R0E3LE1S 

arid 

. - 
sarlc,stm Grokip.was tounCe-ci r 172 •Ailt1 czooal trom Arlo inves:ors anc 

Faxistani manact-ment The PrryIng Icxce tenina G".e Oanx's acruevement was Agna Has! 
co 1-1430 a grandiose vtsion of Ina bank. ana Tie giobai role it should pay. He 

.c-uivafec3 people of influence, panClitarly in ne Middle E24 t , and veatec a culture of 
uquesDonuç oyairy amcngtiucatle-agues and start. 

v2..C-entraJ to his VsicA was Me need for ne bank to grow rapidly and become a torce in 
ii:iterna6onal banking. Whist cne re_sutts of tne tank were reasonably satis-fac:ory in cne 

parecutany with i=eases in al wearth h e Midale E2SL tne early 1980's were a 
1:1 • 
-pen:xi of sa,,,ere economic problems. The fall h od ()noes, snipping industry recessJon. L*-

..::;,Suci M Marlaxn c-szs h Kimart all had a severe erfect on Sandstomi's business. and wot, 
,•f:easo have had a signcant npact on reported profitability 11.3C Abed. arx:i his aeputy Swa 

Nacre% not manipulated transaczons. 
• 
:t.grven the bank's vulneratflity as a re-suit of trie absence of a lender of Last resort and it 
7'relationship win rest of tne banking ccmrnunity, Abed ana Napra believed tnat profitability 

Nta.s essenoaJ ana it could not SlIOw a weak balance sneet or poor operaong results: 
!-.-fylinermore. sucri prontabiTity was cnocaJ tenance of vatue in Sandstorm's snare 
price )(Afflict) was its assemal to: 

tac - 

die iALart tarty Sl2ge h Tie bank s hstory it appears Mat problems developed in ine tan 
L. pço10 parrocusarty h respect of tne Gulf Group wnicn lending had been signcant n • 
***, td its capital base sirr...e 197C as illustrated h Appe r c L Men is 1978 it became 
4* 
4.. Wient that Ine Gulf Grovp was h financial difficulty. Nacre( lock direct responsibility for 

V

• CrLetila accounts. and it appears that sJgnificant account maruputaton began at Mat time. 
9.vx.tne Last decade it appears that Gulf have Largery be-en unable to service Melt lending 
IsOcli triat Nacra has msappropnated funds under ne management of Sandstorm officers 
trtrixign Fork Investments. These tunes haNe been cnannelled, biter alia. into ne Gulf Groui 
ircsor_der to allow it.to repay (r.ird parry bank bcrrcwrigs. and to pcnceaJ Me extent Cl 

-,sSancstorrn's etpcsure. 

-...t.1!...;..k1.7.:.1....) 

. 
t • 

maintaining no confidence of tfV.g•ddka E t wives tors some of wnom had be-en _ 
promded witn guaranteed rates o man' • 

tne sale of snares at S40 per snare grang rze to significant premiums. 
: 

and Naczri had to find a way of avoiding provss:ons on poor lending. particUarty in 
.Aspect of loans to tTle Gulf Grouse). and aiso intlaong tile reported resutts to create tne 
,Lirna. ge of success. They apparenoy believed that the csctosure of e ILL! exent of ne 

  es at triL3 time woutd Rave tecparoisea Tie very v3stence of me tank. AccoeCingry. in 
st7_141:earty 19-80's, ana posstry before. they commence-a wnat became a Neely COmpliCatM 

34Ve3 Of tnanipulat:lons of ban and deposit accounrs, treasury acemties arid purcnases of 
"tivin shares. fiaczyi cxntends nal these were temporary measures partictilArty to build 
-.Me premium rsthin Sandstorm's shares sucn Mat nrougn nornine . it quid sea Me shar 

and Mrs generate sufficient profits to = ,•er cencts: 

bans 
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. . _ . 
ses_e tunas are taxen nto ac_co_unt reai ..7iabili.ty of me Gulf Grbu-b-is—s-4t.-iin 

ot rne amount of 3a31 mulion recorcec n r.re cocgs or Sancs;orm at Z.,e-carricey 
but m..1 txwkery to trnorarve re-az:very prospec. 2.

from cie Gulf Grout). Tie Cznx nas a thsZory of poor !encing wnee it now acceus 
acant amount of acoclint manioutapon nas gone on. This nas included me ualisauon 

tuncs rovtea tryough Fonc, kncivaing tunas manage by Fon( investments: me use of 
icars cram) cowl ale names of mac parties: and re use of unrecorced 

.-iiepcsits. In an anempt to avoia me need to make provisions. This rotiong of tunas nas 
been cameo out on a very Knrficant scale. invomng a numPer of rotated ccmcantes. 
jijirxsing me Fork Holdings Gov°, 8CP, N80 and KIFCO anc mircl party banks sucn Mat it 

now ditticutt for anyone to ascertain me true nature of external excasure_s recorcea me 
of certain maior as_storners. 

pcalts/ocncealed losses 
--t -v. • - 

appears at over me penoc1 from 1977 to 1985 trie Treasury operations of Sanas:0cm 
de signtficant losses. These hosses wefe concealed and at me same time significant 

01113 .were manufactured. The prec:se amount of sucn losse_sitIcttious prollts. cannot sn , 
AtatEsAe:d: but may yvt tl have been of me order of S600 - 5700 milfk)n before lunoing 
ts:- approacning Si billion if tunaing cost3 are added. 

SC losses ,were ongtnaity funded tncoug ox means at Me behest of Z Akbar ' 
cCintrolled Sandstorm's Treasury pera. I 1986. Men it was discovered rat 

g;r-Acant Scsse-s had be-en incurreo o op nV1iç. Akbar resigned he tert 
itcocd of his ac es with S Nacim wrurtk... .5p&ider rs own control the amounts wi-tidi 
tud been financed by unormcccx means'. Na qvi set up a small central team under mr A 

cvi to I e ,r1 ENV tne record lett by Ak/Dat. verity ale re-presentaocns mace by A.kbar anci 
zaintain contact with Me customers. We uncerstand triat wnilst Naqvi attempted to 
establisn some control by reinsuong customer deposits largety by using Itincs from Fork. he 
Could not bring nimseif to make tuU cisc:csure, wnici wouici aimcst certainty have brought 

e bank dcwri. 

• -- Instead as a result of ccnanueo pressure for profits and loan servicing he continueo to use. 
. •. 

ecorded deposits, certain externa/ tunas' (with Fork Holdings and companies controlled. 
A' lei*,  • i not legaUy Owned. Cy it) and tunas oravynCown on bogus loan accounts in Me name of 

eforninent MidOle East Irrvestors. These hinds were appiled to adjust otner balances_5 
der to void making provtsion for bad loans and to conceal ale pest Tre,AS"iiritk':,:sses. in an" 

kt e norm o t and complex weo of krtious transactions In w•hat is probanty one of the rrica 
•CcT41ex deceptions in bank:ing histoiy. 

. .These losses now tom a rnaior part of Me arrant det1cit in Me bank wtuctt nes bee4 
\ reccne-d ale nancial support arrangements pr ided by Me Goverrirnent-of Abu Criabl, 

r:1.12 s \ v, urnrnary Me losses from Treasury arid non-performing loans Yee( 8 concealed an-4 
ajgnincant pronts 'manufactureo' by various mecnanarrs 

, - 
(1) • failure to record deposits and oZer datilltias 

_ (2) Me c:eation Cl ticnous Ican 
-. 



INOW:2,02dr:r.e4.

•••••••ic. • j uras tram Fsrx. wnicn ',vas cono'clieo v S anCS :CCM rTlatlag, 
• . - . 
I use of parr/ funds placed uncer management with Fon( enotet. 
d - 

twang funds between accounts using Dom Fork ano other affiliates. inducing SC?, 
_ KFCOan() SOC:, and also tnirci party t arks. n ()ricer to cisguise the nature of 

arsacoort.s. inc,luoing tne oogus 'rerresning' of ceiinouent accounts. A sucstancal 
numoer of companies were set uo and c.oncroiteo by me management of SanCstorm 

and Fork and used to route tunas. 

• agreements itt and unrecorced borrowings nrougn triird party banks (NCS), ana 
in7vescment ins-tIturions (AMA). 

puircnase of own snares tnrough nominees: and use of buy • back arrancemencs: 

uze of the underlying vaJue of snareho ngs WXYZ to increase loans in the narnes 
of nominees. 

hda harrnie_ss agreements wIln. and non-recourse loans to. a number of ma{or 
=tamers. incluoing many prominent peoote tram the Midole East. 

• (10) co:!usion of malor customers in 

' 
; 

.1.1134:•in recent rears Mesa actmties nave carttnueFOiia significant scale in an aaempt to? 
e total amount cannot be esnaDtistlea 

mote_x web of Oeceocion and becaLse ‘.4) 
management v in Fort 

- , 
i a. conceal tc:a/ $asses of several billions eitrtl}Pf —,  _ •• 

• tF.-betri because of Me problems of untan the: 
- r 4

hZ4 1 5 had no access to tne losses of tunas Li 'ler 

galse contirmacons to ale exiem.ai aucitors.• 

1.14 4.jhe history of Me bank's results since its lcunoaoon is snown at Appencb: II (outs:ancingl. 
t There is insutficient informaoon availaote witn wrIscn to recreate the banic's accounts wit uie n 

f t",,- Ir-nartiedge at is now available but on tne basis of me losses wnicn have been concealed. 
•rx it accear mat Me bank has generated signcant :asses over Me last decade and rna9 

never nave Peen pro6tatale in its enare Ns:cry.,

anent  

t:1-:R' • 
kicks( report to ne Drectors of al Marcn 1991 wncn was p(cmded to the Bank 

4 
b-raCkground for a metong wtri C-ollege of Banking Si_pertsvors. we Oisct..ssida port/oar-51

• 

NO( proOlem Cans of some $-4 billion wnicn was proposed would be dealt w L.sndfer 
FinanciaJ Support Arrangements to be conuaed votn trie Government of Abu Onal6i. 



; 3 1 

- ; •"-k 

SLIDCCti Art anc e m e rus 

FinanCai Su000rt Arrangements were signeo on 22 Yav 1991 SUC71 at :he oroc:,em 

were Cran..Verre-o• at cock value to new corncanes !or rea)sauon, either 

rne Government of Abu CrIa0( or. if not. lodger)/ guaranteec t-,-y it. in return for tne :can 
trarsterred SanCstorm re-cerved promissory notes cenomoatec in US ocitars ana UA 

clmarns. Kure-wen( i tace vatue to S3.061 mIllion. :ssuea by the '.3ovemrnent. The leSICUa 
to Sanastorm vi respec: of nese bans transferred is tworolc: 

• 

, 
:-t 

Problem faai'4 , 7,r '• • • • 
• ; .4 i...57; 
.1.17 -trivesrigaoon work to date has con6rmea.-tt_tat.:t5ese 

Ian assets in ouesoon. ano vi parocu'-• J at 
concern over recent years. These are ciscu 

• • 

of ne repon but are surrynanseaDelow 

tne legal agre-efnents for tne transfer of loan assets to companies A. Al. anC 
provide nal tne ban assets can De reassigned to the approortate Sanostorm entity L' 

the event of any breacri of tne warranty net u-le ban assmetS co no( invorve any 
iczwy yy ch is cnme-tai or illegai anc wnion. if reveatec. mignt be e_x.oecled to 
damage re intemaocnal reputacon 01 ne Abu Dhabi Gare-rnmenL The Abu Cnaci 
Gcv-emment has con6rmed nal t not its intenoon to reassign the ban assets in 
clue-soon on ne bass of tne circumstances kno-,n to it ai present. 

insofar as the ban assets transferred to Comoarry B of S1.016 r llon exc5.,.-eC 
amount of ne guarante-e of 5753 million of the Gavemment of Abu Chat!. Uie ° 
Sanostorm Group would tear arry aocitonaJ losses on reatisaoon. On tre basis of 
current informaoon the amount of 5266 million is c.c,ns4cered to be recoverable. 

are Treguiantes surrounoing many Cl ne 
rna4cr acvances wrircn have grven 

ed in more cetall in the appropnate sec:Jens 

• re • 
% Er.Pcsure at • Lomated 

v..,4- 29.12.19.90 losses 
H ,..%, " rn S ril 

- 11 Coni_oanv A 

Ii ..-:* ' • -. . ! VYXYZ - bans in names of apparent 1.453 
-.. - 

Lincuancrf.able 
ruxnineres. Ykel Ill (10 liaCtlity 
10( repayment. Loan accounts 
include certzn trartsacoons 
not ii airy way connectea to 
WXYZ or tne narne<1 tdrrowers. 
RecoveratAiry cepenas on vaiue 

; of SZI: of shares in WXYZ ,ernIcn, 
given the current ti-keiihooa of a 
discess sate and lega1 

• is tikery to be heavity aLs-ccun{ea. 

Otal •Comparry A (5.0 

4 . • - • 

Uncl.:2nnacte

- 
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Mantouz 
Fumy 

rci.-.csure at 
29.12.1990 

$ 

yrat 
:css 

• fic:Dous loans set up in connecoon 
win repurcnase of snares 213 21 

Sh Mohammed extensrve account 135 
rnanioulaoon resulted 
in rrusaopropnapon of 
decesrts. When these had 
to De made gocd. 6CL-00uS 
loans were created. 

Sh A.6k ibranirn 

Mock CI 

.•.i: - 
• • 

• in 19-85 bran= deposited 154 i54:
SICO million to te invested 
in Sandstorm shares on a 
guarantee-d return . 
snares were trans!e*.5.arci.t 
deposit was mLsacprocr i 
Oct 'cLsoosar and Y.epayrneht 

.,e. . 

the tank Cr eat ..' 
ft:nous loans. 

• Chrriel ty Font tn.rougn nominee 92 92: 
Snarenotaings. YybilSt At1OCk 
had certain operat:va accounts. 
cnese accounts are non-operaLN•e 
aria contain ficcus 
transac:ons and cnarges. 

5S-t 

1•1•Mmm•Mml.a 

75:947 

• rrcsi ot lending cs non recourse. 4-12 412 

Sgntficant nominee arrangements (hi4NY 
and bold harmless !erters. inducing uncertain) • 

arrangef.. -znrs of uncertain le-gailry 
in retaDon to purcnase of 
kldeperIcence 6anx Inc and National 
Banx of Geotgta. 
S;gnificant use of non recourse 
acoo\rrts for deo( senicing: 
routing of internal and e em.al 
funds: and snare Tar:sac:0ns. 



aSCSUle it 

24.12_;SSO 
S 

7-c atpears to nave ac:aa Ln a 
nominee cacacly resoec: 
of SOCC. AT S (a UK tan? ano 
FilL s wet1 as WXYZ._ 

f 

; 

.14t 

• a Don cOnsolidated affiliate. 
Exposure relates to parked 
loans to avvid provIsioning 
and fic-Jtous loans fcr 
debt sermcng. 

• targety accounts of no 
cornme(c.:al suostance set 
up for cep( semcng. 

"i'• Total Compary Al 

• 

cr)rrc?r7v 5 
- 

- "Pharaon 

- exvosure significantly 
j 

" understated Cue to use ..•‘ 
' of external tuncing. 

v . 

• 

1;,)-

o tai Company 8 1.016 750 

24 9 

125 

' 19/9 
(Ngnry 

uncertain) 

125 

201 201 

1,017 937 

1.611 1.531 

41=mpa•Mmmid0 

21 15 

‘• 783 
(200) Provisions 

56.3 513 

- miscellaneous tad fencing 54.8 
and accounts that nave (13.5) Provision.s.
been marvoulated. Some 
fecovvy cgO.Spects. 412 277

de-poslt tabatia 

alleged by ZJqbal there appear to be matenal deposit tlatilities not recorced in tile books 
,of the San•astorm enctes. At 31 Cecemoer 1990 nese totalled appronmatery

and tt Ls clear at Gnere nave oeen signd)cant out of bock' deposits of flucaiaong 
eraJ amounts for Cie Last ten years. 



(3) Urve=Ced rnzsdeflaneous deposits 

5c:9 
t 

't2o Govemcnent of Abu Chabi has iszued a comfort :ener to r e aroc indicating thaa 

-•;- -; • fiihburse Sandstorm to ne extent at nese liatkDtes are proven to be riabatjes'of 

121 ' These marters are oLsotzsed in Secao Z'and: of cur report. wne•re with Uie excecton of. 
mLsceilaneous gems. we conctude tn-a.ir ies MS appear to be genuine liatollites ofne 

q r : bank_ • 

4 

.ese urve-corced Cebosit EacJities lait .nto nue cz:e;ories: 

Unre-co(ced ceposirs verlich can be 
anked t ack :o treasury acmes 
in re e arry 198.0's 

(Tumbleweed and Ai HarTry) 

Unrecorded deposits arising from account 
maniputauon ui Islamic Business Unit 
(16tI) in UK Region dunng 1990 

S 

E.5 

a 
r 

t ' r.c. • 

• 

• 

.%.Fori< 
$ 

;We have reported to tne cirec:ors of Sandstorm our concerns about the retaoonsnio between 
5Sandstzrm and Forx and aoout Cie irivoryement of Forx crartsaczons wnicn Rave r.r.ancal 
:- ,_--• .1113)ticatiorts for Sandstorm. A copy of our report of 16_Junei_991_4 ecidosed as an 

. is report and incuces examples of suon transacxns ininted by Sandstorm 
management. The informazon in tnis report is derryea !tom a review -of coaesponcenca and 

;-;..other tlfes prireiousry herd by tne former •Chief Exec,:tfre Chloe( of Sandstorm ana trcm 
interviews with him and 1,.4r H M Karrrv. We have also had preliminary discussions with 

• members of the trreesogation (tam wrio have re-cenay ,Asited Grand Cayman as parr of ne-
Bandstcrm cryesdgacians. 

.f4S.111 
ViReispcnsibily for arid krowcedge o tha irregulante-s-

ttle inveatigatfon voork it is apparent nal the sem( management of Sandstorm have ' 
abused ttieir responvbatts to deposators. snarenoiders. investors. regulators an to ne w 

ftseff. The sr ategic Ceczions to manipulate acccunts. arid in parmilas how to make 
w...a of Ina Fori( retattortsnip. crie tunas placed with Fork and me raJue witrun the sp.affs of 

ars daany those of Abed and Naga. 

— 
.initaUort of Tfea ry peonts and use of unrecordeo deposits Ls repre-senteci by Nagyi 

I I 

-e.been (rie sole re_sponsibiiity of Lauodin Akrar. howe,etr. it se-ems more hkety at 
at was responding to cne e3pecta0ORS of Abed ano Nacm. partcufariy as u otner areas. 

,9! the Gun Group. nue 4 emdence nal Nag., was r.s7umen12J in account rranicua:cn as

faft,a;:k as tre tate 1570's. 



- 

_ 
- • t•-f '7? 

• ' . LT; • 

A ). 

4410000,20, nrmsetf win a cc:e :em wr.o .vefe ,2(ce!y feSCOaSICle !cr c.-aation 
faitellte of documentacon aro .•raucuient acz•ct;nt entnes and funcs :tows as !oilows: 

?•,•( ACV 

N Habib - Ulan 

M Azmarollan 

H St•.eikn 

Rir A 

(C-;enerai menace( f Grano Cayman uorn ;326) 

(acccurif officer for WXYZ and Cr Prtzfaor,) 

(acccunt officer lot rumoleweeo) 

{account officer for malor customer acccunts) 

(acc.ounc officer of Gulf Group unol re left Lrl 1988; 
51.7 million by Nacm). 

(resbonsible for ale banks retationsnip wItn the Wan, 
Grout) - lett ale oank in 1990). 

J Khan (account officer tor Acham and Jawnary. now lett ale 
1 -. Ve-',:-.• .• -1 

t., - --   ,:/•i. bank and ceerie ci $0.3 million). 

44.--. .. •  Z Akt a! (Heald tremry an c3 Genera1 Manager of Grand 
C.tyrtAier--- p 1079E6) 

i 1..i. .- r..t.A Abbas (G  eet--.-a ger of Bahrain unol 1990) 
V--; •-_,':-4:-----: : • .: 

jr ,i...?,

t.3. -,,. e, currenvy employed t:-,y Sancstorm as pan of iPe 'Advisors' office. ale purpose of y•micn 
is to as..yst ale Invesogaticn team ,,...in its enquiries. , ; t.  tti-;;Iti

1-1

1

I From Me scaJe and c,cmp1exty of Me oecepocn it S cteaf tnat most Of the senior 

i 

II ..11:  \  

 

management of al e bank wno as noted were (and remain) extremety loyal to Abaci and 
Na.dvi. were or snould nave a been ware of certain eiements of the traua. Many snot,/ 

S 

.  Jolt:wed, inso-uctons they snouid nave quesooneO. Failure to do -s-o appears to have ansen 
... ,: ...._ 'cm a blind loyalty to Abed and Na cm brougnt aoout by the cultval bacicgrouno stinere it 

1 22 01044, 

'Al.; 
WIS untninkable to ques0on eline-r ale President or tne Chief Exec/it/ye. It is also notewvany 

". nal MOST Of ne sengx management naye been prcre;deo with significant Ioar.ts. from tne bank 
on Cie basis of p(eviotss e3qctnence we not necessarily repayaote on jeavIngl • .4,1.. a 

Vg-it rploycnert) 
1.-..f.....,..." : --z'-•::_: 

... • •;-e.3.4
. i: Atiti 

• 

..,,A.: • f.,, :. 
vlp . ... ..• .. 
• ... t r vq.:-.. 

:•• &b.'. ar lqbal - CEO (1) There is evidence Of his approval of 
•E, IP,
ef-Val 

certain quesoonaole transacoons Cocked 
(Plough ale accounts of ale C:coen 

r. sic" Pnnce of Abu (Dhabi and used lo 
repurcnase Sandstorm's snares tram Sh 

1-,- ' 't • 5. Knaila Bin manfouz artnougn nis 
krcyviedge of ale transacoons .. . 

i If 
i • n• tf ..... ' concerned is uncertain. lc:al accears 

tc-

We Rave pa c4& questons cz.,'nceming ale ex4ong senior management of SanCstorm as 
L ed Wow. We Rem not y howeyer. ol nem to Obtain thei %.,trs-..cn of 

. Many of these senior az-cut/yes nave fpilciwed instructons from Naqv acoatentry 
Lnoul guano and many otners are likely to be solitary implicateO: 
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4.1441.
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? f• 
4.1

":easnir Tani( t
a4 

Clauchry 

M Hague 
4. 

• )1 

• 4,
. I 

4` 

;8 .Chc ry 
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t 

(3) 

General manager 
Ecc E.-nirates 

Jain( exeCuNe 
Azia/Micc:e East: ff
fcrrnerry general manage' • 
for NE0 `• 

Comcar,,,
Sec:etary 

General Manager 
Europe 

UK Segicn 

(1) 

(2) 

Genera! Mana-ger (1) 
UK Pegicn 

(z) 

7'.ave 
cr :nis :racer ;7Crn .\12c-,1 „ (r.c.,;/
Cues;icn. 

Cyer :re frcm -kora '. c..30 
Cecemcer 19C0 we celleve inat 'opal 

sucstantiai. if not tut!. knowleoge pc 
all of fle maners cealt 'Mtn in :Ns recon 
yet cio not cisc:csa cr,em. even in 
resoonse 10 CireCt QueS:JCnS. until mucn 
later. 

r.:Ner e last year he has gNen 
acc.J0onal rezconsblities to vanous 
incmoilatc inc:uoing some of ncse • 
fisteo Pelow. wno acoear to nave teen 
c-rvo•kieci in h-auouienc transacoons. 

involvement in cveszonaole transac:on.s 
inc:ucing nominee snarenoloings. Fon( 
!cans ana faJse confirmaaons. 

False accounong for loans sucsecuentry 
lcuna to te part of re Gulf GrCuO 
ex:csure. 

Ac:ears to nave ccntyclle-o 
ncnnee snare traasacxns parocularry 

Ine name of N,A,1 Pharacn PccKec 
Fcnc 

trrvoNement in siCe agreements uncer 
whicn Sancs:crfh capitai notes are 
repayacte on cemand. 

Was re General Manager of 8CP 
fcr ie penoo (19641 to 1990 wnen 
routing Cl tuncs was most significant. 

Property transacoorts with Viraru tx)oxeo 
ri tne tame 01 nominees. 
Misrepresentation wrth resoec: to 
tenetic,ai ownetsrup. 

Cn ..nstrvc:cas horn S Nacm 
c:eate-O curtomer loans to ccver 
up misaopropnatect kincs in t930. 

Rescons:Ple fcr re Virani Grcuo ano 
aczcunt officer far Mock Oil ana Sr 
It r a r.irn 



• 



  •baml—ImmadM-

'Aanager ;Eu 
t: Ce.;:Cn 

Generai Manager 
Hong Kong 

Ctice 

f)-( &lora Ltgai Ceoarmlent 
UK Peon 

Ncw w,(n Al zianii in L:rczn. 
aLCIf confirma(ior.s. 

C:eaocn of hc:00uS bans ;0 
nnanoe nominee snarencicings 
an arfiliate0 c0moarry in Thailand 
curing .:ury 1990. 

Eooking transaCoons in

Craitng of fraudulent agre-emencs.) 

.The management of Fork. not.acry Mr Kazmr. nave also been integraity invorved in Me 
„Improper ranSaczons ano nominee arrangements: us at everrning tney Cid 

---Fwasat re request of Abed! ario Nacvi. 
:••••$••• 

ic Chrec.to7s1 

Vtin trte fignt of the scale an  C-CmOlexify oif eonon sGifficuit not CO conca..:de Mac 
irecard failed Co aisonarce its resonsib6ties Neve-metes-3 there is no incicatoii 

.0 Uie pos.sible excepeon of HE GF4, .. - trzsr.rie prisent Board of Oirecicrs was cora 
ae Md4Or irregutivities witrun trie batzk_arxik. !ear net ii nas teen consztency 

erovIded wiln misleading arid ina=rat and otner informatIon. The Board had 
been informed of no ricro narmtes.s ci nomine-e arrangements. or re bank's and it's 

anagemencs true relanonsrbo voin a numoer of maior a..istorners and snatenolders. 

St Khalid :.n Manfouz was a direo:cr from 19806 to 1588 aria S implicated in irrecoaf 
ansac:rons refacing to trie puro_-..ase of nis ON,41 snares in Sancs:orm and CCAH. 

malor loans nab to be aooraved by the Boaia. but it aooears that a sign/Ada:1r nuincer 
drawcowns went Co re Board !or aoprovai atter cisbursement of funds and plus erteavey , 
avciorug its c.:•-•ntrol. However. rare LS iinie emclenca triat Board look arry erfeczve ac-Jo 

4.- • to ant or recues--Ine exposure to incr./dual cu-stomer croups. or monitor tne irnpiementaacr 
a C;ecrt Poky. Limits were or:en inc:eased afier re event wiinout inszzence Cr, 

irfevzve re ry acncri. 

Oveml irle Board appear CO nave been taxen in try and trusted,. dominant and Ceceittut •., • 
:mar.agemeni in vie form of Abed and Naovl. 

• Sharenorcers 

;i_The reraoortylip between Abed. and !arter7y Na i. win re maior snarenciders, being re 
%Eng :arntry of Abu Orzoi. goes tack a s•ubstanoai number of years. and Mai been a very 

...cidse one. Abed and subseduerray Nadvi aced as re Rulers person.aJ irryestment aevlsor 
a-n-a r.a .t. . his power of aaomey. The COM to ,A.tur-r1 the mato( sriarenoiclers. ancr011 

.;Parvc4al meg' Board teOreSertra*,./. HE GF .Matru.v.2.5 a re of tri a maners0iscssed in 
.{.Ltir..3 report cannot be eStattisned.1 We are. nowever. iniomied rat r-;•S GF Mairii aria re 

G.c.ierr.rnent were tbnefe.4 fury on all re procitms Acni 1990. notwqRS141.nong r at :re'? 
.• 22:c-we: 7.6 tS€9 accounm to Ca fulans.eCI n discusciors vAlti ourserves aria tile Recu:aters 

7'4 infr,:tfird:Cn. i E.:C.:Icn. ut) unci C:sc.,.:ss.cn of Our Rer..,on to • 



.ors WIC ; e''''UtZ MCI Of 3 Cc;:oer !ssco. :-E .1-- M2.2.11.:1 c:ntenCe::: at 7-.e :Cans 'or 

zon Cy the snarenoloers •,,enich nave now ceen croven to 1":e totaity iczooi..:s. weft. 
. ^veraoie. : 

.. 
: 

i '4•17;:git\-. •e tlae ci,s,_,..i_seio will HE GT: Mazrui nis cy,n accounts win Forx wnich snow that ne 
-1'; t..- sii• fecirved tunas in 1986 ana earlier from uansacoons purconing to Oe Oeaiing in SanCs:orm 

tal:11 : ".are 3 where it ncw is aCoarent Mat he na0 no risk of los:. He has Ccntirme-c3 that ne nas 
i .' ..i - ii. ...6 nefined from sucn cransac:ons arrange-a Cy Mr Atecii aria tRat in Axil 19.SO he inicrrneC. ..  

a
. 

_4 ;-• : • ; 
Otne 5 eruoc govemme-nt orfx.z.ts of Ms nvoryement. We are unabfe to estaoiLsh the extent 1.e '-; 

7-ri i s .1. Imr,0 1 his position in relaoon to AZ:koi ana Nadi may have Oeen compromisea as a result of .... .y.,„ e. 

-', •S :: 1 4 1.: che-se transacoons tut we have Oeco‘me a re of his confirmaoon of vvt)at has now been - f • 
1- f r  eyealea to be a ficotious loan in the name of the C:own Prince of Abu Chaoi. He could not Tef ,,-- : vi4...reo.otleot signing the confirmaoon chat was presence-0 to him cy tooal aria suggestea :o us ..., 

qaL his signature might have been forgeo. . ii!g* '114'4i: .F a .4. 
i :.- ti' - z,--9 

:7! i . -. . a have also seen cacurns:anaal ervlaence of a orcoose-a snare tiansac:cn will AMA in 
981 On a guaranteed tea.= OasLs: via an 'cut or t oak' loan from ACLA in 1988 to finance 

(unauthonseal tvy-oacX of snares :TCM Sri ?<nano Sin Manfok.sz_ 

Y. 
. 

.. 

i.. . 

c is."...4. e-----
IC • .... ji 

1 : L • F;O• 
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OH 2 ARES- AHD C-UCTAL NOTI-S 

crm yiras tsraoasned in 1972 min an onclnai snare cac:tai Of 12.E million. Througn 
41. ,•• •, 
79_1, c.rto.aric acncs .5 u e s .nc:easec :0 at 21 2ecemcer :994. 

Cla G Cry el tne car% s errensNe usa nas ceen mace of nominee 
arThgementsio finance -nese inc/eases in snare cacital. Snarenolaings acoear :o na-ve 
en- apance.a ott) oire-c:ry cy loans trom Sanas:arm an Fort:. anc also from aoccunis ana 

„rnpanies uncle-r me conaot of Abeoi an Nacvi. The use of nomine-e arrangements 
tNougn Fcrx entities has enacted Sanos:orm oisceLse ine Ce-nerictal ownersnio or snares 

nas as plomoe0 a boot of snares for serDng guarantee rela ocfigaoons ana oner 
ojustrnents. inc-uCtfl e9eneinon ot *ncs from snare tracing. 

Some snarenolders, including rnemoers of Tie Rung Fa.mity 01 Abu OhaOi. accufrea snares 
.1,4. on the tas•s of guaranteed rates of return and orners ac-b‘ulteO tnetr snares on tne Oasis of 

• 
buytack ar7angements. These seemed to nave oeen a prac:oz to gain Me favour of • 

uencal people in tpe Miocie E.2..st. There Ls a ask tnat renam ing snarenoicers may mak& 
I , 

aZirrIS in resper..t, of losses incurreo on Sanastorm snares wnicn were purchased by ther on 
the basis of buyback or guaranteed rate of return. ano to bate one sucn claim rlas Detrt 
maDe Dy a former snarenader..1
••<!.. 

stlgaton vv.c.)rk cononues 4-1 cms area but as .v 31 Cecemoer 1940 some (our matioWi 
i%areLs (S40 million nominall are etfec-zies itz\ by Sanostorm or Fork cirougn a nurntper 

---o( snomlnees. Inciucing SZietkr1 Karnai am. W i Pnaraon anc Faisai tali. We are 
V. -informeal T;at otner nominee saes were- pkg=ed Sheikn Knalila arta ne Government . 

-!ot'Abu Chaci Curing 1990. it ail trles .pcs-c es- i ,,ere ;nose or nomine-e-s. v•inicn may well . . 
h e been r e case. ' it woulO accear -scrne- % of tne snare .capital of &Inc-storm 

3  in CI e hands of nominees at 31 Cecemcer rsnilst a turtner 11%. was ovine()by Fori; 
3' ant- te 

2.4k. -Mere i.s evicence at nolcers of cacitat notes entered -nto side agre-ements 
prcice icr repa-yrnem on oemar.c ,ns:eao cf in ao.::rcance y•itn the terms 

• ;- note ssue. There exlsrs me ;-.•.css;cility mat 'pe remaining hole nOlderS nave 
' similar arrangementz. 

Nmth. Forx wnicn 
of the capflaJ 
entered ,nto 



" 
- • 

i .:

... . 

ii.
es 

golt _aig,....
;Us 

•
:- :dile 

.fatIs::: ...), _ ,r..:. 
.. :::: .. 
-}:i It 

. I, . ..... 
....::• i• 

•A - "`fi' ..;* :-... e end of re year 1986 also apoears to have oee-n a turning point in ne metnco of 
ri•peracon of rourang aCC:',uncs win a signincant recuccon in aczsnry passeO cnrcugn atfiliateC -i..- a • 

•••!••  banxs. 
-.4..0, ie. 
1

k 1_

ri 

- - 
tZTJON ROUTING ARRAHGCMETTS 

,:c• 4 ;
ketr Nacm'S otfice ri Loncon was Lne souice or ins:No:ors CI re mcverr.ent or -uncs .n 

otCer,:o re exposures cn 'can acoounilh-  Vise (outings aanSacocns Nefe rlec:en 
ue Icecal ouver. ceoartment on tne eiscrucxns01 .w .%.•4 Sneik.n. Mt I :marn ano Mr 

Nacii tivougn a numoer of banx acz.sunts inc:ucing trose convoilecl Dy Mr K.2.2.mt Of Fp( 

tom r e rcuong anx acoounts aireacy iCenoneo it is ocssitte to see Ina( e nn I 
trartS-3C:Xr.S lOcK place on a small scale in 1981 ana remaineo a.irty insignificant until 1984. _ . 
rensacxns appear to nave cease c oy 1990. win tr,e excecocn of some accounrs a( NC3 

oonucileo ty Mr Kaarir of Fork wnicn were useC until (Setternter 19901. 

The level of acovily eacne- its peak in 1986 wnen some 51.6 tiilicn was passec througn 
ac-councs on cne knstn)coons of memoers of tne soec:a/ cues Oeoaranent. This see-m 

o =Lncce 1tr1r e oLsotsure of t.ne increasing citficutues on e Trea-sury aczvi.ies. 

unos were ne-eceo to manipulate e recorcs of ne Gulf Grcuo loan accounts as weil as ti 
Ariaxe g000 ie oefic.zenc:es of tne treasurr it,pOns and it seems tnat to some cegree • 

two proolems were secaratety martaged.."A :cse reiaoonsnip iU Gulf Grcuo 
Companies enapieo tne 'spec:al Cuoe&— C c';, open aC:Zunts in customers names - 

. , a num:et of tanks Inc:ucing BC? l'llzern. -e•cunry Pacf,c. Frencn Amencan. Hacib 
.4-

• L Banc aro Foyai Bank of Sccuano. Sing • cate eleven sucn accounts nave teen 
; klentoneC tt availaole cccumentacon rernams patC:-.y anc turtner acoounts may weft ex:st. 

Prccer aczot.;nt ocerung Icrms ar,a ccnrirmatory lerte ct cayrrert inscruc:cns were 
procLreP trcm the Guif Grout) in orcer to avcio ar-r suscic:on accut re purpose aril nature 

. . . 

• 
_ 

i of r e canszc:ons. 

7,ese Gulf Grouo canK acocunts. t.re SCec:a1 CuOeS' Cepar,rnent also ne-ececl to 
• •--',;‘4 ".717:generate 7ansacocns for °tiler customer loan aO:Ounts. Relaccrsnics were estatiisr.ec with 

• 4-• --.r:•BCCI executives at ocner locaoons wino ula pass payments ac:o-ss (nett nosao accounts 
• ' • apparently wirout e neec for a lull customer mancate. These aansacoorts were generaity 

testeo telexes using e ECCI Loncon (est xey or on trl e Oasts of personal 
teleprcne cals from memoers of re Ceoartment. These arrangements wItn ac? zuncn, 

• ECCI Spain • MaCno. KIFCC'd an Naoonai Bank Cman ana SCCC.-, were mace ocssible 
tne kncyoecce nat r ey ongtnatec from e rugnest levels cne Bank and no COuCt rne 

• stall fe(t ['flat rey were prcsocing an e-ssenoai service to e Pres:cent's office. The 
- 

recorcIng of nese transacons appears to naNie De-en regular anO ney were eitner not 
e-nterec re €,‹Igers0 ettec:ed ty single side-C. tu1 comcensaong entnes-

3.7 Trarsacxr-s passing trvougn Scam. Kuwait and Crnan ait accear to rave teen icenofiaole 
to r e ulOrrate Denericary of the rvncs. nowever. Varsacoons nrcugn BC? were rnan(ea 
'PAY Wirr-CUT MakfTICNiNG CUR NAME' witn 7..e result rat '.;:e rec:pient was unace to 
iCen* •P•e source of t1.3-.C.s. 

13 



. -{0 74- •t-
.s.ocbunts E' erZle0 try manacerr.ent ot Forx ac c a 'unner cirnension to nese routing 

arr'  riccouncs were oceneC at EC7 '_. xemccurg. C:ectt Suisse ano Nauonai 
..C::Orrinierai_jiaanx tne name of Fop( acoounts or Ln 17-le name of ccmcanies 

Vrcome+LuncierT convoi Cl rorx managernent. it accears (flat aimost at vansac:cn: 
were sOurCeC by memo's or leleOnone calls :Tom tne 'soec:ai Cuues Ceoaro-nent o),,Ar 

wno would instruct payments to be mace by or s:arf in Cayman. or on e oasi 
telephone czts to tne orancrl mai-lacers. Mr Kazin would. ri neeced. ren visit Evyiczena 
to sIgn conrirrnatOry Wrters covering e exe-cution of transac:ons. 

The ability of ttle `sce-c:a1 Ouoes° Oepartrrient to uncenake transac:ons of 71is narure was 
.1*. unOot). btedy fat-11,31W by tne corporate culture of e Group.Imcta,• 

by a numoef of tricse invoNeo *Paeilftlitenil was teing undertiaxen by tne Presicenrs on 
had to C.1 in ne Pest interests of me Banc. 

:t 
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The Ifouicity management tunc:on wnic uu-lised surplus Ilquiaity generated by trie 
BCC grouo. Any tunas in excess of tne irrvestrnent reciuiremenrs were placed on 
the inter Dant< mancet. The tiouicity management tunnons were performed nrougr 
the London Branch of SA uncer tne overaif direcoon of a manager Ithin Tteasury. 

SEC710}4 4: 77-1E,ISURY 

dad<grour 
$. 

Central Treasury ,;(as a cryision Cl :he /-sead s:tfica .ct Sanostorm Overseas. lt wa set ui 
'‘ • London in 198-2 to orcyice a cenualisec anc cccrc.naiec venic:e tor ne Lnyes:rnent or 

surplus tunas generated by Sancs:otm •Honcw+c•e. Cn a cay to day Casis irrees:ment an, 
• Gqu y management senoces were rencereo within pleso:icea guidelines ;o 7ressury oy .. • 
• centrai suoport office in Lc:noon. 

Treasury acz es lett into twa disunc: funcnons: 

The irryestment funccion wnicn traced in -C:s, treasury bonds and vancus ceating 
ac7vities: arid 

3 -
) 

• • 
• 4.3 Treasury activities were managed up until 1985 by Zaucdin Mbar who was aiso responsit 
ZTh 

• numcer of sJgni6cant customers and stlareboldecs. A Treasury Committee wic:uaing 
for the Grand Cayman brancn Sa.nos.107170,1rseas. wnich managea tne accounts of a 

•3 • 
PC Twitcrun, A GlIani. M Penman. Z Askbar. $ New and A Hafe-ez was 

_ set up to monitor treasury acuvities. ‘ri-Na eft ess of the treasury commihe-e apcears t 
; have been compromzec3 since these acztvities nonued to be accounted for as part of tni 

Grand Cayman branch ana Akbar was nev called to account for tr easury results 
separately. Because ne appeared to ce generanng signrcant profit Ms acrmnes conunued 
in an uncontroiled manner, and he was given increased responsibilities in the use of ail 
surplus Sandstorm funds fcr tracing and irrvescment purposes. 

Akbar appears to have developed =se links wan a major customer of 1Pe tank. AR Knaril. 
tt appears that Khalil mace tunas available to A.kbar for tracing purposes on a profit snare 
basis, in return for wnich he ailowea .Akbar to use Ns name and that of his companies 
(Raul Associates Inc and Mararn Tracing Co) to be used for trading for the account of 
Sandstorm. Akbar traded in a number of mancets. including commodities, futures and 
options. and to disgulse the nature of his activities, he split Treasury into tWa as follows-. 

— - . 
.i.: 

.. , . 
.., Number two account ac-nvides. which appear to have been carne0 out in the name v 
.. of partoutar cents. These ac:N,ltes were pnysicalty segregated. performed by. 

different staff and outside the scope of external audit on the basis that they were for 
• i . Che account of private clients. In actual fact. Akbar appears to have been trading in 

s -.••-•F the name of prrvate clients Out for !he account of Sandstorm. in so doing he 

11 
exposed Sanc,storm to signincant asks and Iost considerable sums of money. 

-. kt 
I ..5 . ..- 'Through false accounong using number tvvo account funds,. A)k.bar supplemented profits 
-• -: • - • reported try n e normal trading acoNines. In order to sacsty pont targets. Akbar created a 

4.1 . -;-.: • number of odd: accounts Ln the name of AR Knal wnicn used deposits c:ecited to ctients* 

r-t--?3 
ik ;I .... „ 

.:. 
• r---

- 5.•t.71. Y • 

Normal 0-easury ac e-s. as descnbed above 

16 



ZarIS drawn CCwn in ;:-.e narr,e ci <-a,l
arc 

:her orcmr.ent 

• : •ur.re-corced Oecosits ano cenain external funds. \io an!rn:t .Has ;race CO se-:egate 

%.inos :Tom nose ot Sanostorm. 

12'6 Akbar reooned no:easing croft's. pa:ocular), :n the arry iSE,Cs• but n reality orocaciv 
incurre-o significant 'losses on option ano :utures vacing. FfCal investigation 'ArCVX 7catE 

aopez.-: nat Aictoar mote opuons icwaics monn enos and inc.orrecuy acccun:ed for the 
premium income. As tne level of realised losses nc:easec. 7:easury starf appear o havi 
wnnen further opcons to conceal these tosses ano generate no:nous profits. NeY1-ien ICSSE 

were incurr&\.1 on closing out me posioons ney were not booked against the profit and :c 

- • account. Out iruteaa against client accounts. togus loans or ch e otner unormcoox sourci 
of funding noted above. This ad7vity appears to nave teen parocularty prevalent in the 
years 1$82 to 1965. 

•••44. 

t*:1; 

f• 

oft,-
tfl; 

• s f' 

kr 
t"•' . 
7t; 

Tinr 
Pwt-

Ln Late 19a5 e IML requested a review of cenuat Ueasury acovrtes by the auctions. • 
Management requestea PW Cayman to carry out this won( ylno in turn cailed on us for 
assistance. We otscovered that signcant Losses wtfe being incurred on 0000n anCI tutu 
trading but were not property recorcec. The exposure on open contracs was consiCerac 
and significant losses were incurred :n ctosing out the postoons. We had formed the 
conVuston mat the acccunong methocs aoopteC were cue to inc-ompetence. However, la 

the benefit of Rincsignt. it appears more sinister in r at it now seems to have teen a 
Catiterate way to ncutiousty inflate inc.: . art of the review we did riot e_xamine the 
accounang for closed contracts of presiousyeare ince no significant losses acceared to 
have occurred - again win hinos;ght:wen km* mat sucn losses were ceing conc.eaik 
as noted at>orve. 

MeMoiCzs of arceaknerrt of trexszry losses 

Vrvespgapon won( to cafe has inocateC that Aktar used a vanery of techniques to tuna at 
conceal the true nature of the transact:ons undenarcen. These included: 

‘. 

misacpropriation of deposits without depositors' knowledge to provide tunics to aciik, 
non-perlorming aria bogus loan accounts. anc Treasury losses. 

m:sappropnation of eztemaJ funCs deposited under trust With Sancstorm and Fon( t 
t‘e managed on Denali of a lew prominent peocie wrto are also snarenctcers of 
Holdings. 

the vearion of loans with no commerctal suostance in the names of people without 
their knoWe<Ige. 

s-eiring certrficates ot deposit placed win re Cenoal Treasury (without informing ne 
depOs40(), and using the proce-eds to fund aCjustrnents. 

routing funds through Fork. SCP. KIFCO, SOCC and other affiliates and third parte! 
to make ac4ustments prioc to accounong reference dates and audit contirmauon 
date-s. seft\rch were onen reversed at a later cate. 

maintaining a pool of tunas in th e private named accounts of Khalil wnicn were use,
tre-ety by Z Akbar to tuna aciustments. The tuncs Were never nose of Khani atone: 
his n<irne appears to have oe-en used onty to classify the accounts as Oeing for the 
general funding acombes of the Treasury C•rvision. 

17 



r  

' / , u ,  0 af  len Sarzs:orm n 1586. 5.-Icatv 2rier :re :-.iscovery of tosses cn c:::cn 'r2C:r •^ —.. 

. , 

suoseouentiy proviced S Nac-m with a atatemenf .n ,...nicn ne set out ne osses 7.e nap 

0  novena.), inc_urtec in earlier years !lcm :reasenv rtacing actroues wnicn ne nac !flec::vv 

-.-- ,1. -,-- hidden tram Sanc,sicrm rrianacetr.ent. :ogelner 'e•eitn a signalco.nt :n:laDon of me :rows c: 

.t.: .P.- Treasury acovrtles. The tn(laUon of PrOlits w2S ;:anoc•Jiartv significant in ',S82.. :98.3 and *. 
.i. -wnen f,..--,-,tlous profits ss,t7re sucpcsecty S108 miliion, .5 ‘.35 million and S.224 million 

' --%1 • resce-cuvety. The tol statement is anacned as Ac>0encrx Ill. F0( ne period, '.9T7 :o 21 
Cecemcer 19&5 i4k.t2r c:aimed tnat tne total amount tnese ;ossesific:cous protits w-as 

- maw out thls is before aalustment for tosses of S2.5 million Cooked in me 196,5 
accounts as a resufl of our treasury review. 

. • 
4.10 Whilst ne Omits of ikkbar'S Statement are incapaole of contirmaoon because the :ecorcs 

horn these eanier years are sparse and incomplete. it is C:eaf Ltlat Mere was a majo( 
• misappropnation of halos ano falsJncaeon of accounong recorCs in the earry 198Co.. 

1 - . Akbar took certain docanencs retatng to his management of Treasury YAttl turn Yinen he I( 
- • in 1S.88 he used nu information to tolacxmall Sandstorm. wrucn paid Sa2 million to pt-even 

hen aisclos4ng the true nature of e ac es of Treasury Division. We have haa no acce-
to A.kbar, mlo Ls currently in !ail in connecoon wan Me money taundenng case in Tampa. ( 

• any of Me e.zectronies irr tveic1 in the aay-to-day management of Treasury under him. 
• 

• Funding of treasury ttsses 
- 

the basis of Akbar's ossii calculaoOn.ot g.2 mutated bsses concealed by him 
(including his assessment of the furlong- costs). SZ49 million his fraudulent acmes uo 

Z*Itarty 1988 appear to have been financ 21 IC . 'This anarysts stcuk:1 be treated '.ii 
. z..cauton because Nst r e net teen ante to oencty a numoef of no coenpcoarrts. 

4:FuriCS utiliseO 

Unrecorded deoOsits 400 
Fon( manage tunas 25.1 
WxYZ secure4 loans 125 
BCC Errurates : deposits 80 

CO's 78 

158 
Fork kpans 94 
Other bans AR Knalit BO 

Others 11Q 

190 

State Ban.k of Inci- 50 
BCP Luxamoourg deposits 15' 
Other 

1,318 

amommIsil 



1 

tC:
e!- -fri*k

• I / 
• : 7‘. 

• 

Lossesific-.;oous brows 1:-9 
Loans aolusieo 
SOCC
Prooeroes 

52 
as 

CtIler _11 

1,318 

UrIeciceded deposits 

3t3ln part Aikbar tune a his ac7vities through 'out of bock' aePosits (wticn as exciainect in 
Secoon 7, form ine basis of the unrecorcea ceposits at 31 Ceoemoer 1990). 

111••••••••• 

of the Treasury poot accounts nas incicatea that cendo CepOSJIS pace a with-
sancslorm and its arfiliates. were route() into these accounts without being recorced as 

i• -if"' 'deposits by Sancstorm. Treasury appear to have used Mese ceposits as fre-e tunCS. wan 

V :  • 
repaymenrs anC interest funcea pnnc:pal Tre pool accounts nemseNes. The level of 
tnese unrecorced aeoosrts appears to r.thve floctliaaa from S.  million in 1982 to over S800 

Irmillion in 1984. The recucoon to S--uX);md/bEr& Feruary 19.56 was achieved througn 1ne e increasea use of external tunas unoer management /cf Fork enoues mace available Cy NM 
'rnt 

15jiibe maxe uo of sucn unrecoroeC CepCsitS at this wile as summarised cy Acta: was: 

-Jumolewe-ec 248 
-Government of Cameroon 61_ 

Han/7y 
Dossary 24 
SAFC0 18 

*"Sh Nan ai 6 

••••• ••=•211. 

400 

•••=111•••••• 

The Turnoteweed and AI Fterttry deposits. remain as unleW(Ced Ciabilide_s at 31 De-cember 
and to the current Cate, as discussed more tufty cri Seaton 7. *.The ocher deposits nave 

since been reinstated and r °pax). 



WXYZ sec.:ed is 

.1 17 198.5 Pe !eve( c cncus :rctits (uncec cy Z ;•kcars 3clusynents was 
over.s.5.X) million. There also aocears to rave ce-en a need to service cettncu,

. . int.r cooKs o Sanas:um (anc Fcrkl a( Pis ume. As a resutt :cans or 1 5rnhc 
.5 suocosecty secured on Pe snates in WXYZ eie crzwn COwn In..:une 1985 in Pe 

of: 
S m 

47 
Futaii 31 
Shorafa 37 
Fuieiran 10 
Fujeiran • numberea A/C 68 
A4Man 8 

- -Dubai 11 
Dubai - C;escent 1 

111••••••• 

4.18 These funcs were acetiecin can to le'rense,the accumuiated losses of tne Treasu 
cMsion ($125 million) VALn Lne remaindi . erng 'applied to certain borrower acoour.ts. 
inc:ucing Gulf Grouo ana %/1/. 4-t.1 R'—aon's account at Fork (511 mitticr.). 
same acne (25 June 138E1 an amount of :nation was paid by (Treasury) *to Brent:: 
Lmitea. a sues:dary of Coccom, a comeany Issuose-cuencyj controlled v Z Aar: 
unkr.own purpose. 

CC)er utaisaborts 

4.19 From 1983 to 1988 Sanest= anceirs :o nave mac an intormaJ açreemert itfl S:ate 
of India ($21) to secure loans given oy tne ianer to Sanristorm nominees. Sucn tunas 
used by Treasury to service loans in an artemet :0 recuce tr.e need for year enci 
prowtoning against delinquent acocunrs. 

The Fork managed tunas nave no( be-en cacabie of iGentoficaoon by LA. while Ina Fcrx 
were (Irvin cowlui ear ty 1S85 by arrangement itfl HM KaLmi. We have be-en una..cti 
iCenuty Fork loans of $190 macn. The aeoosits ana CO's placed by Emirates ana BC 
were up1i-se:3 by Aktar winotA aucnonsaoon. Out. we are informed. nave sub4Kuencty 
repaid: 

20 
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fasf 

. 19.

1.  1.; I P 141i

t• 

- • 

t 

.1e1PAIr 11. .34$*4.4 
1;ja " p • 

rtaVe teen ur.ac!e ; o anaryse we 3cc..c.3ticn or 7',Jncs •.:szo 3 'c! ,car..
irriaxe LnvesTnenrs n early 1986 as noteo a:cve.  OM certain ;ec:rcs :rat !ILsz at 

upecemper 198.4 Lne pionc:paJ acpticzuon ct 3coears to nave teen as 

s 

7 provide CZ-VI to fund Wra snare acduis,cons. 

(Men h the name 01 nominees. parocuiarry 
Shorafa. K1aIU an Karno1 Aonarn.
prorvide cash to fund share accursitions 

• ;Sandstorm Holdings in ne name of nornine-es. 
. .particutarty Kamal Altharn. ana 
• GR Pharaon. 115 

:provide casn to fund purchase of =Icai notes 
in ne name of Khatil. 8 
invescrnenrs in C.recit and Commerce '.nsurance. 
SOCC and others. 25 

" Cther adjustrnencs of taa loans. 120 
• Unidenafied 

r._ 
UniCenutied changes t erweengi. 

• 

*r 
g -4; 

Ei ekerS 
I , 

• ft ?' Nt:el% 
• 

A. • • .4 •

Ar .,.The main tickers used ty Treasury divlsion Were: 

t ; Relco 
CapitoJ Commodity Dealers l_ta (Caoccm-) 

. - Rucoit WWI 
Bear Steen 

.., ,
I .. -.. . . Ir.:. 4.2•., .1The irryestigabon team Ras se-en Cito-JmStanDal evIcence that these brokers did not always 
V 1- .4__..trace wrn Treasury at arms !engin, anc may nave rac-Jitated Akbar in manipulaong coots. 

h partfc.4.,lar Rodott WWI Rao a separate orrIc..13 to otai with Sandstorm and appears to have 
elowed Sarxistorm to hive a signifIcant ovtrorvfn Mance at 31 December 1964 (S-LO 

' • ; rnill(c,n), s.stlich was pssitiy L.i.4,,d to conciaaJ lcssesipark' aatilibes at tt-Te 1984 year end. 
“I - 

H : 424 ! , CaPcom was estatfished in 1964 and rapicty tecarne one of tne most sigrvcant of ne , c ., - 
54.. . . brokers used by Treasury. Its inrtia1 snarenoiCers were dominated by malor customers or 

. Sandstorm, ...-Jualng KAM and Kornai Aonarn: and some 70% of its share c.apical was 
.,, 

; 
i , registered h tne narnes of people for wncm Z Akr:ar wa.s retained as advtser. A.ktar ?tined 

Capm on e...zr,,,ing Sandstorm in 1966. as did riLs deputy M Sag:lir. and s4.1Gsequencry 
.1):!, i ::, .1.-p :-:becarn-  e a sharen9Icer and director. Ce-spite an apparent cessaoon of Gracing finKs win 

Cd.C.C;.."-T1 at cr a insocacon of S N.acyl aocarencly on cne acce from tie (nen grouo auditors,. 
two c.ayrnen . of .$,,W abfflon were mace to Cacc:m in marcn 1S86 cut cf (externai tuncsj rci t 

o ..ia:.iiy for repayment was recorcec. 
• . r",

..., . .-._ 

984 and 1986 
:63 
(2) 

.14.8 

IMM:Ma 
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;V....4L;T:he bank belleved nal re failure of trie Gulf Group wcula nave crystalisea large losses vvnion 
. ,r• 

woUcl flaVe eiocea tne bank's capital case an put its very Sk..nival in doubt_ To avert aqudati. 
• : of tne Gulf Group, it ryousd'appear that Sanastorm cred very closely wiln Ire Gulf Group 

• • management to ensure nal Turd parry Dank Ilapitities, marry of wnio.n wtre resczedulecl in 1964 4 .4 • to 1988.,were met as En ey feU Cue. 

By Ole tarty 13.5.0s r e position of tne bank was so compromised by its reliance on re Gulf 
• . Gto,up, .at more complicated maniputaoon was necessary. This irreCtsreC1 Cr.e use of external 

, funds rnanagea by Fax ennes. In part tnLs was acnieved by loans drawn dawn in Fork wItn 'J
ftinczs routed to Sandstorm, win sucn icans being resaa by snort-term offshore acocunts Ceing 2 

"). Craerncown in Sandstorm. In aoarton Fork aCPears to t'ave uclised certain ex:errai !1..rds 
:. ; arailaz:e to IL. Sticn tuncing was most s:gnificant in :re penc< 1984 to 1986. 

!: GULC ViCUP 
- - 

• 
e ra( Tie Group's Canxing rcaocnsnio 'hi in re Gulf :2;ouo ecan n t371 .Nner 

ed'.telaffrefy l'arge cePOSitS witn Sandstorm in Luxempourg ana London. There :5 :irtfe 
ible!eyruenc4 of oiner business unol 1978 at wnicn J me trace rtance lines ano ;nicping 

•were coenea Dy tne Grout:). Eden at :Ns me e scale of tn e bank's lencing to zne GL 
p was sicnificant Lfl retauon its capital ease. ana tre retaticnsnip became one of 

rdecendence. A summary of me nistory of che Gulf fencing in reiaoon to one caoital Case 
tOrmis r-lawn at ADpenocc I. There 3 e‘ncence tnat fine Gokal brothers useo tnis pcsiu,

lever 10 obtain snort-term funcing ana repayment Cl non Sanas:orm Dank debt. 

a tes-uft ofre large exposure guiaelines imposed by e Eank of England in 1977, re 
zx>unts weft) mitieec to Grano) Cayman. and in 1978 wnen tDeCame aoparent tr at ne Gulf 

Group was in tinanciat oittcuity S Naqvi and! Hasnim Shaikh tock airect responsipility for tne 
cr-purcs. appears n at account manioulapon oegan at this snge, and to iris enC a 'spec:a 

es' aecerTnent was set up to crve-rsee !nese acoounts. This was a fua-Pme occ:Jpabon wn 
ea re manutac:ure of Clocumentapon, intlacion of act:Punt turr.over, concealment of tuna: 

etc anc irrearvea some 750 accounts aver a fifteen year penoa. Turnover n'  me period w 
e 515 tillion2 • 

. • 
_ . 

1 

• 

gement in collusion wIth Gulf use-diZphts-a 
VICAJ 

•.... 

a metnods of Ce-cepoon to conceal fundi 

use of Gulf 'bank acoounrs wnic oc.vd tt:ncs Ina Lren redi.soibuted ern arouna a 
numcer of acooLnr3 (partioularry 1978;o 1S8.11. 

ITansfers between Gulf ;ocauons in different parts of me wcno :o c,:eate rt:tmcver arc 
.np?s,/ cet:t serNic-rig, parucutart)' just before year tincs. 

conoult ac:_ourits at external Danis. under 'Pe control of Sarostorm officers Cargery arte 
1985). 

tunas transfers ntougn EC? ana ncstro acoounrs at vanous Sancs:crrn Crancnes. 

use of eiCess:ve interest ana cnarges to provice crofts. 



7-3 

• 

a/ Itincnig 

erncic-,yi-e3 worKinq wItn Mr Nacvl nave

utilise< wtrun ae Guil Group acccunrs as 

19,81 - 198'3
19'5-4

ti 
- 19.843 

1:,:4 • 198,9 

r=Aa'•

reo:ez:eo a cetattec anarysis of 

• f 
• t_ Drawcowns 

S m 

_‘ 

Pecavments 
S m 

tnterest 
$ rn 

Cuts:2ncings 
31/122S0 

Sii

150 72 133 218 
2 - 13 22-5 

345 18.5 90 253 
300 237 97 150 
12-8 15 42 185 
63 15 23 71 
21 • _____L 11 

1249 ..i.24 395 1.12) 

Net or awocNyn.s 725 

01•••=1=1.•••••••t. El..M.•••••••• OmiN•11 mod. • to 

7.;.? 3 3 zanar 7 ss as not been ortacle of vent-lc-aeon ant must neretcre be eatec.t v,itn cauocn. 
gryes an inciczoon of tre 'Acery s ec anipuiaon of re exposure. 

_,• 
5.8 Accoroing to me Danx's rec:rcs ea/x4cafprr .e net external tuncing (exctucing interesV, 

Was as (vows: 

- 

Re-cucoon in Cuff Iazilioes to Tara parDes 457 

Recuczon in Gull :iaciiity to Sancstiorp. 184 

La:Aides of otner o,orrcwers :o Sancstcrm .22 

725 

The r cuanc Cl :unCs appears :o nave teen cnrougn entities: 
• . 111A p r.4

T1 ' 
ancs orm Anlat 

_ 
• 

r 

1-

BC? Zuncn 
SCP L...emoourg 
BCC Grano Cayman 
8CC Li:moan 
BCC( Spain 
NEO 
Cner 

225 
164 
168 
57 
9-2* 
96 
25 

C ult acc.un 20-3 

•' 
Ye. t to te Ce-none0 219_
•-• • 

249 
• 

k • 

71 



• 
":71- • 

••••• 

.• . 

• 
_ • • 

.•tw above arl4ry-ses have yet :o 
piive transcdec.

' 
xu 
--;;; • - 

more receni years rne isoec:at acmes be:am:lent 'nvorveo in acrIcarIng :nictmauon 
ifsPect 01 ine 'ort'snore acz.bunts'. Ths Lncuceo tr.e c:eaucn of prcriles of me cenelical own 

z,se sucs:ar.u.stec crve 3 :eneral cunine CI 

6.tiancai informaoon. faise trzmicoon leers atc. The relaoonsfuo of Ulese parocar iccounh 
• . r itn Tie Guit Group was final!), ac?mowieoceci by Sanbs;crrn ano :Pe Gokais as a result or ;P.( 

k force invespgauon in earry ISGO anc -Gulf assurnec resoorsibility for 73 ortsncre acc-ounts 
wittl an expcsure of S264 million at 31 Oecemoer iS89. 
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rs-. afieceic Mat Sancstcrm nas acouirec a 58 -6'.'. •n; ves:. c_rrentry :nrcugn •eigrit ncminees. 
..,*(i-• fir- • -t, .1 iv me ultimate hbfoing c--:.mpany or ne .F':rst Amenc2n Sank (FAS), *.r.e largest canicir19

ti .: - - - ecoup in (Pe Wasnington area witn c:os-s state clanking licences to operate in seven states. -iii •-..  

O'. 
interest appears to nave t'a.-en ootained tnrcugn Sandstorm or its atfiliatea comcanies 

-r grandng icans to certain prominent Macle Eastern inomauais with wnich to subscnce tor 

.:srtares in WXYZ. such at Nadi or Aced incemnitiea ne snarenolcers against any liability 

••• for the loans disbursed in melt names. in return for wnic.1 e sharenolaers gave Sandstorm. 
vougn a vanety of snare cealing ana anomey arrangements, aumonty to buy ancse 

1 -), snares in WXYZ on Mew txnail. These incemnioes were uSuady iflme name of Fprk. 

:1' . • ••••• 
. 

- The legality and effect of ne YariOus nominee arc incemnity arrangernenrs is c:earty 
011 uncertain and a matter on wnic.n leca1 acylce neea to ce scugnt in °Kier to asoenaJn 

7_ ultimate bene6ciai ownersnio. tut preliminary 1e921 opinion yeoula Suggest at tre re-giszerea 

; ,sharenolCers oo appear to nave been ncmine-es. 
-4 • f -

s --
c.. . •-;..-Sancstorm's former management nave recresenced :0 us mac ne arrangements were in Me 

• form of a rnercriant banking' transact:an t always c:ea as a 'sleeping partner. at 
time using any yaong ngnrs cr exer ing any- nuciling influence over Lhe management 

,ot Firs; Arnencan. This appears :o neiie e‘.5r*ity. i?)een ne case aitncugn we nave seen 
; evidence to ne effect at AH Abed Nes:corzt...Litej.f C:ark C:itfora in me recruitment of a 
1:1 - senior executive for FAB. ana cenain 
;.., . . • 

}-05ory ot aperaDons in Me US
•

- 
6.5 In the early years of its oceraocn Sancs:omi oberatec nrougn a nurno-er of branches aria 

agency operaoons. Management nowever perceNed nal if Sancs:orm was to acneve :he 
‘-.; • status of a global bank.ing organisaocn in line witn Abeci's vis,on. it needed sucsiciar? 
,1 • operaoons in me Unitea States. To mis ena a numcer Cl unsuccessful anemprs were mace 

; to acquire a bank in New York. 
. ; • 

6.6 lIvo•uvi Abears contacu wtri Een Lance. FAB. at that nme FG8. was idenotled 25 a 
• -suitable accuison target ana in me penod (corn 27 Cecemcer 1977 to 10 February 1978 
• .sorne one million shares in FGB. reoresenung 18: of ne orcinarf cacital were -acquirea on 
' tenet( of Sandstorm in me open market_ Sandstorm contencea net nese snares were 2 .. 

- P "a on behalf of certain invt_stors for whom it acted as irrvesiment aovuor. we have, 
:•hOwever. sten evidence to suggest net tniS was not tie case ana nal net four irtvestors 
were used to keep inclMaual ownersnip below 5: aria to ensure net Sandslorrn's name CIC 

;. i not appear. 

6.7 is - The investors were: 

f.:„4 . Sheikh KarneJ Adharn 
• 5 Faisal FuLaij 

-4, Sheikh Sultan bin Zayed (subseduency sold to SKA) 
'F A Carm.sh (on benaif ci Sh monarr.mea n Dyed) 

25 



 .....•g•ml•.I• ••I..•M•m•••••••=r 

_ 
•Atter various le-Cerai an() Sate Canung zno !e;t.:latcne ac:rovaLs. ac:eemenrs %vim :ne

H GB. a tencer oiler !c( ne remaining F.7.:S srtzrzS as mace tcrcorauon

(FAG; on 2 lyiarcn 1982 ano conuoi or FC:a was sec_ree: :y WXYZ. 

• 

• , 

initial capital c:,;ncricunon into W":"Y. Z Or.clucing r.eoricir.ai :rives:ors s;lajencicIrc)

• ::-'1-5180 million oeing 100.CC.0 s.-.ares a( 51 !CO eacn s,c5 :;Cea as :cdcws: 

• 

,J 7
(

 I. 

Kam• Aram 

• 1  A Oarmsn 
Fulail 

1 i": , i- . --•:AOLA 
..t.." Stock (Ducal) 
; ;. - - C r e s c a n c (Cuca„,) 

I .i..A.. • -AR Khalil 
• 1 - s7- - • - Masnno (Fuieiran) 

: -. '. - : ..Sh Naomi (Arran) 
I . .' . Shorafa •ffr7 . • • 

• •• . -. . Cabazzro , ,-.. 
; :"--,,---- .:- Gulf Irrvescrnent • • -I 

Seal 
I .•- ; -: • Estate Co. 

' Seal Estate Ceyetopment Co 
Jawnary 

I 

: 

- . 
r :4- 

. •-.... . ..'": 
'-. !• _1. 

. 6.10 Since :nese tnItia/ sucsc.-.cncr.s :nee nave ceen a nun:per ct 7.gr,cs Lssues 
f below: 

1,-
- .: 4•-..1 . . . 

t . ..-- .. ...-. 4. :.,, .:.; K. . • . . 

No ot 
Shares • 

19.050 34.3 19.1 

13.720 24.7 13.7 
7.180 129 72 
8240 14.8 82 
8240 14.8 82 
8240 14.8 82 
8240 la S 82. 
7.660 13.8 7.7 
7,070 127 7.1 
6 . 11.7 5.5 

c2-9710 ':-- ..... 5.3 2.9 

r• ...:-.57.
'- 470 - . 2..5 1 5 

1.6 09 
1.1 0.5 

100.000 100 

02_03.82 

I 221283 
.).;- • ' 

4 25.07.86 

1 "1".:* 18.07.8.1 

Iruttal suosc.lcoon 
Rictrics issue 
Sig= C!..S.ue 
Rightz issue 
F4ghts issue 
Rights issue 

1•=1.11•1•••••••0 e•••••••mommil. 

t7y wXYZ as set c° 

NO Of Shares Pice Amount 
1000'si sx rr mam curcc-se 

100.0 1.8 180 

16.7 1.8 30 C.a..S.S A sr,ares 
3_9.4 1.9 75 FAB. NY 
67.7 22 150 NpG 
47.3 2..4 115 NBG 
18.0 2.3 50 Repay loan from am 

212,9.1 

••••••••••••• • 

25 
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ri so !ac  as 71e ccr.t s.natenoicers •Nno would accear :o :e r.orr.ir.ees !cr :r 
.! 4 

c...;ncernea. iwnos j of nelr anc sucsecuent :ucs::icccr.s :c( :eer 
funoeid by cr.soursements :cm Sancs:crm. 4tost nave :en ,t.:ncec frcm ncrr.:na•te^ :1X1 

..,41acc:unis witn a few. ;:arUCany !ne earn./ ;980s. frcm ocner acz:unis. ::-.e
pool aCC:ur.[S. 

6.12 At 31 Cecerncer 1590 of m e tieen re-;•is:ered s ncic s. eigni 2c:ear :o ncic srlares 
nominees as oilc-ws: 

Possible nomine-es: 
4 

ta‘glarn 

Fulaij • 
: -Shorafa 

t Masmq 
t H.amrnoud 

A • Naomi 
- Ktaiit -AF1 

Jawnary 

—0-
- - 

.Ctrme sra.tenotcers 
. , • 

Corperaucn 
ADLA 

Khalita 
ev,Sh Zayed 

C afford 
R AJtman 

- 
. • . 

No Cl 
Share • 

L:an :zrz.r.ca 
3 7 

36.493 126 i.70 
25.439 92 2E2 
28.74-8 9.9 2'.0 
27.9.86 9.7
182C0 6.3 79 
16.824 5.9 ;do . 
13_250 4 6 113 

1.46.5 0.5 6 

58.6 

9.3 

7.410 25 
19.141 6.6 
28.741 9.9 
13:994 11.8 

2.195 0.8 
1.197 0.4 

92.578 32_1 

'1ota1 issued Zares 289.120 100 

.The shares held by Burford recresent the snares reourcnasea trom Sh KInalid tin manfouz ur 
e terms of a buy-back agre-ement normnaity with Masnnq and guarance-ed ty Sancstorm 

Overseas. This repurchase was erfe-c:eo througn paymenrs to Manfouz mn Cc:ccer 1989 anc c: 
June 1990 totalling approma:ety 5;90 million. funded ty S Nacm horn vancus sources. 



; . 

-I ' 

a

• ; 

The imounrs Peen Palo. a;:r.oucn 1.1 fcr snares. were cePitep •0 new 
'acc:Punts manrouz.s name. Gyen ine mer.c :v wricr: LnLs recuror:asa was .trteo:ec. - 

t - 
- • oeracie uncertainty as ;0 T-e Cenenc:ai :f ;re snares in %,,,Er!'"Z •egistueciri

name of Burloro xt.nougn we uncers:ar.c ;cat s:zos .-ave Pen e initiaiea :0 :-:ans:er ne na
4-• e Ceoartment of Pr&ate tfairs as ocrnper‘.sat:cn :cr a ,-;iacament aosoroec info Treasury 

- 
• ---• - years ago. 

:6.15 The above 'can baiance reconc:!es to re arncur.;s :aicen over by CPmcany A as 

S m 

t 

Loans as azove 
Aanam Corporauon 
WXYZ Cebenture 
Total to be assigned to C-Pmparry A 

t-kx-ninee arrangemerrts - 

1.417 
15 

.......M•M••••••••••••• 

A 16 The eviCence of tne nominee reiaocrsnips vanes P,t.i ypcaJy incluces one or more ct t10 
7; •" todcwing: 

s*:!, • - • 
• -± • Hold narmless leners , 

* - Signed but Wank snare transfer .. - --
t

•  
. Sgned but undated ana Clan?: -ccrlic‘Fay notes 

Share deposit agre-ements 
Letters or agreements governing edsc cn cC WXYZ snares  •. ••• 
Powers of Attorney 
Agreements covtnng re payment cf re-es to snarencicers. • 

,z -•‘-.1• . • - 
--is.These documents are onen Ln re name cf Fcrx C\erseas or Hoicings. aibeit scrneomes sign( 

S Nagy,. The erfec: of ese arrangements essenna:ry appears to be r at e acccunt noic 
7..41 were incernruPed against any liability tar re loans :u nave no enonement :o any ;:rcnts 

• ....4= trom
ac-

ie uncerrytng nvesnen in WXYZ. 
• 5 

r 

6 i nornine-e snarenolders appear to na,:ie recervec :es n respec: of reir seneices. cnry somi w 
• 

wtir-n we been a te to trace: 
: ‘.• .. 

—.,-;•FutaA 

r•,‘ 

,4* 
Si Sharci 
; 

••:. 

t!:7 

t10.( 

• e- cc. 
• , 

• 
M Hammoud 

S100.003 pa 15.86 • 19E9 
Sc5C6,000 on 23 August 1940 

S3CO.CCO on 5 Augt..zt 19e5 
S341.00 pa VI 15,5.5 1990 

S,503.000 in Augtzt 15E4 
V....5[0,C00 pa in 196.5 • 1990 
$111,C00 pa in 1S•88 • 1990 
$42.CCO in 1990 

Si to S2 million pa for use of Ns rz-ne for Treasury traCing purpo:ses 
(uncorroboratec) 
515 million fl Jury 1987 (Source not iceno(ec) 

S1 mdlien pa :n 19E6 • 1990 (uvrcorrccora:ec) 



• 

acC;cn. 2ay1Tents ot S1.5.8rnihon nc SO.! million :esoecoveN /Jere :alp :c .:arnat 

Azr.am anc Naomi. uCOCS&Ct fl consice:aticn 'or 7eir C.çiral subsccticn 

WXYZ :ode-a uo nferest. ncrwichslanoing 3t ne ::nunueo to ce eg:s:ereoIn 

names. 

Usz of WXYZ ac...-untcs °net purpcs. 

c 
-620 Seancs:orrn management nave usec ire secunty orferec by tne ,rre5.men in WXYZ. as a me 

to: 

(1) Ciscurse kinCs for totaity unrelated purposes. in paroculat to aciust unreiatec :can 
accounts to avoid tne nee() to ;X:OK provisions. 

(2) generate suostanoa1 amounts of ficotious ncoma to ennancs Sancstorrns reconed.prc 
k 

'1 

- 16121 . This has teen faclitatect by ne fact at ine irrvestment nas inc:eased in value aver acne. 
. • allowing caoacty for exua loan cravvcowns mace pcs.sxte because Me account ncicers were 

I . iiciemnineo against any 'facility for tne loans. In acciton a sucstanoal numcer of new snai-e-
L - were tssuec by way of ngnts issues at net asset value nerecy prcAcing excess zorrowng 

• 
Y•tncrl was zuso uUliSeC3 for otr.er purposes. 

• 
Ar The total amount of loans. sucpcseoly..sectreci al\ne snares of WXYZ. ai 29 Cecemcer 1990 

• ,,..:11 tne OK:ye Pate at wnicn ney were transfre d..trac cmparry A ty means of a sup-caroc:Paz 

I
•,.. - 
)J--z.agreement co.nc:ucea on Z2 May 199%-cf Sl..45. 'biliricn. notec aoove. was mace uc as follows 

 rn

‘ ...4 E  i ty caoital subscnocor.s reiaong to 
11 

s-. 
-44-=porninee snarenoicers 307 

T
' :/ -i-ipther WXYZ capita! contntuucns .29 ,..., 

i 

P.1

• . ;.! . 
Ai l .,,*. 

;eryicing of non WXYZ loan accounts 
Set-N.4=g interest on external t>oacyongs 57 
otner cisbursements 89 

&s: receipts from non WXYZ accounts (214) 

34.5 

r 

" terest anC account c..-.afges 

S31 

573 



4,
-:" ',,t..s !ar as Ene WXYZ exccsures 'Ner e ::.-.c.,rr.ec. :v vin:Je or -ne nominee .3rrzncerr.e^.:5

tnat Sands:cm neid .1;gne0 snare c•ces.t ec:eements ano :rans:2! :e s. ::-..e
, :- • .,_ 

sfs-ere te-garcea as 2 Gov or sr...-.•_mry min .: :. Lent .nron7ai :::::: ciecgir.c or

-:111•_-_.,;.\.. again sucporting cne yleir inac tne snares were neio ir1 a ncrninee ocC3C:7?. 

5/4 v:.  Non WXYZ Cisoursements may be anarysed try bcrrc, ...,•er as !;-_:tc-,-es: 
-1--:-1- : • 

,. :.'7--: • 

ii4 s, 
Sh }Carnal ACharn 
Faisal Futaij 

snazqi 
Siorata 
AR ?<Pahl 
Sh Naomi 
Hamrnoucl 
Jawnary 

r; • . 

These wee Cisbursed as follows: 

iztment of non WXYZ accounts 
1:*.ipayment of SNC3 loan 

;,..091payment of SNC3 loan 
45:ie_Payment of SNC3 loan 

Fiepayment of SNC3 loan 

;Various 
-m•-a 

June 19E5 
Sect 1990 
Cc: 1990 
Cc: 199C 
Cc: 1990 

Srn 

15.5 
161.4 
26.0 
130.5 

47.0 
25.0 
12.0 

0 

!n 

$ m ^C!.x__E_N•wer 

191 VallOuS 

53 Shcraia 
128 masnna 
120 ;-"tilaj 

78 &tasnnq 

4 

5-99 

--̀ M"let.aclustments in 1965 oc.:-..:irreo in Tie pencx1 25 - 2'3 June wnen arnounrs totalling 5191 milk 
oc-f1/41-) i Cie names of Khaiil. Stiorata. Fulail, Shard! and Naomi logetner witri acicibonai 

-,.11.1jkOunts drzwn dossn in ne account:s of Tie Ruler of Dubai (S 25 million), Sri Sharoi (S10 murior 
y?el SOCC (S-5 mfllion), wee paid to Hasnini Shaikh ( 9 million) to adjust a numoer 0 Gulf 
Gr.oup aoc.ounts and to Z Akbat (5142 million) to adjust vanous Treasury pool acccunts. 
NotwitAstanCing at itlese crawcowns hao not.ning to co wan torrowers toncemeo. 
ContiLrmaacn erlers of account balances cor.cnued to be receNed ty us as auCitcrs. 



' • .` SeoreznaerrOc=er '.9S-0 :our :cans :otalfir.c S 17,,iiicrl NS ere :awn ,n me names 

ctft2in :f the WX'.-7 r.:,orrcwers :o 'ecay !cur ": ars ::.evicus g:anrec y 5NC3 :o Sanc.s:crn 
wrilcm not ce-en procerry autncrisec. 7- es e were r.cr recorcec in me 2.0OKS 

tac ne-en usea o servic venous z.:ancs:crm can 3c::unts derween Ufv S86 anc Acril 
were in cart sec-Jre-a on 2,01-'. or tne snares .n wr:7 ardo casn collateral ;raced witn 

• 1Catvairi. Norwinstanding .flat tne !Linos otzcza i1fl SNCS were tr.ere as secunry for nese 
Sancstorm management reoresentea CO these were :one rice Panx placement: 

-- -.Nsfucn we•e confirmed as sucn to us y SNC3. 7-1•:e collusion or 5NC3 ana its owner Sheou 
Z.,r1,Khalpa n Manfouz cne trauc dude:fatal° cn Sanos:crm accears :o nave oeen a mac( fa 

"In allowing rt to go uncetectea. 

kilefeSI ard charges 
• 

tete-31 was levied on the accounts at troaCty cornmer&-al rates (1.5%.10 2.7"; over US:3 l.2( 
and in acciton, to Occst income runner, significant management crarges and fees were also 

These totailed some 5150 malion in the eignt years to 31 Cecemoer 1990. and to gm 
the aopeafancel at Cie nominee snarenoicers Were agre-eatte to Ue orarges. lerters craned 
Imran Imam incicaang acceotance were penociczty octaineo ano provlaeo to the auoitors. 

744:,:iTle LOU/ inccme poogea in re-spect of e WXYZ loan account was $573 rnilUon and Cs al 
S (nateriai sum to Sandstorms purported protitacility aver the fast cecaae. if it is touno nat 

e bank does have a benenc:ai interest in nera.?"--ei.c. s. classiricaucn of the Oalance_s as kans anc 
„nactyance.s would not Oe accrooriate arxi:atterriatiN. accounong 7eaornent would 'de recuirec: 
4;7;14 5-r • 

.1. 
,•••• ••••• 

SarxiS.crn Perscrnet 

trcl cNer the WXYZ acccunrs was exerc:sec oy $ Naqvi :ram Lancon. wno cce:rnined 
es to wr4cn the vanous loan acoounts were out. Nac-vi informs us that it was not unul 15& 

Ina( nese accounts were manicuiated (Cr otner ourooses. 

-:(4sfyir Naqvi was initiaity ass:sted by Z Aktar anC. !Tom imran Imam wno exerc:seo con; 
,* 
.O.ver 7)(5 accounts on a aay :o day oasis ana initnied marry of the fraucuient uans:ers of :tinc 

: took entnes. tn acciuon because of Fonc's invcrvement in 'Pe nominee reiaoonsnics ana - 
.kecuent transfers of loan alances cerween Sancs:crrn ana Fork, -Mr HM Kazrni was c:csery 

Ctnerwise. there Ls no c:ear evIcence 'hat tne other start wno were invorvea in grvinc 
receng instruczons. were aware of tne true nature of the accounts or Sancstorms 

,:7reaportsnip with the account molders. 

l:rte boaowers pro,ACed aucit conrirmaocns nciever it is ncw c:ear that hold narrnles. t.• 
k A ,.....krters were also Oesoatoneo, aix3 at 'Pere was an crcneszatec1 acemot Cy the senior -

management of SahCstorm, with the co:fusion of maicr customers and a third party Oank. to 
.•ciecerve the audtcrs. 

Ir • 

_c 

••1  • 

; 

t• 
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.SEMON 7: • ,UHR :: FIDED DE?0SfTS • 7in1131.71)/E=D AND OTHERS 
- 

ionoteiyae;:i 

reladonsrlio wan TumoleNe-ea gates pack to ne tate 19703 wren ir.ter panx 
°Lances were taken oy OVerseas Eg-ipcan crancnes. NAThen in 1S8.2 C\erseas scic its 

.c7n-es to nes . iy formed affiliate. BCC Misr. e sale cia not nc:uce tne ifans:er ct 
' oteweec ce CC SItiS of s171 million as its stze wouia nave given local cacitar aceoacy 

oclerns. and because Turnoic-ACOC wanteo more conncenoanty. Acccrcogry, the 
cements were Cransterre4 to Grand Cayman. artrtougn tne customer rerationsnio conunuec 
be maintarnea by BCC Misr. The ceasing operation in reiaton to Tumcieweea was 

performed at BCC Misr by an emproye-e of Overseas. witn transactons nouried to Loncon 
..t.yeno determined the accounting to be effected in Grano Cayman. 

1,111e hattire of these transactorts was formalise-a in 1Se.3 wnen a conuact etween 
an Overseas was signed staung that nes e tunas were to be investec 

cbsrnmocites n .acoorcance W1LfI Isiamic Law. Altnougn pnces for spot purcnase ana 
fOrwara saie of cornmodites are arways cuotea on each deal we naye se-en no evicer.ce to 

.zsuggest at the bank actuary enterea any commocity concracs. Yielc.s equate to term 
-.•rdepoisits. 

We are tOlcl Clat there is an uncerstanci en Sancstorm ana Tumofeweec sucnrat f 
..Lit ofewe-ea neecs to witncraw tuncs.atshorrt*ce .11 can_Co so interest tree witncut 
breacing a cleposit. Al a later Cate Tirtit eg.‘%iil_recip_rocatis oy placing an Kul amcunt 

.;nt_efest tree for the sarne pe-noa. 71-ill.-. gr-eaernentj,vas aoparenoy pancutany benencai to 

.„ Turnblewe-ea in the Egyptan banking c ii 1 wnen two S20 milGon interest :ree 
• ,ae-posits were mace ana the Group arrange snicment ct acilats to Egypt to enacie 

- 
-1 • • iuntieweec to meet its customers neecs. 

?` - • 
- AJMougn the banking retatonsnio is suit maintained ty ECC Misr the account nas :en 

1_4 controlled. since the resignation of Z Aktar. y Mr S Neon's central team. Since '558 the 
•i. bank have emptoyea a former governor Cl Tumoieweed as a consultant at a retainer cr 
{ S75,000 per annum paid througn Fork. 

, 
7.5 • From the time that the account was trans:urea to Grano Cayman in 1S432. it appears :net all 

hinds from Tumbfeweca passea througn the Treasury Not accounts and were an integre] 
:r...a.p-art of the manipulation of tunas yyltrun Treasury up to the resignaoon of Z Akita: in 

February 1965. Over this penod interest papa to Tumcrew-cca on rts placements was not 
4 ,1 expensed but irtstead ciebited to trie sarne pool ac.counrs. From I Marcri 1966 secafate 

poot accounts foic att Turncteorteci transaczons were estattisneci. arthough as presnoLs.y. 
kiterest conOnued to be aeOited to the pool accc,unt rattier than the proftt ana loss account. i 

7.8 t:•• IrtitialTy on the cicisure of the Tr4!asury pool account it appears net an attempt was mace to • 4,  
reinstate- Tumciewe-ed's aeposJts. ana 5199 million was iniec:ed into the Tumoleweea 

laccount in August 1986 (from AJnes under management with Forx), although witrlo a few 
rnenth3 these halcs had again been L1oli5e<1 o sennce loans and maxe cenan payments. as 

. fotlaws: 

C. 
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iervic:ng or !cans •11.3 BC?, Fs‘tx 
ano SCC:.:. and cayrr.eni ci :nreres: 
On 00nCwocs :rOm ACLA an0 

in connec-Jon itr r!ourc:-.ase of 
snaies Ircm Sh Maincuz 

Cella EVIK Ca.110 - SOCC 

- Gir1 Group 

Repayment of a Fulaii WXYZ relate-a loan 

Repayment of CO's of Forx and Emirates 
tliseo• by Treasury 

Untracea items 
•.; 

t=i'• 

) 7

M• • 

:0 

14 

•••••••••••••.• 

199 • 
•IMENII•MI•lal••• 

7 i ... . . ,. "'t 

Y.:  T T  . . 
.-In reviemng tne Tumoleweec :oat acoarrr• — .5a nOteo a number of payments to reir.s:ate 

• - • .... 
1 -..f.i - •.:_ -'ocherwise unrecorced cetx.sas as follows.....--- i.,:•;•-• -,•.,,:„.'" 
I 7, •, . .-• . . •',.

-i -- 4 4, .- •State Banx of India 5.3 
18 
25 

5 • .c- „ 

1 ; .'i .-.,- N.ADCO 2 

..: 7.8--'f• . The balance on tne Tumciewe-ea acocunt in Gle booKs of Grand Cayrnan nas since 1986 • L . . 1 .. ; A•  .. .. flumated ::: erween $100 million overdrawn ano 5,0 million in vecit. We have been tcia riz ., • . . 
, • Me account was maniputated to ensure trial tne balance was zero or insigncant at 30 

I September and generaity at 31 Oecemcer eacn year in order to avoid it being cnosen for 
„ . confirmaton by tne external auditors. This was the case in 1986. 1987 and 1989. In 1988 . 
; .4. ..- balance of $11.3 million debit was c:rcutansed ana confirmed by Tumbleweed; but nis had 

.1. . again been manipulated to equal an interest tree placement Sandstorm had mace as part of 
• .; - rine bac.k-to-bacX arrangements. 

7.9: in analysing tne transaclorts be en Sandstorm and Tumbleweed over tne Last eight years 
we nave reviewvd over 3.CCO tIansactons and agre-ea nem to deaf slips (*.) telex
c.ontIrmations. In addrton, of Tie supposed 37 outstancing ceaLs at 27 September 1990 
connmlect to Mr Naqvi. we Rave traced Mt: by value to tne onginal receipt of tunas or ne 
list of deals Cransferreci at 31 Oc:co•er 19.81 

I t Saudi Arat-...an Fenoliser Corr.cany 
Oossary 

f..• • Minisz-y of Finance - Cameroon 

33 



1,/.141,1 cnere are unusual te3tureS aCcut :re Tur-nciewe-t'J aCZ:unt • .1 eccesr.-, ::,:m 
Tar.oleyie-ed tlnanc:al vatemer.cs Ina( same or 10(al aSsetS are plOCV:: 

•sinavorm, a.n0 Scrne £170 murion re!aces sac:( sle•1282 • it saes ascev r t r.ere .5 a 
signa5canc Etazility to Tumotewe-ea •Nnicn as not seen rec CeC ifl ne bcckis. We harve•nccc 

t• 
ireceried csnfIrmaoon from Tumoieweed of outstancing 7ansaccris ac 31 CeCerr•Ser !9S•Ci 

4w:taring $-353 rnd6on in .US Collars no( reccrCeZ ne booKs ano S 2.9 million n orneri 
encies yen /an are leccrced n the 000k.5„ 

f. • 
Fiarirly 

1:fr - F3ussainftJ Hartny and his csmoany. NACCO. have been long standing customers of 

T -Sandstorm since 19e2. The reiauonsnip nas Peen managed by 6ahrain brancn altr.ougn mat 
r ` hinds were booked in Grano Cayman. and insd-ucxns to roil-over or repay CCOOsas nave 

usuay been sent o1rec7y from Al Nanny to Lonoon Iwnicn enuty). 

1i-1-..?. , „..,-,. 7. ./!,-171hese acoo.unrs were roiled over ano pro .•.:t. i.;r,tec3 tor from June 1966 unol :....1 .. 

r
ij -SititerniDer 1287 wnen S6.5 muricn was tra-m'eirecr o C:ecit SLILs.se aria nen onto Grand 

i 2 . ... 
... T.1..O..zyman: ZS million was used to rer:,a bicsu oan in #.1.1 Hartrry's name wnicn naa been 

'24 : .. iuseal to repay borrowings tram Forx crawl in an attempt to reinstate m e Tumsieweed 
ac.r.:ouncs. The remaJning 5.9 million was san ot an amount of 512 million credited to ne . - 

: `.;--t .; ,.zi itrrnoleweita acc%sunt to recuce me acssunt balance at X Seatemoer 1967. Having utdisec) 
.: L. -'1111.e-se Oeccsits certain part repayments to Al tianny in Novemper 1987 had to be runced by 

Me c:eadon of overoratt accounts in Gard Cayman wrion were subsequency repaid by 

• . 411 

to March 198.5 Al Hanrry's deposits appear to have been credited to the TreasLry pool 
=cum. When recalled boon pnn-Ccal ana interest were aeoited to tne poct accsunt. It 

would appear nat re llacility for sucn deposits was eranguisned with Me excepocn of nree 
51p0Sts. wnicri were recreated in Grano C4rnan in -tune 1966 foilawing ekkaars resicnaoon 
Ind nig c..sure of the Treasury poor account. The rec:eauon of re-se oecosits totalling 
approximaivi $.52 million appea.rs to nave Peen acnievea by using tunCs managed bv Fon( 

e.stmenos. 

- tunc.s from Fork enooes. 

A131 Oecemcer 1990 the 

••:- .1... 
-Tetr.m deposit 
‘ Ttg.rt oepcsit 
::Terrn oepos1 
.• •: 

• . 

batances on tr.e tnree acpounts in question were: 

$ m marvrrty 

,....... 1 15.7 15.5.91 
2 27.3 08.1.91 
3 9 5 06.3.91 

.f.25 

• 
7.15 . (An were (cued • over] on ma nty. ano nave now been confirmed by the customer. 
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ervec.traea aer:Cs.Ts 

The:remaincer of ne unreccrceo cepos:rs :eocnec 
fodows: 

_ 
Cr GR Pnaraon 
Cooennelmer 
BCP 1.1%ernoourg 
kat, UvestooK Co. 

Motawa 

Cr GR Fnaraon 

:o :yMr .c:at are mace as 

16.6 
3.5 
5.3 
02 

42_1 
•••••=••••=.... 

This account purvonecty rcates to a aecosrt uiaanrain Cy Cr Pnaraon in Ant sag 7*.e 
11.0C3 eing recervec from EAU. wnicn was suosecuenuy vans:erre-a to an acocunt at BCP . 

4---. -Geneva via First Arnencan. (Account nc.scertr*Qcwil. A turner 512 million was 
:transferrea for an unknOwn punoose :clva Turkz- a-oo CaJcos Company. Norm Arnencan . • 

Finar.ce ancl trivesunent. concrotleo b%:i Mr rook. 

4itsAs ye( we have been unacte es:atitra iv& '.r.e tank nas an unreccrcea 
•:.. .. respec: of nese cransacxns. 

"..Oppenneimer 

Ta9 :•:-.:This potential liaoitity acoears to relate !o a tiacility of or (C\erseas) to Cccenne:mer in 
ti kT ;,,r 5 or c: cf certain repo transacons. In total tnrougn a ccmclicatea senes cf t'arsaccons 

apparenuy source-c from Cocenneirner (515 million). as atxaie. ana Turncleweea 
. (520 minlon). passed 7irougn SOC: to K.IFC0 (S10 motion) ano a Fon( rcunng ac:ount at 

--7 • SNCE.., (.125 motion). an nas most prooacry been useo for loan serviclng. 

Milst nere appears to be a Eatility to Copenneimer .t Cy r.o means clear yeiener a 
i s clacility Cl Sanastorrn or Fonc 

5 • 
CCP 1.....aemtpuf

721 

g 

This arr.ount relates to an (...-2fCfaseefl account in .he name of Fcrx C\emeas. wnion cesorte 
. narne aPpears to nave be-en usea as a 'pooting' account witnin the Sancstorm Group. 7,1 
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. _ 
7.23 
7f:'' •-• • 

• 
' • • 

f7 •-• 

‘724 

ZT 

: 

ikl• • 

•!. . 

, • 
The tziancs Pus 

, 

Fork accour.t 
600 at SNC3: 

interest 

relates :o untuncec u s cns: 

!Lints uans:errec to recuc° .ors 
at Fork Overseas 

tunas use to reoay a cetcs1 tr 
C18 acceotea Oy I8U ana plac°0 wItn, 
Fork Holaings 

tunas transtertea to Forx Hoicings 
ana suoseauentry routed to Sauci 
Cairo Barx, Je an acoarenuy to — 
service loans inPe name cf 
Karn.ai AcharT1 

2:0 

5.0 

20 

0.6 

.• ••••IMIS 

Again whilst t i3 c:ear :pat uncs fromunis- tCP account nas teen °Liolisec' !or unaurr.onsec 
purposes it is ty no means c:ear wnet.n.e.r.- th ity iS soiery at of Sancstorm. 

kat) tiveszocx Company (ALSC3) 

This amount relates to a ceccsa y ALSC.0 in Ear.ran, wnicn was *uplisec for or.er 
purposes. Aitnougn tne arncunt was SuCseQuentry reins;aleO tills was cone using %.telcs 
from Fork's c0.01 account 5N:C witn SNCS. hence it accears :Pat Lr.ere is ary unre-ccrcec 
Ilacalty it Ls to Forx. 

M hictawa 

This Ls a anorner F..anrain cecosit wnicn was 'uulisec° or (Diner purposes. 
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SECTION 3: ...i•-UNRECOROED :,EPOSITS • :SL 11C 3,1;IXING 

- 
.Sanestorm SA would seem to nave commencer:, ls;amic banxing 2c:Nities :n its UK ;ecicn c 

benait of certain ;slarnic c...istomers n..:une 19E4. t - oat 3c ty isoelievea tO 'ia•ve peen low 
fthucing to a level of afounc S(5JJ million at ire orne nat e c4.;rrent re-coros comrnencea in 

May ISE. Thereafter vciumes grew significantry anc trcm .anuary 1989 all ',hese 
• s 

--; t • • - transzctions nave been routed through a separate !stung: Sanxing Unit C!EU7). Al its peax 
at me ena of 1989 amounts placea wItn IEU by Ls:zinc customers or l arnc 

• icrvestrnent Vansacoons totallee some 51.4 iilicin ecurvaient in seven aitferent currer.c:es. ; 

The mcst common type or Islamic tanking insm.iment is a Murabana deal. This irrvcrves the is
of a commodity ano the imrneciate sale of at cbmmoorty wIth Ceterrec1 receipt cf 

ie sale proceeds for a penoC aeterminea by r e t amicortomer. This eliminates any rlsx 
I s • 

pertaining to holding ne commodity and leaves ne c.st of tne deterred payment to generale 
• • a rugnef seding pnce r an purcnase price. Not surprisingly tne manc up usualty bears a 

• r_i•;" • • retationship to prevailing interest rates. There is a nstc to me isiamic customer at the 
Is ccunterparty will not pay on Tie cue cate. however it se-erns common pracica tor me isiamic 

• cu.itomer to seek to vole this as wed by ootaining a berm guarantee/tenet or crecit securing 
t •• : e recovery of tunes. 

:1 - 
-'• Sa=toem's approac.i to Ls43.aw ).-c• 
•-• 

8.3 A.11 tunes received by Sar.cstorm SA frbrrrtstanic--.c.,:stcrners for invescrnent purposes are 
acoliea in cne manner outline() accve acxlgi as agent aria tor tile vast 

• magcnty of Vansaccons ine necessary guarante-e sprowied by Sancstorm SA. By issuing a 
guarantee Sancstorm innerits We risk or countercarly failure. To avoid alis Sancstcrm 

▪ uncenakes ;wo h.,rther cbmrnocity ceais. the mirror image or those undertaken on Penal( or 
tne tslamic Cus:Cmer. ruS cancelling •.r.e forwara saie cransaccons with (Crwarc.purchase 
transacons. The resulting tree tunes are r en cn ciacea aLnn tne BCC GrOUP. arfiliateo 
enoties or on tne money markets to earn a rate or interest at least ecua1 to tne guaranteea 
mark-up for ;Pie pence of the onginai cererrea payment pence. . 

; • 
8.4 The elect of SanCs:orm's own commocity deals ana on placement of funcs can grve tne 

Elp ;_._.•; • •  impresson that the wnole transaccon is no more nan one of taxing deposits from nese • . 
- Islamic customers, but tnis is /lot tile case In rescect of the Islamic customer Sancstorm Ia 

actee as investment manager. As pnnc:pai it has •L .sue-c] a guarantee and c...7verecl Me risk t-y 
' entering into iLs own ocritrao with brokers and making rratcning pLacements. Problems hav€ 

arlsen however on ale accounting for transaccor.s uncertexen by Sandstorm as pnncoai. 

• 1 
• • • Funds pieced ovrsdie the BCC Group 

• 
.8.5 The majority of tunes on placed by lE3U went to Sandstorm (Overseas) in Grand Cayman or . • 

branches withIn UK Region. However. between 1968 and 1990 tunes were on placed by UK 
Region with oc.ner atnliated Sancstorm enuCes. 
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, 
• 

:Ow e it 

T ij isirW; 115 

• 

UK manag'ement iruttaity :ntorrnea :hat all :nese oinef ;:acemer,:s kere ctr.e %vim Fcrx
• (0-iersea);: y reterence :o tnstruczons :Tom S NecNi rec.:arcing an overall leye: :lacarne 

identified tor nis irls:Ituuon or some 50 :o SIC0 mittion. There ts nowever no y„Tirten evicE 
relating to a-us instn,o:on. We nave !stacusned :net placements were aiso mace _n to 

controilea eitner Dy FOrX Hvaings. ;r 3CZ: Sad-Jain. cn cenait ot Forx Hacincs.
•••• management say tnat iney were not aware of tnis. The 2cczunts in cuesoon are reoresent 

; by Mr KazrnI to ce FC(X. Hoteings c:tent accounts. arcett uncer ne conuct of S Naqvt. 
"e^:3": • 

• - 8.7 . . The tcflowIng amounrs were receNea from istamtc cus:crners ac on place° by UK Region 
with Fork (Overseas), FOAK Hotc,ines ana SCZ," Sanrain at 31 Oecemoer 1989 ana 31 
December 1990: 

Fork (Overseas) 
Fork Hofelnes 
BCC Banraln lot Fork Hcie:nes 

Total 

• Functs ptaced VrTtn Fon( (Overseesj• 

Pacemenrs win Forx (Overseas) o ,dneing at 31 Cecemcer 19a9. were Cone 
VOugn tne ttanster ct tunes Item a UK Ree:cn nos:To account to a numeer ct 
acc-sunts by Fon( (Overseas) at BCC Grano Cayman. Altnougn no conrirrnaDon 
was recervea trom Fork (Overseas) wnen tne *nes were placea, Sanastcrm SA UK 
Regton noufiec tilts Lnstrtuucn ct re trans:ar ot :unes an terms et e placements. 

31 Dec.emcer 
1s.e9

S'OCO 

46.5;2 
50.485 
20 Ca) 

31 Ce-cemcer 
iciso

CIS 

12s$e 84.451 

Furcs Owed Viltn Fork Soleirgs 

The make uo of re runcs recervec from Islamic customers wnich were succoseety 
placed Mt) Fork Holengs, \min Interest to 31 Cecemcer 1990, were as follows: 

Pacemert Cate 

Al RaI Banking and 
irvestrnent and Urporaocn 16.1.90 

interest 
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0.8 

10.8 



- r . 

Oatai1.vamic ar 

.)7 3.90 = 

3.3 
12.3.90 3.1 
25.2.90 .L a 
'pretest 

22..3 

Dubai islarnic Sank 

27.122.9 10.0 
01.3.89 :0.0 (Note) 
Interest 2.4 

34.3 

_HOC 1: arhil Atre_aitic 1.1 cel,„).000,3 ac ELLA len wrIV3rr et cla•CilA 7.411 "'VI 2CP u.aarrzotac.. 

Amounts placed •mtn Forx HciciNgs were.i ally mace In Oecemcer 1989 fcr 
of an account numcer 10145.8.5X _ Jai Naocnai Commerce Bank. Sa,nrain. ThLs 
a c:ient acPpunt peionging to Forx Holdings. 

Furuler amounts1oaing S2.5.4 million were ;Laced nrcugn this accpunt in..:anuary 
1990 and Marc., 1990. We understand :hat no :unner t:r--.Cs were placed via *.nis 
acccunt atter Marcn 1990. 

UK =egicn did not c-larirm these piacemenrs 'Mtn Fork Holcings cc receive any 
cont.:mamas from them. 

Fork Holdings defaulted on trio repayment of ail placements due in May 1990. ,'une 
1990 and October 1990. The onginat Istarntc irryestrnents to wriicn these placements 
were malaned ,..yere repaid by UK Region to Caul: Islamic Bank. Al Raihi Banfung 
lny-estment C.orporatIon and OuPai tslarnic Bank on the aporopnate due dates. Tc1aJ 
funds outztanclIng as a result of the non repayment from Fork HoipIngs (pnnc:pal plus 
interest) amounted to S(84jmi11ion at 21 December 1990. We uncecscanci that these 
arnourrts 11,T43 not been repaid by Foci.; Holdings to date. 

gnots placed sMth BCC Bahrain 

Three depositz of $10 million each wt)ich were ptacel via BCC Bahrain in Marcn 198-9. 
These amounts were roiled over monthly to matcn the montnty roil over of the 
undertying tslamic investment. However, wtlen repayment was caned in Oc.cCer 1990 
the tunas were not fortPccming. Once again the original Islamic investment was repaid 
Iona-min.. Total furs of S ( ) millicn remains outstancing to Sandstorm SA UK 
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Feegion at 21 Secemcer 1?.SO. Ve uncers;ana nese amounts rave nor :e21:eczic 
date. 

75- - 
inaccropnateness of 7e cn dizcomer.ts i:ork Croicircsianc 3enrzin .s 

•••,: emOrtasised by re fact rat tri e manager or !BU ;S Conal WInne la or maniculate-a 211 tra( 

*-1 parry corifirmaacrs from ts:amic re:aung to :nese nansecnons Tom ;ne exiernat 
4,1 s a uci I c rs at the time of ris 31 Cecemcer 19-8-9 aucit or UK ;:;ecion. A :otai value of 5zo.5 

million. The UK General Manager informs us riar e nao no )(no-wedge Cl rs an /nal s 
Cora must nave Ceen ciearty taxing r4uuccict-ts from S 

Applicaticxi of certain on ptacerna-rts 

Funds on placed to BCC Gr' and Cayman or Fork {Ove(seas) were usually put in a deposit 
account in En e name of Ire onginai LS.aIThC C-L;SIOmef wno had provided e funcs for 
irryestrnent. in some cases however it seems trIat cne on plaments win Grano Cayman 
were mace into deposit aczounts of certain thud party customers. Those deposit accounc 
were Oen held out to de re deocsit security tor cenzin loars made to those third parry 
customers. in re rwo instance-s Mal have been icemned re third party wno 't>enerirted° 
from this Cece000n was the Want Group with false loan sect.:nly of S 17 million. 

Destr1a6dn of Funds 
.t. t 

18.,10 2".The amount of S3.0 million on-placed YrittrECC-E3 rain :Ls believed to have been cransferred 
an acccunt win Credit SuLsse; (antrlpieir5Protiatry orwaros to SNC8 account 5C101. 

• Otherwse ail ne one( amounts were I -aide:yea it-g9i the SNC3 account 500 in the name of 
•- • Fork Hoicings and we have c:.-,nfirrned -s_tpcj. rence to Pan): statements. "chis is one of 
. Vie accounts uncer ttle conroi of S Na qvi nis central team used for re purposes of 

fraudulently rounng tunas. 
t. 

;8411 Mr Karmi of Fork acknowledges tri at the ilifICS were rece.rve-d througn e SNC3 acodunt of 
- For( Holdings Outas thev were nen routed Pack to Sandstorm or etsewnere on re 

instructions of Mr S Nacvi, cces not Detieve trial Fork has any liability to Sandstorm UK 
Region in respect of Mese amounts placed by 16U. - 
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FL 

The iunas accear to nave then teen utilise,: Nacvi anc his :.ezm 2S f:::ICwS: 

Sh Ka:naf Aaham - amount usea as :ecayment

January 1990 c( a .1-5.5 (radian loan 

in the name of K.amai Acnam n ccnneccn 
wit)-1 WXYZ_ 

interes: on nominee loans at SNC3 in .re 
names of Mashria Holdings 

FaisaJ Fulaij 

" i iliese- bans Were securea Cy a placement from - 
-- Sanastorm win SNC8 an eiare :o 

t -s- finan.-••.ne, of WXYZ snares. 

• 
.U4T Ptjrcase of snares from Fors( Founancn ano 

Fork Staff Benefit Fund in tile name of 
am as nomine-e. — 

• 1 --
--Transferred via Foil( anci SC? to Bantam •-t-• t. 

7 •-• 'repay interest and proc:oai on Qnrecolded. 

r. deposal. 

L 5-77.1 
r ':-...•., ,,, • r. ...• ..e.t.--f . 

I 

I: 7:1 i-3- •V 7. -a:  ." .4  '• 

,1 -. 1 •-: 

Ir ........ T .. . ar;ous servicing of loans wirrun BC? 
•••:' -4 irid Fork (not yet cxx-r000rateo). 

) 1 -- tkr...": t . 

1 t • I. . : :: .:i,.. , • C (purpose as yet unknown). 

.2.. "-:“.t- Quq.C.yOup • apparently transterreci via 
1: -,Giarlite and Cedar h Marcn 15-59 

— 
- 

$ r t yet oorroOorated). 
;V. • 

- 4 

A 

• • 
:r 

F .• : KarnMOUCI .k an sermang ot account in 
"C•a;KLs(orm Cyprus h Marcn ; 

-t 
; .gtalance - used generally in SNC8 500 account 17.8 

pool utilised Cry Sandstorm and Fem. .d. 

812 

••••• 
3 

6.4 
6.1 

1.ii•MMON.1••••• 

Sh Eanretn 4.0 
ALSC.0 1_2 
AJisson Et 2.1 

115 

( 
30 

7.3 

7.7 

10.6 

11.5 

3.0 . 

11 
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Since nowever cenzin parts of Da series of transac:cns are actuaity onginatea :y 

Sandstorm, namery its awn commocity Ceals ana on ptacement of tunas. *J-Le accrconate 
accounting treatment Ls to reflect a Cue to brokers cecit :.alance anc a placement Ceoit 

b-al ar,c e 

Ac-_-inong tor T.71.11.S.GC:Cr.s 

riCr to Auces: 1990. uK Region 3t *.ne :•=r7mcciry 

nvesunenrs as if Lriey zc:e.: as z;enc 3no of :he series et Lranzamons 
reitectec on balance sreet. The on piacerrenis :o .23(ano Cayman, L< Recien anc 
(C\erseas) were re:let:eo .n e acc:nts :r.ose entities as :hire party oeces.ts tamer :r 
oua gouo CCoos;ts. 

..1 14 8.1;i'

01'..--, ••:: 
,.-.,3 • 

i- 

-.- . . 
Sandstorm S,-\'s accounts for Me year encea 31 Decemcer 1989 Me acprccriate 

.., accounting treatment was retlec:ea for ),Lrlown Starnic investmenrs on placed in Grand 
Cayman. UK and Forx (Overseas). However this was not me use in me UK Region's ow 

!.".•-•'' ananca1 re,-.—orcs ana returns. 

.7,v.• • 
Since August 1990 UK Region nave reflectea c:ecit ana Cecil balances in rescect of !s:arn 
banking transacoons on placed to me aoove locations aimeugn me creel( nas been 
iaenonea as a aeposit rattier man a cue • , s;

Dict-4- zre in tne Prudermal Returrs1 — 

' Prior to Al.igust 1990 

AS a conseauence of UK Rec-,ion's accounting policy wnicn treatea ail aszects of LsLamic 
banking as off-balance she-et except :or tunas on biacec to UK Region. me prucencai 
returns suornitecl by UK Region to Tie Sank of Engiana cunng this pence snowed a 
signilicant unaerstatement of assets anc iiacilities. At 31 December 1969 for exarnote asse' 

.wee unders ed by 8C24 million cue from banks and liatillities uncerstatea y 8C2 
million due to brokers, artnough as noted above aciusrrnent was made in ne legal account 

1._;11-77: -.1- of 
n 

Sandstorm SA. In accition 5176.3 million of deposits snouia nave be-en ctassified ouE 
. t z to brokers (being amounts recerved and used wimin Me UK Region itserf).'. 

; • 
Ftcxn August 1959 

In August 1990. at our asstence management decided to transfer Me enore pordetio of 
ilvitsarients trom Islamc customers into one books of UK Region except for 'wryest:merit:5 
%titian ylefe actually he'd by brokers arid guarante-ea by tnirc1 parry stancty letters of a eait 
(1e genuine?), orf-balance snett). In practice MS soil excluded Me transacoons that had 0e-e+ 
On plaZed witn Fors< Hoir'- gs and BCC Sanrain and two ocher amounts on placed witty Baru 
01 New York. London and Nederiandscne Middenstancs bank NV, London. The impact on 

me prtiCenctal returns was a continuing but smaller uncerstatement of assets and EacilitIes 
wnich a.1 31 Decemoer 1990 amounted to S 105.9 million and a mLsc1assi6cadon cf S 441,4 
mdaon as deposits ratner an Cue to brekers at tile same came, in aciaidon, because of 
tr*.r rat_mIcapon as deposits ne istarnic customers wItn the four largest aggregate 
ir-N-esnents were aiso csoiesed in me 37 return as Cecositors with mcre man of tctai 
Cepcsi-ts. ' 



The ;mounts czacza %vim •(-:olcings arz BC:".: 17arJatn imcuntmo 
^e-c!mcer 1990 were corr..loDy reriectec . e :cc xs Aecion :rcm 'Aaron *.SG• 
.zunc :oratrin s m:iticn :laced %vim 7.vo .n5:ItuuCns nctec accve 1:e not s   g 
reflected in me cooKs ot 

A.c...o:-.A:n,orxj Ice ne sncct ai n re9ayment ot enrs

The a:counting eccolea !or me sncrt:all of Lr.cs was ?yen more in accrconale. ..":.atner 
recognis.ng a aect trcm Fork (HetC;.ngs), UK Regton t... ea loan accounts oceneo to AI I 
Bar ing investment Cdrporaoon ar,d Qatar tslamic Bank to 'disguise' ne (coercing of 
amounts due tram Fork Holdings. As a result. c:ecit !ac:lities an retevanc loan accounts 
autnonsed by BCC Cantrai C:eCit Committee for (nese anks were erfecovvry used cv 
Region for purposes otner man tcr mcse for wnich mey wede actually aoprovec. 

To seisguised Me amounts Cue trcm BCC BaNain a loan ao---ount in Me name of Cuba/ 
LsJaJThC Bank was ocenea by UK Region in Seotemcer 1990 to recora inves--InenrS reoaia 
UK Region to Mis customec but n•ct recoverea trcm BCC Banrain. This c:eait fac: y for 
Dubai isIamic Bank was not autnonsed by BCC Cantrai C.redit Committee. 

The loan ace:-- unts were men sucsecuency aciustea by c:eciting nem .mt.n new turas 
receNec trcm me same lsta.rnic customers uo to me amount of tne snentail. tamer an 
c:eciting nese new funds :o me liacilitie me caiance sne-ec. nerecy. falsely 
uncers:a3ng assets ana 

P=enbal Returns 

The impact of Mese acocuriong enmes on me amounts disvosed in Me crucencal rerun-3 
was an understatement cf bctn assets and liabilioes. Al 31 Cedember 1990 assets shoula 

inctuded a sundry demo( for S 8.4.5 million being me amounts due trcm Fork Hololng 
- z ana 2acifities a Cue to erckers at a similar amount, aithougn Me recoveracility trcm F-orx ..1 

uncertain. . 

Those Lslarnic irrvestrnencs shown in me 37 return as targe cec.asits. wtilst not cc.rrecal 
o.as.sitiea as deposits. would aiso nave been uncerszatea by a total ofS 84.5 minion.. 

: Management =rad 

I t  825 The erten( of the errors and ceceoocns raises enormous concerns about how management 
z control over Me '41arruc aczvioes was exerczea. 

I 18U is and has been under the cxecutrve control of 6 Chowary for some ,ccnsiceracie time 
1' even before he became regional general manager. ?-+13 )(navy-ledge or tack of knowedge as 

to Line ,ever.r3 ou ntlined =ay* demoszates a lack of erfec wizve management n respect to 
I this area of business. 
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I '.81:U The resulting catalogue of enors NA.1111 re•garcl tone non repayment of some placements and 
net misuse of °Ciet placements as secunry retlec= at r e vent teast a Lack of any proper 
tnCeperldent management ccr- ct in UK Region. The accouncing adopted for the non • 

' repanent indefensible and lends weignt to re conclusion at UK management nave 
ac:ed irresponstbry in alloy,Ang the events cutlinecl acc% e to oc r.Whether UK management 
anci carocutarty B Chowcry anci Mr Oche nave aced n good faith under instruccon from 
senior officers within 8CC C..iroup nas ce-en Impcss e to determine burt is difficult to 
irragine that every (lac:sac:on could go rrcugn uncnaitengea Dy them. 
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SANDSTORM 

Notes of a meeting on 19 January 1991 

Present: S Nadvi 
W-FArrnour 
Si Chapman 
Mike Hunter 

SJC briefly introduced MHA and MH and explained that ‘.1,1  reason for the 
meeting was to permit SN to provide an overview of the events leading up 
to the bank's present difficulties. SN said that he had prawided a brief 
memorandum on the subfect for the shareholders and p eci a copy of 
this to MA. SN questioned the investigating teams Teiiirz= of Reference and 
said that he would like to see a copy of these so that he u-rnderstcod the 
framework within which we were asking questions of him.. He also 
commented that he had told everything to the sharehol=s and that he 
had no reasons to withhold information. He said that he End his staff had 
not benefited personally from the activities of the bank arra any minimal 
areas of personal benefit had already been disclosed by -him to the 
shareholders. 

SN said that he would like to deal with the accounts in Companies A and B 
although he did not have a detailed list of these accouriu= at this me. He 
agreed to provide information in all areas of enquiry anc aexplained that he 
had undertaken an exercise since April to try to recoils-a-a= the accounts 
however this had come to a halt when his records had :en put under dual 
control. ,..) 

SN explained that he was taking total responsibility for C-.aa activities at the 
bank and that he had not allowed officers at either end transacuon 
chains to fully understand what they were dealing \Mtn. ---ks a resutt the 
account officers and booking clerks were not aware of reasons that 
they had been asked to pass certain entries. • 

SN said that the activities at the bank fell into three grot..--. "

1. funds passed through external accounts, 
2. funds routed through accounts in order to disg:uise their nature, 

and 
3. funds passed through customer's own ac=ur-:= usuaty with the 

knowledge of the customer (e.g.Gulf). 

911 



SN summarised the historical position by noting that the c-Iroblems arose 
from: 

a. the old treasury activities 
b. Gulf group 
c. nominee accounts (he pointed out that not all ,str--;unts in 

Companies A and B were nominee accounts) 

SN explained that funds had been moved between these c,..7roups to avoid 
the need to create loan loss provisions when the accounts were reviewed 
by the auditors and to augment profit by servidng irrteresr: and fccs which 
had been debited to loan accounts. In addition it is pos le that treasury 
losses may have been absorbed or profit inflated in the. e trry 1980's 
however SN had not yet had time to reconstruct this. He- -nad however 
noted certain annotations on old files which indicated thm-: -this may have 
been the case. 

SN said that he wanted to make it very clear that contrary - TO rumour, Mr 
Abedi did not have his own portfolio and that the people wino were working 
in the Advisor's Office had not themselves beneficially g iied frcm activities 
at the bank. He explained that Mr Akbar had been the uttli ieral manager of 
BCCI (Overseas) for tax purposes and also SN had come to understand 
that Grand Cayman was in a mess when Mr Za Akbar r=igneci as head cf 
the Treasury. SN also noted that when Hashim Shaikh ic=t:Jgnea from the 
bank the Gokal account became a problem and Mr Aktat had been briefed 
for audit purposes so that he could deal with the auditor= in the Grand 
Cayman. 

SN said that all of the bank's records were now available rn Abu Dhabi 
except for a few on restructuring which were still to be tr=sferred. He 
noted that certain documents were held in the DPA ouc=arcis as these 
were recaraed as confidential by the DPA, in particular roe noted that the 
papers in respect of the Rulers of Ajman and Fujairah feJA into this category. 

SN said that he would be wiiling to provide all assistance to the 
investigating team and that he would endeavour to ensu.r that we received 
the original signed agreements between the bank and nu.minees and other 
original agreements wnich were pertinent to the investd=on process. In 
order to simplify this process SN requested that PW give nim advance 
notice of the areas to be discussed on a daily basis so th at he had time to 
prepare for the meeting and avoid unnecessary time prezasures. He also 
requested that the investigating team assign somebody tc: deal with Mr 
Akbar on a regular basis bearing in mind his diabetic illness and the effect 
this sometimes has on his temperament. 



SN briefly discussed payments which had been made tr.: individuals, 
particularly Hashim Shaikh, Za Akbar and Karnal Shonano. In the case of 
Hashim Shaikh, SN noted that there is no evidence of t Tie man's dishonesty 
however his wife had had a nervous breakdown and he nimserf was very 
nervous. As Shaikh placed Naqvi in a difficuit position. Naqvi arranged to 
pay $1.7 million to Shaikh as retirement benefit, and for his continued 
availability to help reconstruct the Gokal account. 

ii 

Ps 

In the case of Zia he was recently recruited by Plum, am assistzint to 
Senator Carey, to try to proviae information in respect f the bank. 
Because of the difficult position this has placed Capcorn and the bank, Zia 
made SN feel obliged to pay $15 million to Zia. 

We then agreed to review some of the more significant :accourrts on a case 
by case basis as follows: 

1. Dr Pharacn 

SN briefly discussed the difficulties of dealing with Priaraon noting that 
he should continue to be dealt with on a professionau basis. SN 
explained that he nad sent a memo to COD spiittinc accounts 
between Dr Pharaon's own account and those in wrnrch he was a 
nominee. 

With regards to Independence Bank it is up to BCC :=9,decide the 
position. Originady there is a written agreement between Dr Thereon 
and the bank for GRP to hold 15% of the shares in ms own right and 
85% for others. A verbal understanding later took ce where Dr 
Pharaon would hold 50% in his own name and 50% ..as the bank's 
nominee. 

SN explained that Dr Pharaon could argue that 1007.,1, of the snares are 
his if he believes that there would be a profrt on the realisanon over and 
above the underlying value of loans. Alternatively f -.Mere is a shortfall Dr 
Pharaon could argue that all the snares are the banK's property. As a 
result of this SN recommended that the bank sholitr- work out the 
position on the Indecenaence Bank related account and take a position 
with a view to reachino a negotiated settlement with Dr Pharaon. 

Some of the other accounts of Dr Pharaon were userd to finance BCC1 
shares held by Dr Pharaon. Initially he was a hold e7 of 10% of BCC: 
shares of which 6% were for his own account and .ii ie balance of 4% 
were held as nominee for the bank. Subsequerrttv ...the 10% was 
transferred to his brother„Webel, and was then us an for the portfolio. 



ro 

This shareholding is financed from loans in the barkaind at one stage Dr 
Pharaon wanted to sell his 6% shares. As BCC had n= money to pay 
the built in profit at an agreed share value of $40 eac.-r7the loans were 
taken over by the bank who then became responsible r trying to give 
the impression that the loans were still genuine. The _i-:nares were then 
transferred to the DPA in satisfaction of "other arranoaments". The rest 
of the GRP nominee accounts relate to interest servic...-.i4.1 and the 
reduction of other accounts such as those for CCAH. 

SN explained that at the start of the Independence Berm< acquisition the 
California market was perceived as a good opportunity - for the bank. 
There was also a possibility that following the 1978 C=D cchoordat the 
US could be one of the regulatory authorities for the'ECC group. Whilst 
FAB was considered too big for the bank to invest in irnmepenaence 
Bank could have been a possible vehicle for the dever=ment of a 
significant presence in the US which would then lead :72, the receipt of 
Fed regulation. 

SN confirmed that the NBG investment was a joint vemmre between GRP 
and the bank and that the profits on this were spirt ECIED. For regulator! 
purposes the deal was structured so that GRP appear ....1 alio acted as 
the owner of all of the NBG shares. The option agree-zment and fee at 
the time was required because of the need for FAB tc -nave the pre-
emption right over NBG whilst the time was taken to Cat the necessary 
regulatory approvals. SN said that the price at the time was evaluated 
on an arm's length basis and that there had actually cae..en a higher offer 
from National Bank of North Carolina however as this was a =sn/share 
deal it was less attractive to Dr Pharaon. 

In addition to these investments SN confirmed that cte-.- investments in 
Centrust and Eurotunnel financed by the bank were fa-7 GRP's own 
account. 

When SJC queried the audit confirmations received fiLH1 Dr Pharaon in 
respect of the nominee accounts SN explained that C.-  Pharacn has hold 
harmless letters for these accounts which were desicraed to allow to him 
to sign audit confirmations. No fees were ever paid t= GRP fcr acting as 
a nominee and he did it cut of goridwill because of ti-.72 profits that had 
been paid to him on the sale of BCCI and NBG shar . 

SN also explained that FilL was apparently owned 75--_*,; by GRP however 
ICIC has an option on the shares and therefore the C and Attock 
groups fall within the BCCl/ICIC group. 
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BCC! shares 

fet 
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SN explained that when the rights issues of the BCC: snares were 
announced they had to be funded from loans in BCC d ICIC in certain 
instances. Also some of the small shareholders had said their shares 
Mth a profit in the earlier years and these had to be firranced by ICIC or 
BCC. As an example Fulaij had a letter from the bank uararrteeing him 
a profit and he had therefore sold his beneficial interest in the bank some 
years ago. SN was adamant that no member of manatgemerrt had a 
beneficial interest in BCC shares and that the shares rreld by the bank 
were held with the intention of making a capital gain as the bank grew 
and became more profitable at which time they would aventuaily be able 
to sell the shares to the DPA. The profits thus eamea. 'would be retained 
in the trusts such as the Staff Benefit Fund. 

SJC queried the use of the Staff Benefit Fund noting ' 1 t some ex-
officers such as Mr Rahman appeared to be claiming .i-nat there was an 
obligation on the trust to pay money to them. SN examined that from 
foundation it was possible that some of the early staff =embers may 
have been given the impression by Mr Abedi that they would benefit 
from the Staff Benefit Fund if it had the funds available -from the profits 
on BCC shares. Also Mr Abedi had paid some officers who had retired 
earlier, such as Mr Saddiq Ali and Mr Burney, Si milli= each Other 
officers such as Mr Rahman had the impression tha :this was a right 
and had jumped on the bandwagon. SN said that thare were no rights 
to these people and this situation was clearly untenarixe as the shares 
had not increased in value as anticipated. 

Sh Kemal AdhamiCCAH 

SN said that SKA had become the principal person imvoived in CCAH 
shares after his introcuction by BCC. Except for the snares held by 
Adharn Corporation (2.5% of CCAH) all the remaining shares held in 
Adham's name are held for BCC. SKA had always o en very careful to 
appear as the controlling shareholder. There was na•written agreement 
regarding the shareholdings in CCAH as to do so wc-uld have been a 
violation of the US rules. As a consequence there is mow some concern 
in SN's mind that SKA may claim the shareholding alF._ being his own. SN 
believes that this would be detrimental to the bank as they would like to 
be able to control all of the shares in CCAH so that _they could be sold 
as a controlling shareholding to a third party. The artuation became 
more acute in April 1988 when SN tried to get an ot..4.:i.Jri agreement 
signed by SKA over his CCAH shares. SKA refused tt-o do this without 
settlement of the implied profits for the CCAH share _s -and uttmately this 
agreement was not executed and no consideraton  
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SN summarised the other CCAH shareholders as beng prir#mily 
nominees under the following arrangements: 

a. Ruler of Fujairan - 1,000 shares in his own rig:Trt balance as 
nominee for BCC 

b. Ruler of Ajman - own shares now sold, all shares held are as 
nominee 

c. Faisal Fulaij - all held as nominee for BCC 

d. Shorafa - 500 in his own right, the rest as narmrnee 

e. Harnmoud - all ECC 

f. Jawahary - all BCC 

a. ARK - originally held some shares but asked r these to be sold 
in 1987. 

Conseduently virtually all the shares funded now bev=ng to the bank. Sr' 
explained the sensitivities over the CCAH loans anc :noted that BCC was 
very careful that it never took or exercised voting pcwers and did not 
allow any controlling influence over the activities of 

ft 

He acknowledged that representations had been made to the Fed but 
BCC would not provide finance for the shareholders_ for their investment 
in CCAH and key snarenolders had made dispost= to the Fed. SKA, 
Darwish and Fulaij almost satisfied the requiremenT :n that SKA used his 
own money, Darivisn may have had a bridging loan out ultimately used 
the DPA's money and Fulaij received his funaing   Krfcx:i. There ma 
have also been some original loans from ICIC however as tnis was not 
affiliated to BCC it was not seen as a concern. -1-1-,a problems arose latE 
because of the substantial rights issues whicn were Tequireci to be 
financed by BCC. 

SN said that at one point less than 50% of the shares were pledged to 
BCC however this had now increased due to the umwinding of the Sh 
Khalid transactions. In particular 9.9% of the snares whicn were sold tc: 
Burford had been oought back through Masria/Fasal Fulaij on the 
bank's own behalf. This has taken the shares beneficially owned by 
BCC to about 60%. The present shareholding in C=AH was roughly 
summarised as: 



50.0% BCC1 (including the Burford srizzes) 
12.0% Sheikh Zayed 
9.0% Sheikh KhaIda 
6.0% ADIA, 
2.5% Sheikh Karnal Adharn 

- 10.5%  Other 
100.0% 

SN acknowledged that approximately 50% of the CCAH shares were 
held by others as nominees for BCC from inception. 77-rzp., purpose of this 
was to obtain a capital gain for BCC'. 

Other loans 

We briefly reviewed some of the other loans as follows: 

Virani 

Gomba 

Crown 

AS Trading - These loans have been overcharged with- fees with the 
customers knowleoce and these will have to be refun=d. Because the 
bank was financing profitable transactions the cus-tomars were willing to 
sign phoney confirmations in the knowledge that uitim---.L.mly the excess 
fees charged would be refunded. 

Prince IMC - now cleared. 

Red Sea - a trading concern not a nominee. 

Saiacl - have been used for funds routing with the knowviedge of the 
borrower. The Saiccis also assisted the bank in not c CiQs1ng the 
nature of the settlement agreement made with two of tra younger 
brothers. 

Agra/Chu/Hsu - commercial loans which may have hanc their balances 
supplemented in orcer to avoid provisioning. SN said -.tnat these were 
dead accounts which snould be written off. The ot.istc.:Thers were not 
aware of the position of their accounts. 

Unetco - SN said this account should be written cif. 77-rre customers had 
been told various stories by the bank in order to obtain . balance 
confirmations for aucit purposes, however this amount- was not 
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recoverable. 

Control Securities shares - SN said this was an arm's length transaction 
although there may be some buy back arrangemerm with Virani. 

Sh Kemal Adham-

SN said that he had prepared a briefing memorandurrn on the Sh Karna 
Adham account which should be reviewed by the investigators. SN said 
that a major element of the Kama! Adham accourrts r ated to interest 
over charges. He noted that the rate agreed between the bank and SKA 
had been at 1% over LIBOR however the bank has =-en charging a 
much higher rate and although the balances have b n.caorrtirrned by Sh 
Kamal5ithere is an understanding between him and trie bank that this 
excess interest will be refunded. 

The Saudi Riyal account for Sh Kamal is regarding namineeship 
investment in SDCC on the bank's behalf. The loans to NW1 relate to a 
failed attempt by Sh Kemal to get BCC to invest in s=ses of Allied Area 
Bank. 

SN summarised the Sh Kemal lending saying that p= of the lending is 
customer's own and there is a clean shortfall of SSC .-miilion. SKA had 
expected this to be repaid from.the profit on the C H shares. 

Faisal Fulaij 

4141 SN said that Fulaij was a simple person who had ar—==d as a nominee for 
the bank and had received regular fees for doing t . He is now very 
nervous about his position and wants to terminate u  arrancements as 
soon as possible. 

Rulers of Aiman and Fuiairah 

Both of these individuals acted as nominees for the mank. Ajman 
received a built-in profit from the sale of the few shc..l s held in his own 
right in CCAH, and Fujairah receives regular fees fa—acting as a 
nominee. 

Mohammed Shorafa 

Shorafa has acted as a nominee for the bank and received fees for 
services rendered. 

AR Khalil 

It) 



ift 

SN said that the problems with Khalil arose from the =ays of Treasury. 
He used to have very large deposits placed through Zia and eventually 
Za talked him into allowing the funds to be used uncoar management by 
the Treasury operations. Khalil was also a sharehoi r in BCC and 
CCAH. 

In 1986 once Za was removed ARK wanted to settle mis accounts and 
withdraw his depostts. As the deposit had been almr.L.Jrued into the 
Treasury division, SN had to create loans to enable t i i ii to repay the 
deposit. He also had to reorganise the CCAH loans and allow these to 
be covered by the shares redeemed from ARK. 

Because of the confusion over whether ARK'S funcs mad created profits 
or losses and in order to avoid any potential litigatjorr ARK and SN 
reached a settlement agreement for the bank to pay .. ""15 million as 
"profit' on the deposits used and to transfer the CC -I and BCC shares 
back to the bank. A letter of release was signed by ARK in 1986 and 
subsequent to this there has been no recourse or r tionship with him. 

SN said that it was incomprehensible to him to see rr=w the Treasury 
problems arose and how a could use a customers -funds for his own 
purposes. SN said he first became aware of this in -- 84 and was 
shocked when he found the deposits had been use . 

e•A"..; 

SN said that the major deposit relationships handle-a my Za in Treasury 
were FIB and ARK. Whilst he felt that Za had acte-a .rn the bank's 
interest in the early 1980s, by 1982 he is now convimzed that Za was 
acting in his own interests and the interests of Cap=m. SN was 
adamant that only ARK's funds were subject to manzagemem agreements 
and that FIB had not fallen into this category. SN noted that some 
ICIC Investment's funds placed with Treasury had ta.=.F.i.n absorbed. 

SN explained that during 1981 - 1984 an informal acz.--.-.unt of profits had 
been given however later after Zia left SN found Inc citions in the files 
that not all of these profits may have been genuine. SN said that some 
pre-1986 Treasury papers had been found when Tre=sury moved to Abu 
Dhabi and these were now available. This would ta2- oze considerable time 
to reassemoie and may be very difficult as payments may have gone 
directly to brokers without being recorded in the barnk's records. SN • 
estimated that up to S600 million had been injected .:nto Treasury in this 
period but he could not be sure of this as there were no records. He 
even doubted if it was clear from the dealing reccrcas whether 
transactions were undertaken on behalf of ARK or i  bank. 
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SN said that ARK would be asked each year to sign hi..s balanca 
confirmation on the understanding that the settlement --m2reemertt still 
held but the reason why the balances existed in the bari-k's books was 
that SN had not yet been able to resell the BCC or CCAH shares. 

SN explained that the remittances into ARK's account :m the last couple 
of years had arisen from the sale of some properties Irr the UK and 
Panama which had been purchased under joint venture arrangements 
between the bank and ARK. 

Gulf Group 

SN explained that the relationship with the Gulf Grour rted in 1972/73 
when he had been looking after the region in Abu Dhstrt $20 million 
was deposited by the Gokals in Luxembourg where Ak-mr Annis had 
been the contact officer. 

At this time it was not BCC's policy to enter into term :ending however 
after one year the Gokai asked for facilities in moderv...  arnourm. 
Facilities were initially given in the UK against the   anc 
subsequently against the mortgage of ships. The term- -of these loans 
was for 2 years and as the market value of ships was .mcreasing this was 
thought to be safe lenaing. 

Later in 1975/6 the lending grew to $60 - 70 million nmwever the 
profitability to the bank was enormous because of the ',very significant 
remittances through the account. This was useful as :me UK region was 
a high cost region. 

The bank was however concerned about the size of th-:42 borrowing in 
relation to the very small capital of BCC and the incre-.-..--asing requirements 
as the company invested in these ships. At this time ti-ne customers' 
deposit was uplifted and used as down payment for new ships. 
Because of the volume of activity through this account.. -it was not 
followed professionally however because of its prort iiiity no concerns 
were raised on this issue. In the late 1970's following rrne Bank of 
England's regulation that not more than 10% of any c.trze bank's capital 
should be loaned to any one customer they had to maDve the account to 
Grand Cayman however control over it was mairrtaineaz in the UK. 

With the remoteness from the account officers, coil  over the accounts 
became even weaker and it was only when SN was trtEnsferred to the 
UK and became embroiled in the tax problems etc that he started to look 
after the Cayman entity. At this time he and Hashim heikh started to 
look after the account which at this time was close tc aaankruptcy with 



loans of $250 million and a capital base of only 6100 million. The Gokals 
wanted BCC to bale them out and asked for $50 miilicrn for a 6 month 
period as a short term loan. Feeling they had no chr.3 BCC told their 
branch to do this and then ran into much deeper pro ms as many of 
the other 50 banks used by the Gokals kept issuing ht..Jtices of default 
which the. BCC found themselves obliged to help refin.0 ice as the 
liquidation of the Gokal group would bring down BCC:. SN explained 
that he had many heated arguments with the Gokals aver their financial 
difficulties but he felt his hands were tied as their failur would lead to the 
failure of the bank. 

Because of the Gokals' knowledge of BCC's own prd=lems they were 
also willing to help with funds routing and the mis-st iiierrt of their 
liabilities. SN said that some 80% of the funds routed. mad now been 
reconciled and that this had been a major task. He smrci that there was 
no joint business between the Gokals and the bank and the situation 
could just be put down to foolish banking on behalf =BCC. 

Sh Hamdan bin Mohammed 

SN explained that this account related to an interest r=r, icession which 
was agreed when the bank took over a former Habib Eank can for the 
const-uction of the Centre Hotel. In order to make (..:= -for lost interest 
the bank said it would create an investment using Sal: million ;n the 
customer's name. This can was used however for c-sner purposes 
(repayment of can accounts) but the customer was ',willing to sign loan 
confirmations because he was led to believe that the =nk was investing 
on his own behalf in order to assist in the interest cz.=-ession 
arrangements. 

MM HaMMOUd 

SN explained that all of the Hammoud loans were nc.-minee or joint 
venture arrangements. Many of them arose from the mad loans from 
Egypt which could not be managed by the bank. F iiities in Cyprus 
and Kuwait were granted to Hammoud to enable him az buy the Misr 
loans at BCCI's risk. 

SN explained that the problems in Misr arose from :sr= banking and the 
management's over zealous attempts to earn comm=sions on revolving 
L/C's whilst releasing documents under trust receip ... In some cases 
borrowers went into intentional default and others juantrougn lack of 
funds. 

In addition Hammoud has nominee loans for BCC an CCAH shares 
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with SCC and IOC and has also taken over some bac debts such as the 
Canadian hotel project and the Carlson Farms proje=. Both these 
projects were on the bank's books however when tre started to go bad 
the bank could not afford to make provisions and sc .tt created a sale to 
Harnmoud through ICIC Holdings so that it could be tisguised within the 
bank. The bank, through ICIC, had paid fees to Harmmoud for sheltering 
these transactions. 

SN noted that there may be some problems in the t olution of the 
Harnmoud account as there were numerous disput between his heirs 
and that they may try to claim ownership of the shares held under the 
nominee arrangements. 

US Affairs 

SJC enquired into the background for the US monm! laundering 
problems. SN said that the bank had been in the US to raise dollar 
deposits and that Miami had been a good profitable =ranch with 
substantial import/export business. The problems ar se because the 
individuals in the branches were over zealous in raic7ng deposits and 
were possibly also using their position in the bank obtain favours and 
financing for the improvement of their lifestyles. 

Kilo° 

Kifcc is owned 49% by Holdings and 26% by Fuiaij h=wever the Fulaij 
holding is covered by a hold harmless letter. Other anarenolders are 
genuine and include WJ Toweil. Initially Kifoo was 1.....amd for trading in 
shares in Kuwait and for the raising of deposits however with the change 
in central bank regulations and the repatriation of Mr Idbal it was used 
for the parking of loans. The Souk Al Manakh loss - came at a later 
stage and had to be funded. SN noted that the los. s at Kifcc partially 
related to Souk Al Manakh and to certain compani created by Za 
Akbar. Also some slow accounts were parked thera to be out of sight of 
the auditors. 

BCP 

SN was insistent that E3CP is clean and there are no -accounts in it 
relating to the problem customers. He agreed that F.-CP had been used 
for the routing of remittances. 

ICIC Group 

a) ICIC Holdings - SN said that there was lite sailbstance to ICIC 



Holdings other than its investment in ICIC Overi as. He 
acknowledged that it did contain certain joint venture 
arrangements and other agreements and that =Ls company was 
used when management wanted to keep tran,--1 iions once step 
removed from the bank and the auditors. 

b) ICIC Overseas - This company was used to an extent for funding 
8CC1 requirements SN noted that it may have a. claim on BCC. 
SN said that he has discussed this with the sharzholders and that 
they should work between ICC and BCC to ermure that there is 
an orderly reorganisation of the 2 companies. HM Kasmi is in the 
process of working to reconstruct the accourrm- opf ICIC although 
SN noted that before March 1990 Kasmi had  knowle-dge of 
many of the transactions in the books of ICIC a-7= they had been 
directed by SN. 

C) ICIC Investments - SN said that this company mad no assets or 
liabilities of its own though it may have earned some crofts before 
the 1987 stock market cr ,h Which were given 7= 10I0 Holdings. 
It used to act as the princi le/for the portfolio =curt and was 
not audited. 

d) CC! Holdings - CC! Holdings is owned by FILL 3DCC and Fuiaij 
as nominees fcr the bank: It owns CCL UK wrixon is now 
profitable having been recently turned around. CI UAE has 
been subsequently sold except one local sharnolder wno 
remains as a nominee to ICIC Holdings. Gharrem Mazroui is 
trying to get this customer to sell to a third pamv. CCI Saudi is a 
subsidiary of CC1 UK. 

Other Accounts 

Ibrahim Gad 

Mr Gad is an associate of SKA but the loans•in the ta=ks are used to 
give BCC control of minority shares in BCC Misr 

Abbas MosseIhy 

Bad BCC Misr loan probably reduced due to impropE.F.7 funds flow. 

Lisa General 

Bad loan supplemented by funds from other accouii :.. 

lot 
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Bader at Ruwas 

This is a mishandled account. The borrower's invebulitent in BCCI 
shares is genuine and should be repaid from his own -resources. It is 
possible that [CIO have given him a letter saying thar :they wiil have first 
option on the shares. 

cip 

Bamadaoha 

Bad debt supplemented from other sources. 

Sogex 

Bad debts supplemented from other sources. 

General Agencies 

Bad debt. 

Hail Ali Fade! 

Relates to NBO shares purchased when Bank of Amarrica sold out. 
These shares are owned by Mr Fadel in his own rigrr nowever he has 
asked the bank to buy them back as they are not parnbrming to his 
expectations. 

Dhamal, ECT1 

Egyptian steel mill loan in Misr and Grand Cayman. The Grand Cayman 
loan is a loss. 

Red Sea Enterprises 

A Sheikh Kamal trading account. 

Advisors Team 

SN briefly talked through the advisors team in his ctfi=e noting that SM 
Akbar had been helping him with the Gulf croup a=unt. 

lmran Imam and Habib-Ullah are assistants who have helped SN from 
time to time. Imam does not wish to return to the UAkE although he will 
be able to provide considerable assistance in the CAH/GRP/SKA 
accounts. 



Mr Jamil Khan is now back in Pakistan and has thremened to expose 
some of the BCC issues if his loan account is not fcrcgiven. SN is not 
concerned about this. Mr Razhaii in his department :used to deal with 
S KA. 

Mr .Arjamand Naqvi has assisted SN particularly in r ....bect of the FIB 
account. In addition Mr Naqvi noted that Za, Kamm Shohaib, Hashim 
Sheikh and Aludclin Sheikh had all benefrtted from p-myments made by 
the bank. SN said that he did not believe that Mr Aimed had gained from 
the bank in a personal way and noted that he was 1 C.J t in any way 
connected with the Gulf group. SN also said that he -nimself did not 
have any bank accounts other than those booked irr -the bank and that 
his only house was one in the UK in his wife's narn . (SN broke down 
after further discussion of these individuals invotverli r it in personal gain.) 

We had a brief discussion on the operatng methcanmgy of the 
investigation team and SN stressed the need for c.ra to be taken in 
respect of the GRP and SKA account.-3, 

SJ Chapman 
21 January 1991 

/ 



Minutes cf a meetind held at the Advisor's Office on t19 January 199Tiat 11 a m 

Present were: Swaien Naqvi 
SJ Chapman 
MH Armour 
Mike Hunter 

The meeting was arranged to enable SN to explain the background the accounts under 
investigation. 

Introduction 

•••1 

SN said that be was broadly aware of the terms of reference czt the investigation Cu.
would like to be provided with a copy in order that he should .-i-mow the extent of thE 
ground he should cover. 

As far as SN was concerned he did not see the distinction bettween the portfolios 
and other aspects of the loss relationships; but, understood U t ft is for others to 
decide to what extent information on the portfolios should be ivulged. 

He said all transactions were supportable apart from certain =ecrfic payments 
which he would discuss with us at a later date. 

He has sent a memorandum to the Chairmen of the Commii L...us and to Zafar fqtat 
setting out the"Eckground to the bank and its development .--bnd expiajning the 
origins and progress of the manipulation of the accounts. At. ttne enc of the — 
meetind he provided us with one copy of this memorancitim-. 

SN said that he had told the whole story to the shareholders zand saw no reason to 
hold back although there may be certain bits of paper that nsacisoed to be explained 
nct cn their own cut in a larger context. 

SN asked that he should be (liven a definitive list of these ac=unts split into 
Company A and Company B so that he could advise whether or not the division 
was appropriate. 

SN said that in April 1950 he nab told His Excellency Habrcun that he would be 
able to explain the use of funcs by carrying out detailed reccrnciliations. He said 
that the routing of funds was complex, sometimes these were throuon customers' 
accounts elsewnere and customers were told to pay on the -1.unds back into BCCI. 
Loans had been created to make funds available and new lc3n accounts had been 
created to put funds into old loan accounts. 

He said that he would like to discuss these affairs in 3 elements: 
old Treasury 

• Gulf Group 
• Nominee accounts 

He explained that the funds were used to: 
• reduce loans to avoid provision 

augment profit with charoes and interest 
• to hide Treasury losses 
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He said that some Treasury dealing was done inside the bank end some was not. 
It had been managed by Zaddin Akbar. He said that DPA fun=s were pooled with 
general funds. He said there was no separate private ciealinc =y Mr Abedi. 

Staff and documents 

7 He explained that the following staff had been mainly invoivec: 

Imran Imam 

Nadeem Habib-Ullah, who assisted lmran Imam 

Arlamand Naqvi, who assisted SN 

SM Akbar - SN explained that SMA was only made cameral manager in 
Cayman for tax purposes and was not aL-zig as the chief 
executive officer of BCCI (Overseas). He explained that BCC( 
Cayman was formerly a booking centre =ratted from London 
by Zaddin Akbar. This was considered LL:nsatis-fsctory so SMA 
was sent down to Cayman to manage thm posrtion but only 
booked what he was told to book. 

Hashim Sheikh - handled the Gokal account. This scoot.= was prtiv .udited in 
Caymi--In and so he had to brief SMA on .7,D to r J with ,ne 
auditors. 

P SN said that all records relating to these act-vities wer avaiiacie in Abu Dhabi with 
some in London. 

a.

Documents relating to CCAH shareholders have been given = Sandy Martin and 
there were 2 or 3 documents in the DPA filing. 

SN said that the US lawyers should look at Independence Bank as well as CCAH. 

As far as BCC1 shares were concerned, there were very ate Tn BCC! and some 
loan arrangements overflowed to 1C1C. 

He said that he was segrecating 1010 records which were tc e seen later. 

He said that there was some correspondence in March/Agri wrth shareholders on 
the problems - what they were and how they could be dealt %with. 

He said he would be going away for a short trip of two weemE to London in 
connection with his eye operation. 

In dealing with the recent urgent requests•regarding Dr Pria.f.e..un and from Sanay 
Martin, this could affect the urgency with which he could ac=ress matters. 

SN said that SMA was a diabetic and care should be taken .7.1 liaising with him. 

He said that payments had been made to past employees 
• Hashim Sheikh 
• Ziaddin Akbar 
• Kama( Sheikh 

a a to. 



He said that there was no evidence of wrong doing by Hashim Sheikh aBspite his 
abrupt departure. He said that HS's wife had had a nervous-tmakdown and he 
was iii. He was scared concerning the US matters and warrtea :to retire as he was 
over 59. The payment mace to HS was not so much bfackmazi. but he had put SN 
on the spot and so 51.7M was paid to him as a pension payoff:. He said that HS 
was still co-operating and SMA haa seen him. 

Zaadin Akbar had exploited his knowledge later in his career. When he left he was 
recruited by Mr Plum for Senator Carey to attack the bank. He then put pressure 
on SN and received $3 mzilion. 

Dr Pharaon _ 

SN had sent to central creatt a memorandum which bifocates mis accounts from 
those which are nct his. 

411111 10. Independence Bank - he said there was an agreement wheretw GAP agreed to 
, invest 15% and the bank would find other shareholders. This =, did not do and the 

other 85% is held by GAP acting as nominee for the bank. 77-rmre is a written 
agreement for this. There was a later verbal understanding that took GRP's 
involvement up to 50%. 

SN said that there was a need for a negotiated settlement anc 7-to find out how 
much was invested. He said criainally GAP financed his invet.-.ari lent elsewhere and 
then BCC1 took it over a,: a loan. 

BCC shares - he has sharencidincs in 6CC1 of about 10%, of -.which 6'7-10 are his own 
and 4% as nominee for BCC!. This was financed from loans. 'BAP wantsd to sell 
his awn shares at S40 but BCC! had no liquidity so effec e ck over the (cans. 
The 6% shares were boudnt by BCC! and passed on to the CPA in lieu of buy back 
arrangements. 

SN said that 8CC1 nominee sharenciders would be analysed : ter ana that they 
were mostly financed from ECCI and 1010. Some shareholde.m had their own 
shares and had sold them for a profit which had to be financ= by the bank. 

He said Faisal Fulaij acted as a nominee and was held harrni s against the related 
lending. The bank's investments of its own shares through r rninees had been 
initially intended for the benefit of the 1010 Staff Benefit T-ust nd ICIC Foundation. 
There was no value expecte.a to be given to management 

The 4% of shares held by GAP as nominee were transferred 7= Watel Pharacn. 

12. SJC said that Rahman had told PW that the Staff Benefit Fur.= had owed him a lot. 
But SN said that Abed only promised that payments would made if the bank 
succeeded and none of this was in writing. Abecii had paid E...7IM each to the 
families of two people who had died and this had become a :_aenchmark. 

Independence Bank - it was evaluated by staff. GAP was ke:En to take 15% 
investment and make a capital gain like the one he made on :•National Bank of 
Georgia. The other 85% was held by BCC! through nomine- as Abedi wanted to 
keep his options open as to its future involvement. There wars much talk at that 
time when the bank was re-organising about using a US vert=le and Financial 
General was considered tco big. 
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National Bank of Georgia - there was no written agreement hmwever the profit on 
NBG was split 50/50 between GRP and BCCI. Officially he owrned 100%. The 
profit was taken into the bank through management fees aria :m other ways. 

The reason for the initial $80M option followed by $140M pur=mse consideration 
was purely structural. The option was taken out and then ap=val obtained. SN 
said that the transaction was at arm's length and that GRP ha= also had an offer 
from NCNB which was part shares part cash at the time. 

13. Centrust - the bank had wanted to invest in Centrust and had arranged it through a 
can to GRP secured on the shares. This was a $25M back tc rack transaction 
whicn was mishandled by BCC! Paris branch. First the bran= made a loan, then I: 
was changed into an investment. 

(to 

Eurotunnel - the Eurotunnel shares are his own and not held =Tithe bank's behalf. 

14. SN said that GRP was a hardnosed businessman and the banw needed to deal witr 
him about the S18M loan requested. SN asked that the bank = not break off 
communication and said that GRP had phoned him this mot,' fillIg, He needs caret 
handling . 

SN said that GRP knows of the phoney loans in his name an r.onfirmed balances. 
He never received fees for this but made profit on his BCC sh ies and NBG share 

AIL - around 70% was held in the name of GRP, 10% in the r-rame of Sh Kamal 
Adham and 5% other. ICIC has cpticms to acquire these hci ngs and GRP in 
effect acts as nominee. 

The nominee arrangements cover: 
The oil group 
the insurance group 
SOCC and 
the Hong Kong Financial Services Company. 

15. Faisal Fuiaii also acts a nominee in FIlL and insurance (CCI). 

He said that the purpose cf SDCC was to get into the Saudi. Similar nominee 
arrangements apply to Egypt. There were either written or =written agreements t 
effect the nominee arrangements. 

Sh Kama! Adham 

SN said that SKA's position was much simpler. He had a =a._ in CCAH where he 
was introduced by BCC!. He became the principal person traere and gave 
depositions at the time of the acquisition of Financial General 3hares. There was r 
written agreement made with CCAH shares as this was a aerar violation of his 
statements. The understanding was however that, except fc:-  Adham Corporation, 
he was acting as nominee and cave blank transfer deeds. H._ce maintained the 
appearance of controlling snarehoider. 

In 1983 he wanted to sell his own shares which could have fragmented the 
snarenoidings. A long document was apparently drawn up a.--nd signed but SKA 
has said that it was not executed. He wanted settlement or. :me profit. 



The S KA sharenolding was 12 to 13% with Adham holding anal:her 2_5%. 

Other CCAH shareholders - arrangements were as follows: 

Fujairah - 
Ajman - 
Fulaij 
Shorafa - 
Hammoud - 
Khalil - 
Jawahary 

1,000 in his own name the rest for the bank. 
partly his own but these were later sold to the caink 
wholly a nominee 
500 in his own name and the rest for the bank, 
wholly for the bank 
originally owned shares but then sold in 1986 
as nominee. 

SN said that-BCC never took voting powers and had no influance on managemen 

As far as financing CCAH shares from their own resources, 7EB said that SKA had 
his own money and Faisal Fulaij received a bridging loan frcrrn Krfoo. His Highnes 
had his own resources. Initially the bank had thought that tte undertakings 
concerning financing of the CCAH shares from their owners rasourms only coven 
these three shareholders however it is now assumed that f!    ,Oies to all 
shareholders. For the rest the loans came from IC1C and omit/ a small amount fro 
their own resources. In 1986/87 rights issues were all BCC Thianced. 

BCC had held under 50% until September 1990. But when =. 2 Sh Khalid bin 
Mahfouz arrangement was unwound and the 9% in the narna- of Eurford was take 
over by the bank an account was created in the name of F aii and Masriq to 
finance it. 

SN said the beneficial ownership of CCAH was currently as flows: 

Eurford/DPA 10% 
Adham Corporation 2.5% 
ECCI 60% 
Sh Zayed 12% 
Sh Khalifa 9% 
ADIA 6-7% 

He said from inception BCC always owned around 50% Cr the objective was 
capital gain. A merger was always considered impractical. 

Virani. Gorriba s Crown, AS Tracing 

Management fees were over charged to these companies arfc now need to be 
refunded. There will have oeen a letter regarding these alic.:.iigements. 

Prince/IMO - the position is now resolved. 

Red Sea - bad lending 

Saiooi - used for routing !cans and a settlement has czaen mace with the tw, 

brothers. 



Control Securities shares 

The purchase was arm's length although it was possibly a bu.w back arrangement. 

Control Securities/Batace pl/Virani .-. the bank got a fixed fee and a share of the 
profits otherwise the relationship was arm's length. 

Circularisations were arranged so as to confirm balances wtr signed letters given 
to customers. 

Sh Kemal Adham 

With Allied Arab Bank (now Allied Trust Bank), SKA had aske= the bank to take 
shares to help with the restructuring. It was agreed in princ-: e but there was 
significant confusion over the names of the companies. Take over by BCC was 
unlikely to meet with approval. 

There is a S2 million dollar loan which represents the invesLii_nt in SOCC using 
SKA as a nominee. 

SKA has been a big claim against the company in respect ct -nis own borrowings. 
Interest was agreed at LIBOR 4- 1% however much more was booked. Refunding 
is estimated at about S20M. Meanwhile SKA did not get fees -for acting as nominee 
but wanted profit on sale of his own shares. 

Otherwise his lending is normal with security against deposr and properties. The 
shortfall or unsecured portion of the lending is approximately SSOM. He was 
expecting a substantial profit on his CCAH shares to repay a t this. 

SN suggested that contact be mace with him sooner rather 7:-nan later. 

Fu I 

He was acting as a pure nominee and received a regular for this. He now 
wants to stcp. 

Fujairah and Aiman 

Their positions SN said was now well known. They were nu_iiiinees and participate 
for a fee. Fujairah receivec fees on a regular basis and Ajrnzan sold snares at a 
profit. 

Jawahary 

He should be considered with Sh Kamal Adham. 



AR Khalil 

The relationship was managed by Ziaddin Akbar. Khalil usea 'a= have substantial 
deposits then ZA started doing Treasury transactions on his asanatf ana for a share 
of the profits. Khalil was a shareholder in both BCC and CCAH. In 1986 he wanted 
to settle his accounts and take his deposits. Loans were crezted in order to do 
this. Then all his business connections were wound up and a.- ischarge payment' 
was agreed. He handed over his BCC and CCAH shares aria -received a fixed 
profit of S15M and he has signed over those shares. 

ZA was responsible for notifying what the profit on the bank's -Treasury operations 
was and it was very difficult to know what the real profit was. Trading on behalf of 
the client was expected to make a profit off the books and ZA was asked to supply 
the profits from elsewhere. In 1984, deposits had been usea =y Treasury by Z4. 

He probably established Capcom in 1983/84. He had difficurtw in reconciling the 
losses. There was no written agreement with ARK on ARK tr-=-7.7.ing. 

ZA had an "authority" but SN does not believe that it was ever-signed. ARK was 
never given any accounts of any dealings etc although all we in his name. Abed 
wanted to enhance profits and ZA said that he could do r*t. 

So SN thought that the 1981 to 1984 "Treasury Profits" were Tr effect 
ennancements. ZA used to give SN an account book. 

ZA disappeared in March 1986 and then the tax problems ar e The terminals 
were disconnected and the operations moved to Abu Dhabi. ?apers were later 
found in a cupboard and are now here but it is not known the full extent of te 
losses. 

SN said it was impossible to reconstruct Treasury trading nc-iw. L4 inflated Profits 
ano covered losses. SN was not familiar with the pre-1985 =ton and he did not 
know who is. He thought it was quite possible for a $600 miation Treasury loss in 
excess of the 5365M recognised. The record does have a st--. -=Lement showing the 
amount of profit injection from other savings and it is onty frc:rn this that SN has 
mace his guess. 

Transactions were not only in the books of the bank. Other aling ckets for 
funds under management are held probably by ARK. 

ARK confirmed his balances but had hold harmless letters. :m 1987 he signed them 
again and it was explained to him that confirmation was nee d as his shares had 
not yet been sold on by the bank. SN later asked SKA to tame over the shares. 

SN said that 4 or 5 properties were bought and sold in the rne of ARK, some 
were joint ventures. 

Gulf Grouo 

SN said he was in Abu Dhabi in 1972/73. At that time the aulf Group had deposits 
of S2OM in Luxemccura. Mr Anis had the initial contact It the policy of t.beci 
at that time not to do term lencing. After one year the Gokas asked for a facu lty in 
London. It was given and secured on receivables. They tharn starte-a borrowing 
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disposal. The market was going up at that time and ,14.11...iuva. was given. 

In 1975/76 the lencting reached $60-70 million and the:bank vvisas making enorrrtc 
profits from this. As the UK region had a high cost base. this high income client 
was important despite the low capital base of the banic Shii=ing was booming 
with large orders placed' for new ships. The Gokals used_the Peposits for down 
payments and borrowed from the bank. BCC! fooletthemseives SN said. 

In 1978 the borrowing'reached1S00 million and new regulati=ns were introducer 
by the Bank of England concerning individual exposures. The account was moss 
to Cayman but still controlled from England. SN wentto the 1...JK where there we, 
lots of tax problems and by default SN started looking dfter C.yman. UK 
management washed their hands of the Gulf Group acrd SN trnnk it over. in the 
early 1980's, the borrowing reached $250 million anciwith a recession underway 
the Gokals wanted to be bailed out. $50M was required anct mo it went on. The 
bank tried many ways to control the tending. The Gcikals comtinued ta speculate 
gold etc and lost money. 

Hashim Sheikh managed the account and SN would meet tt-Te Gokais and be 
pursued to lend more money. 

The Gokals knew that their account was outside normal pro=dures. SN wpuld 
the Gokals to route funds and assist in the manipulation of the Guff Group 
accounts. 

The Gulf exposure was so large that Abedi/SN needed to ormw the bank in ore 
resolve the position. 

Sheikh Hamden 

He had a loan account here. C:ty Centre Hotels went into =_fauit and Sh Hama 
wanted a concessionary rate of interest which was agreed. msteaci he tried to tz. 
the interest accrued write-off into an investment. Sh Hama= was pursuaded to 
take a loan of $50M to be used for BCC shares. Instead thee funds were used fa 
other purposes. The other lencing was Dirhams 30M. 

Hammoud 

He is a CCAH nominee. He has joint ventures with ICIC  

Egyptian loans were bad debts of between $70-10C1M in BC 72 Misr. $c the bank 
asked Hammoud to buy them at 8001's risk. Then gave hirm the faditties in Cyp 
and Kuwait of around 520-30M. This also relates to the stare...i miil account. 

Misr went wrong In the early 1980's. SN said that Misr marimgement did not Celli 
that an L/C was a real liability and earned good fees. So ureey opened many anc 
failed to control them. Documents were released on trust rarcE...ipt. borrowers 
deliberately defaulted and the exchange rate went against ,11:-em leaving the bank 
exposed. 

Hammoud loans were used to assist other bad debts. In Clanaca an hotel was, 
financed by BCC Canada. Hammoud took it over as joint venture. Carlson Farm 
in the US - the same thing. 
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ICIC was involved to keep the bank at one step removed. Harmmoud acted as 
BCC's shares nominee. 

He has small shares secured on property and life insurance cztwer. Hammoud 
received a fee from ICIC. 

SN said that Harnmoud acted the same way as Jabaly where s. problem loan in 
Misr was transferred in his name in order to try to recover the security of a property 
in Lebanon. 

Regular joint ventures were done with Hammoud. His heirs are responsible for 50% 
of those joint.venture losses. BCCI and CCAH shares are rec tered in his name. 

US oserations 

SN said that the US operations were required to obtain dollar =posits. Offshore 
deposits were required and Latin America was a major source.zzf dollars for US 

• banks. The Miami branch was profitable based on importing azind exporting for US 
customers. Los Angeles and San Francisco never made a pr=frt. Miami was 
motivated by a desire to mobilise deposits. 

Kit° 

Kifco is 49% owned by BCCI and 51% owned by local investc:m. Of which 26% are 
not responsible for their losses and 25% in the name of Toweli! who are not acting 
as nominees. It is managed by BCC. Initially it was set up to trade in shares and 
financing international trading. It was used to mobilise deposras from Kuwait until 
the central bank stopped it. 

The company was also used for domiciling loans. The Souc mi Maned losses were 
turned into loans and Ziaddin Akbar created new companies 7r_or loans that were 
bad debts to be parked in. 

BCP 

SN said that BCP was clean with no phoney accounts. It wass however used as a 
routing for remittances between can accounts. 

CFC 

SN said the position on this was open. 

ICIC Holdings 

This was used for joint venture agreements with customers. tt did not have a large 
balance sheet and its major asset was its investment in ICIC overseas. It was there 
to remain one step removed. 

ICIC Overseas 

This was used for funding of BCC and technically it may have a claim on BCC for 
funds taken fcr the Gulf Group and others. There were pern.los 5100M in this one 

„plus S100/150M. SN said that he had recommended share-n=lders to support ICIC 
and its problems are manageable. 

"%IP 



The purpose of Apex Holdings was to route dividends throucrr -to the staff benefit 
fund and foundation. 

He said that Kasmi was trying to reconstruct and was needing -to liaise with Akbar. 
He was only responsible for external, funds. Kasmi was otherwvise not involved but 
should have drawn his own conclusions. Since March 1990 h nas been informed 
but never kept his own orderly record. Things were being rct.. d through Kasmi. 

ICIC Investments 

The company managed other people's funds. It was a nominal company but was 
part of the overall scheme of things. 

ICIC has injected funds into CC: Holdings Luxembourg which =wns CCL UK, which 
was loss making but has been turned round. CC! Holdings Luxembourg was BCC 
owned through nominees. The UAE company is owned by !CZ Holdings through 
nominees. The Saudi is a subsidiary of I= Holdings. 

There is a memorandum on this held by HE Mazrui. 

GAD 

.2 The GAD loan in effect was the nominee investrnent of BCC :rr Misr. The beneficial 
ownership of Misr is as follows. BCC 49%, public 10%, GAD :2%, Jawhary 4-5%. 

Abbas Mosseihv/Lisa General - poor lending with crecfrts frorrr elsewhere. 

Rawas - Invested in E3CC shares from his own resources. H nas a letter from ICC 
giving the first option to ICIC to acquire them. Liens have nc7. teen taken on 
deposits in Dubai and Oman. 

Bamaodah - poor lending and the accounts have been reducze . 

Sogex - about SIM was used to reduce accounts. 

General Aaenc:es - no prcciem. 

Hail All Fad el - he owned the NBC shares in his right financ=. by BCC. 

Dhamal - no problem: possibly sbme manipulation. . 

ECTI - steel mill connected with BCC Misr and Cayman. 

Red Sea - Sh Kamal Adham and not manipulated. 

Advisor's Office 

This particular responsibility within the Advisor's Office was as follows: 

SMA Akbar - Gulf Group and helping SN 

Imran Imam (assisted by Nadim Nabim-Ullah) -CCAH 
GRP 
SKA 
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The SKA account used to be handled by Jamii Khan and Fakmir Hussain, although 
Razaii used to really handle the account. 

Arjamand Naqvi - assists SN and looks after List 1 accourrts. especially FIB. 
Handles FIB acCount. 

Jarnil Khan is in Pakistan - some of the funds were handled tn. y him but he left 
behind papers. He wanted to discuss his loans but SN couim not he him. SN 
advised him to tell the bank, SN said we could see him if we wanted to. 

Fakhir Hussain - was handling the accounts only half heartem4ty. Not involved in the 
underlying transactions, however, he may have surmised. 

Sharaf in Cayman was only a bookkeeper really. 

Nobody still in the bank has received any amounts. 

Kamal Sheikh acquired acknowledge through Zaddin Akbar and Jarnii Khan and 
then blackmailed. SN thought that ZA was the real crook. l- Eashim Sheikh was not 
in the same category. 

Zaddin then also put on the squeeze. Nobody else has expcofted their position anc 
SN has no knowledge of misuse. 

SN said that Mr Abedi had no direct gain and no relationshi= with the Gokais. SN 
said that Abedi was disgusted with the Gokals. 

SN said that he had received no monies in connection with all of this other than 
was in his personal account with the bank. 

During the course of the meeting Mr Nadvi broke down sev ral times in tears and 
had to recompose himself. 

MH Armour 
Recorded on 23 January 1991 from contemporaneous notes. 
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Notes on a meetinc at the Advisor's Office on120 January 19911at 12 72'CIOCk 

Present were: Swaleh Naqvi 
MH Armour 
Nadeem Habib-Ullah 

The meeting was held principally to discuss the accounts of Dr Ghaiut Pharaon (GRP). 
SN explained that the bona fide accounts of GRP were kept entirely. sabarate- from those 
accounts for nominee and manipulation purposes. He said he wishec.: to discuss the GRP 
position as follows: 

1. Relationship 
2. Written arrangements 
3 Split of accounts 
4. History of his non-accounts 
5. identification of major transactions 

Relationship 

He acted for nominee for BCC in the following way: 

a. BCC shares, which were about 50/50 BCC and his own. 
b. National Bank of Georgia, where 50% of the profit was due to ECCI 
c. Independence Bank where 50% of the profit was due to BCC: 

He also acted as nominee for 1010, in particular through his invotverrent with FILL. The 
ownership of FIIL was as follows: 

70% - owned by GRP and a written option agreement for ICIC 
15% - beneficially owned by GRP 
10% - beneficially owned by SKA 
5% - owned by Faisal Fulaij (2% for himself; 3% for ICIC) 

SN explained that Mr Abedi worked for Habib Bank in 1946. After pam:ition he started 
developing branches in Pakistan. He became disaffected and his phrtziple aim was to 
involve management in the business. With Saigol capital he formed a._ Dank. Before ICIC 
he intended it to be a profitable operation. He firstly identified Attocx Dil, where the UK 
company wished to divest, and so FIIL was formed in order to own 7:-.e oil company. 
Then came the insurance group at a later date. 

Under FILL, there was mainly Attock Oil, nvolving the UK company raving operations in 
Pakistan and elsewhere overseas. Concessions were obtained in Atu.i Dhabi and so 
various companies were formed to exploit this. SKA had particioated rn this. However, 
large losses were incurred of S20M. FILL had a loan from BCC and 7ms was transferred to 
ICIC . 

Tradiarain 

This was a Swiss commodity trading comoany owned by the Gokais. When tney 
pressurised the Gokals to sell their assets they acquired Tradigrain Tirrough GRP and the 
proceeds were applied against the account. ICIC had agreed to finailloe and run it but 
failed to do so . GRP had initially said that he was interested in takir.z.d over the operation 
but actually it was owned by ICIC in GRP's name. It has since been amid to BP and the 
loans repaid. 
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1..‘kte. 
ICC gave loans to GRP and the fundsLused to repay in BCC. 

List B loans were used for the investment of BCC shares and fcr servicing atiier loans 
including the CCAH lending. This was done to show the auditors tri i the loans were 
being serviced. 

He said that there were written agreements in respect of these nominme arrangements in 
the files. 

Independence Bank 

SN gave me a copy of the option agreement between Independence sank and ICIC. 

SN explained that when indePendence Bank was acquired, Mr Abed •wanted to keep an 
option open for the bank to acquire it. 51% of the bank was held by ,SRP and 85% for 
1CIC or its nominees. This written agreement may be null and void, as ctstises were not 
fulfilled. GRP asked for 50% to compensate him for his active mana ment oversight of 
the business. 

SN said that there is a letter from GRP saying that he wants to stay a: 1.5% written about 2 
years ago. A copy of that is in fact with Mr Shoaibh, the BCC's ms-n put in at 
Independence Bank. 

NBG agreement 

There is an agreement in writing for the bank to charge fees on the Je 

Attock Oil 

There is an option agreement on Attock Oil and the UAE concessions. 

Confirmations 

GRP was asked to conrirm balances but was given side letters that .c=ans would be settled 
from securities held, i.e. supposedly underlying investments for the r=mine-e claims. GRP 
occasionally would ask for his nominee loans to be settled and SN =id him that securities 
would be available. This was about 2 or 3 years ago. 

Statements given to GRP 

The statements were given to GRP to help keep track of his nornine,ze and cenuine loans. 
They were broken down in the following way: 

a. bona fide accounts 
b. investment in BCC and FILL (later transferred to 1C1C) 
c. NBG related 
o. Ad hoc. - to repay third party loans 
e. Independence Bank related 

SN said that GRP did not know the real purpose of the loans and tl.".zbudht tt...ey were bein 
used to finance BCC shares. 

As regards the BCC shareholdings, Mr Hafeez is preparing a sched7.1;ie. 



SN asked Mr Nadeem Habib-Ullah to create a transmission record re-=rding the debits 
each account and their destinations. 

As regards his analysis of security: 

List A security relates to deposits on which there is no formal lien 
Eurotunnei shares, which are fully secured 
Centrust, which he said was dispose of 

List B security relates to Independence Bank 
Batace - SN said that Imran Imam in London would know the involvement of GRP in 
Batace and the Virani connection. 

Rainman - SN that lmran Imam would know more about this, he said t was party nomi 
and partly GRP. 

Rio Estates 7 he said that this was GRP's personal borrowings. 

SN agreed that Derek Tyler should visit II to discover more about  

Redec - was not used for any purpose. 

List A No 15 - S5M was given to GRP for extra capital in Independer= Bank. 

As far as GRP's files in London are concerned, SN exolained that the CGrana Jury in NE 
York had subpoenaed GRP's files. GRP had served an injunction on :me bank to ensu 
the files were not despatched to the bank. 

As regards the prosect of repayment, he said that GRP had the canar=ty to repay the I 
A borrowings. 

GRP requested an extra 517.9M to reimburse for injection made into :mdepencience Bz 
in the 3rd September quarter. He explained that certain accounts ne ed to be remo\ 
from Independence Bank and GRP had done this on the understancimg that tne funds 
would be provided by BCC1. 

He suggested that the bank still needed GRP to sell Independence Bank. He talked c 
net worth of 542M at a multiple of 1.75 giving a value of approximately - $68M. 

MN Armour 
Recorded from contemporaneous notes on 23 January 



Notes on a meetino_ at the Advisor's Office on 20 January 19911tat apmyrox 5  ̂  

Present were: Swaleh Naavi 
Nadeem Habib-Ullah 
MH Armour 
John A Guy 

I raised with SN the comment he had made in his memorandum regarzing that in 1986/87 
an arrangement had been entered into with Mahfouz. 

SN explained that Mahfouz wished to acquire the bank. An arrangerrent was made with 
1= whereby ICC had undertaken to procure 30% of BCC I and 30% :of CCA.H subject to 
the separate regulatory approvals. required. 

BCC shares 

Some shares were sold to Sh Khalid that were held by nominees (thi.s could be looked 
up). , The funds were received from SKBM and utilised against the corrresponaing loans 
and for other loans. There was a pool of funds used to repay other-itmns 

There was a rights issue and the other shareholders all waived right .m favour of Sh 
Khalid. Money flowed directly into the capital of Holdings. 

Convertible capital notes were issued to him and again credited to thEs caprt.-i of Hoidinas. 

Together these made about 30%. 

CCAH 

9.9% were sold to Burford Investments (which held them on behaxf c-r Sh Knaiid - these 
have now passed the CPA). The vendor was Crescent and Stock Holdings who passed 
the shares to Mashing, which was then acting as the nominee for Sh 

Because of the need to get regulatory approval, the other 20% was 7.= transferred into SI-
Khalid's name. However, he provided loans thrdugh NCB secured cm the 20% shares 
which enabled the bank to get funds. An agreement was entered into with him whereby 
Sh Khalid could divest within 3 years except for the capital notes whion were redeemable 
in 5 years. Secondly ICC group guaranteed to acquire the shares trc-2,m Sh Khalid at the 
initial purchase price plus a profit equivalent to the prevailing interest 7rate. Meanwhile Sh 
Khalid notified towards the end of 1987 or early 1988 that he did not •want to go ahead, i.e 
he exercised his shadow option to sell the underlying shares to ICIC. 

BCC shares sale 

BCC started acquiring BCC shares from him by creating loans aria pc--;-..ying him in 
installments. In August 1988 1CIC borrowed S435M from ACIA aria S-100M from NCB to 
buy the shares from Sh Khalid. 

With interest etc he was paid about $535M. 

The 20% shareholdings were sold to the government in 1990 for SFr- 1M. These proceec; 
were used to repay the ADIA loan of S435M plus interest of about Sr2M/72M, S115M 
were repaid to NCB and the balance was put to a general pool of furrrqs. The bank in 



effect made a profit on the transaction even after interest payments = about S50-70 milli°, 
used to make write offs and make up sh fils in Sh Mcibanmcd's unt. 

Cc ..tiate4 
Pressure came from Sh Khalid for the 9.9°/0)he1ci1n the name of Buz ii..1141 to be bought 
However, the government would not buy. So it was agreed to pay 'ram $147M which was 
effected in the form of 2 loans of MOM and $47M. BCC took over -trre CCAH shares. 

However, BCC owed the DPA 20,000 CCAH shares - it had used DP)14 funds for other 
things. So the $147M was added in the name of Mahfouz to a CCA1±. lending with no 
increase in the underlying assets. A balance confirmation was obtairrmd from him for aucii 
purposes. 

Before the government took over the 20% CCAH shares in 1990, the shares were used to 
support further loans and accounts were opened under the name of CCAH Shareholders 
with NCB. The funds were transferred back to BCC! Cayman. The 'mans asnountd to 
S320M and the proceeds were used to: 

1. pay back loans of Crescent and Stock 
2. surplus used in the pool 

- 
If Mahfouz had got approval for the 20% holding in CCAH he would Mame had to have psi{ 
in the funds. On the Burford shares, there is a 9.9% blank transfer csee.d for 25,000 at the 
will of DPA. Interest on the S147M, i.e. the minimum price agreed, h been paid to 
Mahfouz by creating a loan in Bahrain of about 540M. 

GRP 

GRP was selected as a nominee and used to borrow money from NCLi GRP consented 
to the opening of the account and there should be a letter on file sciiiitwhere holding him 
harmless. Amounts of S7OM and then S35M were borrowed several 'years ago and 
serviced from elsewhere either aebited to GRP's own accounts cr cli;ter a unts or ICIC. 
NCB always had placements to cover this borrowing. 

GRP felt uncomfortable with this arrangement, as he had to renew e n year. NOS was 
also uncomfortable. So the bank took it back. 

SN said that in all of this, there was no grand plan - just ad hoc expe iency. He said 
there were no separate records maintained to keep track of what wa done. 

S 'KA 

SN said that this was a simple affair and that NH would be able to  c ISt in tracking 
amounts. He suggested that the bank should be talked to. He said :May were non-
sensitive accounts in the bank aria suggested that I talk to Mr Fakhir Hussain. He said 
the accounts were not debited with amounts for account manipulaticrn. 

Hammoud 



He said there was a great overiap with ICIC. An exercise had already teen done. He 
suggested that we look at the latest communication with the bank by asking Mr Velmi. 

He said start with Mr Velmi but the bulk is in !CIO. In SCCI there is Hammouo's own 
borrowing and Egyptian loans parked there. We should talk to SN =out the Egyptian 
loans. 

MH Armour 
Recorded on 23 January 1991 from contemporaneous notes 
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Notes of a meting held at th  Advisor's Office onli2january j  jar 5 cm 

Present were: Swaieh Naavt 
SM Akbar 
Ariarnand Naqvi 
MH Armour 
Neil Blair 
Charles Barrows 

The meeting was arranged principally to discuss the affairs of Sh Karmai Acinarn and ai 
SOCC and Jawahary. 

SKA 

SN explained that SKA had been a shareholder in BCC since inceptc:Tri. !ritzily it was 
subscribed by him and later rights issues were party funded from his own resources a 
partly his nominee. He has always been useful in developing the bm-nk's business. 

The first original purchases by SKA in CCAH were with DPA and Fai i Fulaii. He went 
through length depositions and became the lead shareholder. He,WillhAdham 
Corporation, held 14/15%. 

With CCAH, the initial subscription was from his own resources aria tine rightm issues w 
funded from loans. His personal name shares were expected to eventually become 
nominee holdings. There was no written agreement until 1988 when- SN wanted to kee 
the shares under control. 

SKA was unwilling to compromise his position, so he had an option agreement with ICI( 
for them to buy his shares within five years. He wanted a profit for f-acind thseworid.as 
nominee. He has signed blank transfer forms and the shares are t ng used in the pcc 

His other nominee lending includes: 

FilL - 10% financed by ICIC and secured by the shares and corttroil d by IL 
SOCC - nominee company. BCC lent the money and it was col iuu,ied by BCC. 

SN explained that he had sent a memorandum to central credit con=rning the list of 
accounts and his recommendations. 

As far as li st A was concerned it related to a CCAH lending and I exablainea that Mike 
Hunter and Mick Walker would be looking at that. We concentrated on list f3 which \era! 
designated non-CCAH lending by SN. 

North West International 

SN explained that NWI was a vehicle for investment in Allied Arab Bank (now Allied Trus' 
Bank). The bank had agreed to invest in ATB, but held the investment through NW!. It 
would have taken more but was unable to obtain the appropriate pr—nrovais. 

Originally the investment asked for by SKA from the bank was f..6mUon for the shares 
and also to take over the restructuring costs that were added to it. The bank commirteo 
to the investment and there was a lengthy restructuring in which Mr Shawari was involve 
Interest was charged on the account. 

4Ph 



Under the arrangements the bank could become owner of about 3-5 . of AIGed Trust 
Bank. Balance of account represents accumulated interest and char s from the initial 
investment. 

SOCC 

This was a nominee investment . 

Account 2971 

This was CCAH related. 

SN stated that the accounts Were clearly split between his own borrc-wona. SKA's own 
people, which included a qualified accountant, would have reviewed /ne s=ements. 

SOB 

A 325M loan was taken out from the Cairo bank in the name of SKA .with BCC making an 
equivalent placement with the bank. The funds were paid back to £1)  bank to appear as 
repayments to CCAH lending. Interest was paid either from his cuir lir accounts or 
externally, i.e. through ICC as part of the general pool of funds. 

BCC Emirates was used to park loans in order to use its spare liquitty and to move 
profitability around the croup. 

The bifccaticn of the accounts follows the way in which it was always'. ;;reserrred to SKA. 

SN suggested that further discussions were held with Mr Arjamand Nqvi and that .Zafraz 
should be asked to come from London where he has now been maca redundant. He 
said that he knows a at although his involvement was only booking :the entries. 

Claim 

kiN SN said that there had been an agreement with SKA that interest shmuid be charged at 1% 
over LIBOR. This he said was in wilting in about 1985. In fact the tank charged much 
more than this. On CCAH related lending it did not concern SKA sin= he was not 
responsible for it. On the other lending he had had a claim to get thE.=_. accounts adjusted 
to strip out the excess interest and service charges and bring the inr est back down to 
1% over UBOR. SN said that SKA had confirmed the balances aria ECG had separately 
agreed to refund the charges even though he confirmed the balanc SN said that SKA's 
motivation for this was the large facilities afforded to him by the aanx and the promotion of 
goodwill in the relationsnip. 

SN said that he thougnt that a statement showing an analysis of a reTrund amounting to 
S2CM may have been given to SKA. He said that his last meeting wnrn SKA had been 
three months ago but there had been no further contact awaiting res-irructunng the 
account. 

He said that the two main things that were outstanding were agreemEent on: 

1. excess charges - as above 
2. compensation for carrying the CCAH shares and his role in thaa bank. He said that 

SKA was expecting a large payment, and SN said that he had_ indicated to SKA that 
52OM should be paid. 
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Asked who was responsible for raising the excess interest and servi charges, SN said 
that he would ask Grand Cayman to book the extra profit. 

Jawhary 

He said that Jawhary was an associate of SKA. When quizzed about the payments made 
from the SKA account into Jawhary accounts, in particular SAK Tra=g, SN said that 
SKA authorised all the payments and so that the reasons were his cwm affair and 
professed not to know the reasons behind the payments. 

4.0 
41, 

SEC1F Jawhary acted as nominee for the bank. 

BNK Holdings - Jawhary acted as nominee for the bank holding sha.i,  of BCC. 

Syeci Jawhary - Jawhary acted as nominee for holding CCAH shares =n beri.Fif of the 
bank. 

SN said that we should also find nominee holdings in respect of BCC :Misr. He said that 
GAD and Jawhary both act as nominees for this together with their .f=milies. He said that 
the ownership of Misr was approximately: 

BCC 60-65% 
Public 10% 
Other 10-20% 

SN said that they may have used GRP accounts to pay SAK with fees -that were due to 
Jawhary for his involvement as a nominee for the bank. Fees were : id on a formula 
basis for his involvement as nominee for BCC and CCAH. Mr Azmuraillah arranged 
payment of the fees. 

Asked about the payments by Kaad Corporation to Red Sea, SN saic. .that this was SKA's 
own business and the bank was not involved. 

Jeddah Hotels 

This was a 50/50 joint venture between SKA and GRP. SN said that RP was acting in 
his own right and not as nominee for the bank. He said that GRP h= sold his interest to 
SKA and repaid his related borrowing. When asked whether or not rx5 repayment by 
GRP came from his own resources or from drawdowns elsewhere on GRP accounts, SN 
stated that it was from GRP's own resources and that we should nor 7.7..rejudoe GRP's own 
bona fides just because the bank had manipulated accounts in his na-me. 

SKA finances 

SN explained that the relationship with SKA had started with deposrm =laced from his own 
resources at the very beginning. SKA's liquidity had been very tight r the last 4 or 5 
years. He had invested in properties and the market had crashed an he could not put a 
value on them. 

SKA had had a large commission business with the government but :this had stopped 
about 4 or 5 years ago. He had some income and assets but there ..was no reliable 
financial information. 
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SKA had not made any payments or serviced interest from his own rasources.since 1984. 
SN regarded that prospect of recoveries from SKA other than througrr -the realisation of 
security to be dim. 

He thought that SKA was potentially dangerous to the bank if a comic; tcitional approach 
was adopted. He thought however that SKA would like to settle these affairs. SN had 
discussed this with Mr Jawhary but the arguments are unsettled con ming the level of 
rebate and the fee concerning CCAH. 

Asked about the promissory notes on file signed by SKA, SN said that SKA would sign 
blank promissory notes. If they were filled in first, it was possible tha.7the balance on the 
relevant accounts would rise above the amounts in the promissory nm-zes so they would 
become invalid. Instead blank signed notes were kept so that they czauld be completed as 
required to make them more legal. They might still be voidable but mulch better than an 
outdated promissory note. Asked why a customer would be happy t= sign a blank 
promissory note, SN explained that the customer was happy to do tlic.It since there was 
significant goodwill between the customer and the bank and the cusa....iiier trusted the 
bank only to act property. Asked why the bank required the customer to sign the 
promissory notes, SN explained that they were obtained in order to. ma.slead the auditors 
that the loans were bona fide and supported by promissory notes. 

He explained that the main businesses of SKA were: 

Cairo Beverages 
Red Sea 
Contracting businesses 
Property businesses 
Commi9sion agents 

He suggested that Neil Blair should meet SKA as soon as he was rea-z.gy 

Jawhary 

Heavy interest was also charged on his accounts although this has yet to be disputed by 
Jawhary. 

SDCC 

This represented the bank's investment in Saudi Arabia. No branch as or rep offices were 
permitted and BCC wanted an office there. SDCC was set up with smareholders SKA 
holding 85% as the nominee for BCC and Abdullah Aziz holding 10% with 5% elsewhere. 

1985 the nominee shareholdings were changed to ensure that SOCC did not appear in 
SKA's group accounts. The three new nominees were chosen .by Mr Jawhary. 

It did no real business except invest in 2 properties, one of which haz.-, since been sold. 

Restrictions were placed on companies in Saudi Arabia acting on bermif of foreign banks 
and so the company was used far the routing of funds on behalf of C. The local 
accounts of SOCC did not reflect these dollar borrowings and loans .rn order to keep the 
balance sheets small and so minimise the amount of tax payable on met worth. 

In 1980, loans parked in SlOCC included Bishir - against BCC shares. Haji Bin Sultan - 
against BCC shares, Unetco - regular trading, Darhad - nominee tranm-action. 
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Loans could have gone somewhere else. The Saudi general manager does not know of 
the loans. It was formerly managed by a BCC manager on secondiii lit. who used to park 
bad loans and route loans for poor lending. 

Kfco was used in a similar manner. 

SECIF 

In Egypt only finance companies could have banking arrangemerrts it supported by Arao 
ownership. SOCC was used to provide this for BCC's involvement in- Egypt through 
SECIF. After 2 or 3 years offshore banking was allowed so SDCC invcolvemerrt became 
redundant. 

SEC1F was mostly owned by BCC through the 50% owned by SOCC znd by nominee 
holdings by Jawhary. The remaining shares were held by, SN thouc-rt, the public and 
others including some insurance companies. BCC seconded staff biz: after 2 years lost 
interest. It is managed by its own board. 

SEC1F gave no dividends and business was restricted. If Egypt allows conversion of 
SECIF into a bank then it may have some value. 

BCC! Financial Services Pte Ltd has one or two properties in Oman arid Dubai. It is 
funded by BCC Emirates. It may have been used in one or two noi iiee arrangements. 

BCC Financial Services Hong Kong may be an investment in Kifco an= other leasing 
companies in Malaysia and Hong Kong. 

Ownership is through BCC Financial Services Dubai through SDCC get round UAE nor 
banking company restrictions. 

BNK Holdincs 

Far BCC shares. 

CO 

The CCAH shares are used as a pool. The CCAH lending represen=: 

Rights issues 
Loans servicing 
Increasing profit/high management fees 

The S2OM fee payable to SKA referred to earlier, SN said, was not b ed on a formula 
he had calculated on the basis of the fees calculated for other nomineees where a formula 
was used. In simple terms it was 10 years times $2M per annum. 

He said the $20M rebate on interest and charges had been calculate= by Mr Rs7a All. 
When asked why the schedule summarising the analysis of the $20M rebate only coverec 
1988 and 1989, SN said that he had just picked up 2 or 3 years sinca.. ft he had chosen a 
years since inception of the arrangement in 1985, the amount would :-nave been too muct 
The exercise was done at the request of SKA and Jawhary and he s.mid the statement wa 
made a year ago. He suggested that we ask Fakhir Hussain whetheT or not a statement 
had been grven to them. 

1.3C 



• MH Armour 23 January 1991 based on contemporaneous notes. 
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Minutes of a meeting at the Advisors' Office on 24 January 1991 at 5 = 

Present were: Swaleh Naqvi 
SM Akbar 
Neil Blair 
MH Armour 
Mike Hunter 
John A Guy 

The meeting was held to discuss the affairs of the Gulf Group. 

SN explained that there were about 100 files covering the relationship smce 1972. The 
whole story is in the files and only bits of detail may be missing. 

He explained that the Gokals were an old Indian business family from Dutliwest India 
around Bombay. Two generations ago they had migrated to East Afri= and then on to 
Iraq (?). The three Gokal brothers who owned the business were Mu....,c-rapha (based in 
London), Abbas (based in Geneva) and Mustiaz (based in Canada). The main business 
brains was Abbas although the bank also dealt with Mustapha. Abbas•was settled in 
GeneN:ta which is effectively the base. , - 

\ 

SN had had no contact with the Gokals prior to BCC. The account re=ionship started in 
London in 1972 when SN was in Abu Dhabi and Akbar Aneez was gen-e....ral manager in the 
UK. 

The bank needed both deposits and business. The Gokals placed S=M in Luxembourg 
• and London. At that time SN said that he had no knowledge of their ....=ze of operations. 

In 1977 they started opening facilities in London of modest amounts arrroi started routine 
substantial remittances through the bank and letters of credit. This de=rne major 
business for London. 

It was the policy of the tank at that stage not to do term lending but czniy trace finance. 
However, in 1976 the bank started shipping loans as bridge finance tc7 the Gokals 
secured on old ships. Usually for a period of 2 years. 

The deposits were then withdrawn and the reason given that they we  used as down 
payments on large orders for ships from the Japanese. At the same ..-7me the Gokals 
started buying other businesses. The relationship was invaluable but 71-ne size grew to 590-
100M which at the time represented 50/60% of the bank's capital. In -19XX the Bank of 
England issued its 10% guideline concerning individual risk. Althougr. -.me bank was based 
in Luxembourg, its UK branches had to report to the Bank of England_ So the borrowings 
were moved to Cayman in 1976. The account was still managed from London. When the 
exposure hit S200M, the Board and the auditors were concerned. Mesetings were held 
between Mr Abed and the Gokals. 

UK management continued to manage the account until it grew too large. The profits 
went to Cayman and it was a problem account and was treated as 'clz: of siant, out of 
mind'. SN took over the responsibility in 1978 for the account assiste= by Mr Hashim 
Sheikh. The balances continued going up. 

By 1985 (?) they had been hit by the shipping recession and the Gok2= came to the bank 

asking fd- salvation. It was clear that the bank's and the clients' fates were interlocked. If 

the bank had not supported the Gokals, 50 to 60% of the capital of t4,--.E.e bank would have 
been wiped out. 
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SN initially agreed to extend $50M and insisted that the Gulf Group recauce operating 
costs, reduce the size of their establishment and divest assets. The ::)M was exhausted 
in 2 or 3 months and the Gokals kept on coming back. They would snow a demand from 
a bank or a notice of arrest of a ship. The bank would be told that if 't hese were not met 
then the holding company would have defauited. The sftuation was a -nightmare. SN 
used to run the bank during the day and at night with Has him Sheikh 'would go to the 
Gokals offices to discuss matters. Two or three times a month the C-tkals would ask for 
more money in sums of $2, 3, 5M and it would be allowed. 

sio 

There was considerable pressure from auditors, the board and eventumily the regulators. 
The tangible security was very small. 

In 1982 the Gokals re- organised the group into two holding companiaz. One was GIN 
organised to show a good balance sheet with much net worth. This was the paperwork to 
support the paper security. 

The bank was having a major problem with publicity. In 1985 it had itz treasury losses. If 
the Gokals folded in 1986, then there would have been a big problem— with publicity. The 
US situation then arose. External factors played a major role. Withotz: a fallback position 
or a lender of last resort, it was impossible to stand up to the Gokals_ Because of other 
loans not being serviced, he started to use the Gokals account to rotate funds back into 
the accounts. This should be traceable. There were no organised rec=rds for this just, ad 
hoc arrangements. The reconciliation work is being done from notes Tnade. 

From time to time he tried to get them to reorganise their business. :They had a company 
Tradigrain that had a net asset position of about $26M. SN got it sot= to Or Ghaith 
Pharaon to reduce the balances. However the business went down a particularly Soviet 
purchases of grain fell and the business was eventually sold to EP. 

SN tried to help generate business in bunkering for Saudi flag vesseLT.. working with Sh 
Kemal Adham and Or Ghaith Pharaon. 

They had a finance company, a licenced deposit taker, in Hong Kor=. The Gokals said 
that the bank had to fund the LOT too to avoid a collapse due to its ri.=uidity crisis. They 
continued to speculate and made losses in trading and on these spe=latve transactions. 
The bank tried to identify these but the Gokals never admitted them a:nd they found out 
from the market that speculative losses had been made. 

After 1986 SN asked for a monthly report of cash flow but had no means to check it. 
However, they were not much help due to the recurring ad hoc crise  the Gulf Group had. 

The offshore companies were set up once the Gulf Group limits were .exhausted. The 
companies had bearer shares which were mostly owned by the Goka.-..1s. These accounts 
were opened in Kuwait, BCCE, N80 ano funds would be routed frcrrr •them to the main 
Gulf Group accounts. SN said that he hoped to get other customers :to do joint ventures 
with these offshore companies. However, the joint venture in Sauoi ;.rrabia involving SKA 
and GRP had been a bitter experience. The Gokals had defaulted an= GRP had been on 
the receiving end of writs and was very unhappy. 

Las: year the offshore loans were consolidated. The balances are wail established and 
only need analysis. Some money was used for the bank's own purczmes, however the 
offshore funds have only been used for the Gokals account. The You:Pliers should 
represent the principal amounts drawncown plus subsequent intere.-.-4:. 
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SN arranged private financing for them, say S15M for 6 months, from ..ittier sources'. SN 
would not specify what these sources were saying that he was not permitted to by higher 
authorities. He confirmed that Mr Mazrui would have to give his perrmssion for SN to 
discuss these external sources further. He explained that from time = time the trail will go 
into these other sources. Until we could see the other sources we vvicluid not understand 
the full picture. He said that the matters could be explained later. The bank took 
responsibility for refunding these other sources. 

SN said that there had been insinuations that the Gokals might be in =artnership with Mr 
Abedi or some other manager. He said that this was not the case arra that the 
relationship with the Gokals was only force of circumstance and in fa = was out of control. 

As far as the recover/ process was concerned, he said that. he did nc:rt think they had any 
wealth of substance. The relationship had become very intimate aria SN had made his 
best estimate of their assets. The only findings are in the file. They =rrtainty may have 
money - however he could find nothing substantial. He concluded Id7et they could only go 
into liquidation. 

He recommended to proceed only once the financial position of the tmtnk was clearer, and 
that they should be taken into liquidation. Neil Blair asked whether.it-was prectcal to write 
off a substantial amount of the debt and ask for the balance to be re=nked. SN thought 
this was impractical. They have not once met their commitments. 

He said he had to cross his fingers when they were paid funds to rat.= on elsewhere that 
the funds did actually flow on. He had no confidence. He found it tifficuit to accept that 
any arrangements would be honoured. 

The bank took personal guarantees from the three brothers who are tne•shareholders. 
When the bank started threatening, the family fell apart. Mustapha was approached but 
both he and Mustiaz were scared of Abbas who would be using the -tunas. Mustaz went 
to Canada. Even the children tried to keep away. 

He said that Abbas had never been a shareholder in the bank. Wban ICC was acquiring 
shares from the Bank of America, the Gokals had a finance company:. ICIC may have 
borrowed 52.5M short term from the finance company. There were moo joint ventures or 
any relationship of that sort between the bank and the Gokals. Their -accounts were only 
used to hide losses and boost profits. He said he could not susper= interest because of 
the balance sheet and could not leave the loans appearing to be norr--performing. 

He said that the Gulf Group were not connected with the affairs of Att ck Oil or Nigeria. 
Attack Oil was an investment by Abedi with Ghaith Pharaon. He sai= -the Nigeria deal was 
to lend MOM to the government. Attack would lift the oil and repay.. The deal did not 
happen. The Saudi joint venture did not involve the bank only SKA and GRP participation 
as local sponsors. 

SN said that he started adjusting the Gokals accounts in 1980 aithan the bulk of the 
adjustments had been made in 1983, 84, 85 and 1986. From 1987 0.-nwards it became 
more difficult for him to arrange new purported lending. He said the i_Gokals cash position 
was less strained in those years because of an improvement in the srnipping market and 
the benefits of the cost reduction undertaken. In addition they had =cpped speculating. 

He said the loans in the offshore companies came back to the main •cientifieci Gulf 
company accounts. Drawings may also have been made from CCAH and GRP where tne 
funds drawndown form part of the pool of funds available for adjubaiiient. The CCAH 
shares were going up in value so the nominee accounts could be t..sqnd more and similarl 
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GRP's accounts could be used in an emergency. 

He said that for Hashim Sheikh the management of the Gokal account was almost a full 
time function. He use to ensure that there was good turnover on the .2.r-courts either real 
or false. After him the activity fell away and SM Akbar who took over -the account knew 
the account far less. 

The Gokals had 30 to 40 other bankers and had about 20 main comr---anies in all. For the 
routing of funds the Gokals would nominate a bank to which BCC would pay and then the 
Gokals would arrange for the bank to pass the funds back to BCC. Some funds were 
directly paid to other banks and some accounts were used for reguimr trading purposes. 
There were a number of companies which were used to route the fur= for the offshore 
companies. The bank did. not form any of these intermediary companies compaes and the Gokals 
may have used them for other purposes. 

When asked what the gross exposure of the Gokals might be if the adiustrnents were 
added back, SN declined to estimate. He said that separate discuss-.:cms were needed 
and he needed to clear it with Ghanim Mazrui. He said that apart frcrm adjustments by the 
bank some credits may have come from the Gulf operations, otherwi they would be 
from "other sources'. We could talk about it that time. 

The Gokals confirmed the balances each year and in the consolidatcrn. They will however 
in any final negotiations say that: 

- the bank used some of the drawdowns on their accounts 
- they were charged excess charges and service fees. 

This will need to be analysed. The Gokals knew the sources of the cra...dit adjustments to 
their own accounts, including the 'other sources". Those "other soul L...u-s" would co direct 
to the Gokals to recover those credits made. In answer to the ques-a= whether the 
Gokals could exploit the sensitivity so as to avoid liquidation, SN saic :that the bank should 
be sole to show that it had lent money to the Gokals and he did not =ink the Gokals 
would take much comfort from the possibility of discussing the senstwities more openly. 

Interest and charges were excessive, but the rebate has yet to be c=ulated. Somewhere 
in the record of the early days, SN said should be found an agreement to charge 2% over 
LIBOR. In fact 3% was charged and loan fees of 1% plus other chardres. Confirmations 
were obtained for audit purposes from Gokals and SN said that no si=e letters were given 
to them concerning their responsibilities in respect of the balance conifirmations. I made 
the point that since the Gokals were confirming balances less than their gross exposure, 
they were unlikely to need side letters in the same way that perhaps f..-BRP needed a letter 
when he was confirming balances greater than his own exposure. 

In answer to NB's question whether or not the bank had given the G:Dkals auditors any 
confirmation of the bank's balances, SN said that the bank would have done so but only 
confirmed those balances that appeared in the Gokals balance sheer.. There were other 
considerable borrowings that were not on the Gokals balance sheer nd so were not 
confirmed in that way. 

The Gokals accounts were used to service other accounts. SN said :Mat overall about 1CC 
accounts in the bank had been adjusted. He thought that about 10 := 20 accounts were 
not on the list of accounts under review. 

He said that SM Akbar has started analysing adjustments from the su.mply side including 
from co.Jrces not to do with the bank. Part has been used for the Gokals and part for 
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others. On the used side, the Gokal account debits were used also fcgir others. 

When asked about the routings of funds, SN said that BAH were not imvolved except in 
that GRP had his genuine accounts there. BCP was used for some ct irect routing from 
external sources to accounts but was otherwise not involved. NCB vvaas used to generate 
funds outside the bank including the two loans of $70M and $35M in lne name of GRP. 
He also mentioned BAU although he seemed uncertain and he merrticaned European Bank 
where GRP would be asked to borrow and it would be matched by.pacements from BCC. 

Asked about the possibilities that funds were fraudulently taken in the Toutine process. SN 
said that Hashim Sheikh had the best opportunity however there was ma evidence of 
fraud. In all the reconciliation work carried out to date, no fraud haa en uncovered. 
SN monitored the flows quite -carefully when funds were being routed ...7-nd so should have 
been aware had funds been leaving the loop. He said that no fees were paid to the 
Gokals or any transactions other than as described. 

He said that as far as the manipulation of the accounts were concerri d, his personal team 
central support office (CSO) knew everything. Affiliates co-ordination .1.mit (ACU) menaced 
the offshore business in London. When Zaddin Akbar was dealing \hint-h. Treasury and 
booking entries in Cayman there had been a separate Cayman desk_ However when the 
tax issues arose, the name had to change to ACU. 95% of its time w  spent dealing with 
Cayman accounts. 

SN took time to explain CSO and Mr Abedi's concept. He felt that a mead office needed 
to be supportive of the field and not just control it. Abedi felt that he ii eded to motivate 
the field management and avoid the heavy hand of bureaucratic cciluLil. In Habib Bank, 
Abedi had thought that management was over controlled and treate-c ad1y. When he 
created United Bank he had established conventional controllers but -.they had become 
demi-gods and SN's own controller had dictated staffing issues as well as many other 
things. When Abedi formed BCC the central support office was narn _i such for both 
pnilosopnical and tax reasons. It could not be called a head office as- -this would have 
given problems in the filing of returns, dealing with the regulators an -tax.

SN said that the Gokals had no other connections with other customis. 

SN said that the board had been very concerned at the Gokals lialpiiitv but had no idea of 
the way the accounts were being manipulated or total exposure hidcaan from them. The 
credit committee he said also had no idea. They would approve draawcowns based on 
submissions from tze his team and would rely on whatever Hashim aneikh told them. 
Central credit would see it coming from SN or his team and, trusting 3N implicitly, they 
would agree to what ever was put forward. SN said that they also knew that he would be 
doing the explaining to the board and the auditors. SN never told anyone outside his 
own team what was happening as it could not have been contained. 

As far as balance confirmations on the offshore accounts, he said t1-.F__=. Gakals would get 
the nominees to sign the balances. These nominees were relations r associates of the 
Gokals. He said the profiles of the "owners" of the offshore comparilers were put together 
to explain the accounts to the board and the auditors. The profiles wfere orchestrated by 
the bank and the Gokals and put fcrward by the bank. He said it warEs hoped that some of 
these nominees would actually engage in some meaningful trading ri ationstlio with the 
Gokals but this never happened. 
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As far as recovery prospects were concerned: 

1. Pilot Petroleum - he said this had little value possibly $2 or 3M. It had storage 
tankers. Small producers would sell to it in order to bulk the civantities to 
consolidated saleable parcels. This had only been successful when prices had 
been high. And also it had an oil trading business which had made losses. 

SN said that the Gokals had also speculated with gold, grain anti other 
commodities without much success. 

2. Dutch companies -he said this was their best asset The net wczrth was 
approximately $30M (or at least S20-25M). However ft was a rnmnagement run 
business and he believed the management to be good. Any c-ulyer would need to 
be able to take over the management or manage the business rrnmediately. The 
Gokals had also borrowed through these companies from Dut=n banks. The Dutch 
banks had forced restructuring and BCC had been required tc mrovide funding to 
enable az. inter company debts to be repaid. There had been s plan to float the 
Dutch companies however this had been abandoned followinc the 1987 crash. 

Referring again to Tradigrain, SN said the bank had no expertise anc Inerefore could not 
control it following the acquisition. ICIC was barely able to cover the an with the 
proceeds. 

SN said that there were no other Gulf Group management that could =e negotiated with 
concerning the repayment of debt. The bank could only negotiate witth the 3 brothers. He 
suggested trying Mustapha first. He said Abbas was a dreamer. 

As far as the involvement of personnel with the group: 

Zadein Akbar - some of the funds were routed through Trees...Lilly 

SM Akbar - SN said that SMA has to cope with his repulsion cr' the Gokals. In 
addition he is sensitive to being considered being a crook whan he is not. He is 
concerned that if he does not have an answer to any pard=ar- clues-ton it might be 
misconstrued as evasion or conspiracy. 

SN said that he was going bock to London for a check-up on his eye-7 every 2 weeks. His 
next check-up was on 29 January althouon he offered to postpone rirus by a week if 
required. He would be away for 2 or 3 days. 

Velmi saw Abbas Gokal in London. Yet again they wanted more mc:rfey. Velmi wanted 
the documentation signed up to finish off the last consolidation. Sin last December SN 
had had no personal contact with the Gokals. There had been sornff- telephone calls with 
SMA to keep channels open. He is not familiar with their current amucie. 

SN said that he had been most concerned that the Gulf Group wauc.. -fail before the bank's 
restructure was in place. This would cause considerable publicity. does not see how 
the Gokals can settle. 



Neil Blair said that the Gokals had not been fully cooperative. They wzarftecl to transfer 
funds from affiliates presumably so that ft boosts their own balance srrzeat SN said that _ 
they would need to construct their balance sheet ether in March or My 1991. An 
approach to the Gokals should waft for the group's own financial su=re to be in place. 

MH Armour 
Recorded 27 January 1991 from contemporaneous notes made 
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SANDSTORM 

otes of a meeting on 26 January 1991 

-esent: S Naqvi 
M H Armour 
SJ Chapman 
ML Hunter 

. Fzya 

1HA explained that there were a number of issues PW wis-ned to aiscuss 
uring the meeting including the extent of the account marninuiation, the 
7ea5ury lasses and the related entities. 

. Other -Accc,Nunts 

SN said that he estimated there were about 100 hundie.L.Jac=unts 
ex-luded On the Companies A and B lists but noted tha--:there may be 

tgpe other accounts which have been touched by the itrregular activities. 
estimated that there were 10 to 20 other accounts irrc:1uding some 

small adjustments accounts e.g. the Vail group whidi was probably 
adjusted in the mid-1980's. He said that there were. no =her accounts in 
BCC1's books which had been involved in the manipuia=on except for 
those on the list and those which had been closed. 

TreasurY 

SN explained that the Treasury evolved at the time that me moved from 
Abu Dhabi to London in 1975. At that time SN started :to look after the 
bank's liquidity and used Za Akbar who had previausiy =e-en with 
Commerce Bank in Pakistan and then from National Earnk of Oman to 
help him. Initially SN and la were involved in managIrm the licuidity of 
the bank and the large dollar deposits. This was partic=arty important 
because the bank had to maintain high liquidity in all a.:..-i-rendes because 

rigad no lender of last resort. Because of the cost of m-rooilising 
osits at the top end of the market rates the bank had a profitability 

problem and this had initially led to trading activities to :try to e-nnance the Iced with 
bank's return. ofits. SN first 

rill the 
Initially the trading activities had only been specified for -government 3N, la had 
securities however the futures market evolved in 1976i — ana Zia showed haa been 
some interest in this. Zia thus began trading in futures m a small way ;aid that he 
and made some profits. Following the initial profits. trading was the Dank 
expanded and the Treasury division re-organised with a proper trading able hole in 
department added. As no other expertise was availatke in the bank, total 
management and control responsibility for this was left •with la. 

SN further explained that as Zia was a trusted assistant ne was given 
other nan-specific jobs for example the funding of CCAH and BCC rights 
issues. This brought him into contact with SKA/ARK arnd also provided 
him with knowledge about the nominee shareholdings_ 
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During the last quarter of 1985 SN thought that Some gm= profit could 
be mace from writing call options. The bank had high lictuidity athis 
time and could have afforded to take delivery of the assiars under the 
calls if the market price went against the bank. The calls written gave 
premium income of about $50 million however in Januarv/February the 
auditors had said that this income was not correct. At tt-its time the 
markets were fluctuating dramatically and in February tt7e bank could 
have closed the deals and made a profit but instead ts t on the 
positions and made a substantial loss as reported by PHI. The PW 
report only covers those deals booked at the bank. Otlitei deals 
particularly in respect of ARK were not booked and it was not possible 
to ascertain what was happening. 

v.../ 

Following this period SN had a very difficult time with Za. who kept 
disappearing. The 1985 accounts were eventually close= however SN 
later received a statement from Zia showing deposit Los s ana profits 
injected totalling $800 million. SN said that this was the =nty =cement 
from which the bank could try to build a reconciliation ui tile past and it 
would be extremely difficult as brokers were used to briask the cnain of 
accounting entries within the bank. SN was then face'd .with the 
nightmare of how to explain the gaps in customer deposits and how to I
replace them. U. (2,c;s L kF -r L*13---1 u s_s- 6) C To-4-t-t-t- 3 
Mr__ -To •-n4-€ I 9., (2a-EA1 j r-  P 

SN satd_llaat_the investoation team should see Za's harrcpwritten 
c/4 01statement. All of the fraudulent activity relates to Grand Cayman and at 

the time the entire accounting function in Cayman was =iv:rolled by Za. 
Only after Zia left did SN send SM Akinar tn Cayman to sort out the mess 
and it may now be possible that Akbar can provide son ite assistance in 
reconstructing the Cayman records prior to 1985. SN wes also 
considering recruiting one ex-Treasury person, Mr Nas...cr.m Shaikh, to 
assist Akbar in this process. 

SN said that he aces not know what is in the losses aitii.Jugh he did find 
some files wnich were abandoned in London when Treasury was moved 
to Abu Dhaci. From these it will be extremely difficult tc-reconstruct the 
Treasury records and he believes that it may be batter 7= look through 
the Cayman ledger and find out where income was dec7red. As an 
example he believed that $160 million was booked as ii i gn excnange 
transactions on the CCAH loans and that also the ARK .ccount and the 
dealings with Capcom should be reviewed. 

SN said that it appeared that business being transactec with Caccom in 
1984 althougn he was not aware of the connections between Capcom 
and Zia until informed of this by PW in 1985. At this thn  SN confronted 
Za wno claimed he had no interest in Capcom. SN instructed that 
Capcom should not be used for any further transactons but it appears 
now that Zia still used Capcom to route funds to and fi L-,I the oank for 
loan servicing and other purposes. 

79 



After leaving the bank in 1986 and disappearing Za evffrrtually 
reappeared and advised SN that he wanted to buy more shares in 
Capcom and for this he needed a $17 million loan. This loan was 
eventually granted and was probabty drawnoown tfirouch Khoo. Later 
Zia came back to SN and demanded a further $15 millicrn which he said 
was needed to protect himself and the Capcom employees from the loss 
which it would incur if Ma made a' detailed and frank st,:amerrt to Blum, 
the attorney acting on behalf of the Carey committee. SN felt that he 
had no option but to pay this money to Za in order to omatect the bank's 
position. 

SN said that if he had to identify 2 significant causes of tthe bank's 
present difficulties they would be Za Akbar and Abbas LSokal. 
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SN then talked about his and Mr Abedi's reaction to the problems and 
the solution that they were proposing. He noted that in December 1987 
Abedi felt that he must resotve the issues facing the bum< and had asked 
Kazmi to prepare an information memorandum on iCIC .Telationsnips. He 
intended to go to Sh Zayed to try to sell the BCC nomirrtee shares to 
cover the deficit in the bank's books. This may also halve required 
supplementing by a long term from Abu Dhabi in order -tp balance the 
books. 

At the same time Kemal Shohaib, a BCCI employee, wrrx was previousty 
with Commerce Bank, asked to meet SN and AHA in the USA. SN met 
'him one night in New York and KS troucht various don-Lumerts regarding 
the FIB/Ibrahim deposits which he must have got from ri:iher Jamii Khali 
or Za. That evening SN showed these documents to A-kf-IA who suffered 
a minor heart attack and went blue. The next day SN =ok Karnal 
Shohaib to Abedi who would not respond to KS exceorlia say to Naqvi 
that he snould pay whatever it cast to shut KS up. 11-ie next day SN and 
Abedi flew to London and were then due to fly on to Lshore to meet Sh 
Zayed. During this period Abedi was suffering from a vere cold and 
.on arrival in Lahore had the first of the major heart atr,x=c.s leaoing to his 
present disability. 

SN explained that Kamal Shohaib was a son of Mohanr.med Shaibh, a 
former finance minister in the government of Yousef Khmn in Pakistan. 
Mohammed Khan was also a close friend of Abed an  had helped 
United Bank open its branch in London. On inception mf BCC Abedi had 
chosen a few young people, including Kemal Shohaib. :to be the second 
generation management of the bank. KS had tried frorn this time to 
place himself on a par with Abedi and Naqvi and had Wcanted to be a 
trustee of ICIC as he thought this would enable him tc et a $1 million 
hand out on retirement. KS made Abedi's life misersc.A. and eventually 
Abedi sent him to Independence Bank to get him out ..-of sight Even 
after Abedi's heart attack KS pursued his claim with the bank and 
collected the $2,3 mklion_ to Puy his silence. SN suggasted that Masi 
RaFan was largely inspired by KS in his activities agmlnst the bank. 
(During this discussion Naqvi was clearly upset and ft ..4uently in tears) 



ot SJC asked whether Mr Samad would be able to assist :rn reconstructing 
the Treasury accounts. SN said that whilst Samad was a goon 
accountant his judgement was not good and he was P1 - 1 

temperamental, SN was also not sure of the extent to wmicil Sarnad was 
aware of the unofficial transactions. 

3. Ex Gratia Payments 

H'rL
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SN confirmed that there had been a number of ex grata payments from 
the bank in addition to Karnai Shohaib. Of these La wams probaciy the 
largest as he explained to SN that he could foresee the rank's failure 
and therefore wished to build his own future. Another inzlividual who 
benefitted was Mussafa Nurani, who was formerly deputy general 
manager in Cameroon and later went to Kenya where rte was involved in 
the coffee warrant debacle. Following that he was tran terrecl to London 
where he cr._._: _t_q_d_problems because he had found tha =he Cameroon 
deposits were missing.. With this information he put presure on La who 
in turn put pressure on Naqvi for Nurani to be paid off. Eventually $1 
million was paid over although this subsequently recoverred from him. 

SN said that a number of people tried to use La to gut iiii-urrnation and 
thus put pressure on BCC. La was hostile to BCC foilcDwing his 
departure and this kept causing the bank problems. S.:IC questioned 
whether the bank had ever followed up and identified trEe writer of the 

72-4 

SJC also questioned the involvement of La in Capcom. Brid the Miami 
indictment. SN said that he had not been happy with 1.ne lifestyles of 
Anwar Ahwan and Akbar Bilgrarni, who had both been extremety active 
in the marketing of deposits. Part of the problem was :me antagonism 
between Shafi and Shakra which meant that the bank's management in 
the USA was ineffective. 

When the foreign relations select committee enquiry ar=se SN wanted to 
remove Akwan to Paris, Akwan refused and it appear atri that from this 
point he and Bilgrami expanded their activities in Latin ,-Arnenca. It was at 
this time that they had established a strong relationsniam with Capcom 
and eventually planned to set up their own company Th a similar 
business. The idea had been to mobilise funds to give to La for 
management in Capcom. 

The other people involved in the indictment were unforaunatety caught up 
in the activities of La and Bilgrami and SN said that he felt rather sorry 
for them as they had been compromised in this affair. 

SJC questioned SN's comment about these individua= lifestyle. SN 
explained that BCC tried to establish a standard of barnking personality 
wherein its officers should have a good but not luxiincmis lifestyle. In this 
regard he noted that although Akwan. and Bilgrarni carme from good 
families their lifestyles were excessive with luxurious vniii-as, swimming 
pools and so on. Because of their success in raising oieposits Shafi had 

become dependent on them for the success of the nmgion and also 
Shakra tended to make it difficult for Shafi to exerdse -any control over 

"ttidcse individuals. SN commented that he was also aware that Shakra 
was living above his means. 
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SN attributed these problems to the bank's foundation when it had set 
out recruit mainly middle class people with just a few nigh flyers. In its 
formative days the bank was not able to develop proc=ures to manage 
people and it tended to operate on a family basis loolcmg after each 
individuals personal needs. As time went on SN warrtiam to 
institutionalise and depersonalise the bank but this wa_s very difficutt 
given Abedi's personalised approach. An example oi =is was the 
proliferation of Mercedes cars through the bank. 

Eventually Nader Ranim was appointed to head the Human Resources 
division however his background was as a merchant =tanker and he did 
not have the experience or expertise to run such activity. In addition SN 
felt that Nader Rahim had misread Abedi's caring irrternuons and that he 
tended only to focus on trio 1,000 international offices and not the 
13,000 local staff. As a result of this the Human Resources division 
became more of a welfare department and SN was ber=ming 
increasingly concerned with its failings. 

We then questioned again the extent of the Treasury itzsses and SN 
confirmed that the $800 million referred to above was im addition to tne 
$350 million referred to in PW's 1986 report. He agairr zonfirmed that 
the $800 million arose between 1978 and 1984/5 ana 'was derived from 

: 

accounts had been used for the massaging of prufiL .m this way and that 
had he been consulted he would only have allowed tits to take place 
from loan accounts. 

4. Fill, 

SN explained that RIL was started after the acquisiticrr of Attock Oil 
Company in Pakistan at a cost of £9 to 10 million. Fit__ was established 
by a loan given BCCI however because they deadec =at they wanted 
this group outside of the bank new loans were create= from IOC in the 
names of the FlIL shareholders. The initial BCC can nad been in 
Panama. SN said that FilL was not a difficult ac=urrrms there is a 
complete record cf the loans and investment value in s report submitted 
to the snarenolders. This would be given to the team -by Mr Kazmi when 
access to ICIC has ceen established. 

SN said that the major Attock lending had nothing to = with FilL The 
Attack lending on List 2 is normal trading business hcowever the amounts 
on List 1 should not be discussed with Attack in any ',way. SN did advise 
us that Mr Bap had knowledge of the fictitious Attack lending and had 
signed the confirmation in the knowledge of this. SN also confirmed that 
Mr Lodi and Mr Baqi had both been approved by Ate3ni for their role in 
managing Attack. SN said that HMK had had helpeci with the Attock 
accounts recently but does not have historical knovoendge. SN himself 
used to direct the major transactions until recent yearn when no has had 
to leave more and more responsibility with HMK. 



5. Insurance Gray° 

SN said that the insurance group is structured througa SOCC fram 
MECO and AIL as nominees the reason for this being =at the UK 
regulators did not allow more than 33% of the shares cr an insurance 
company to be held by any. one entity. CCL Saudi is clwried by CC! 
Holdings and CC1 UAE is substantially sold although Sin Ahmed is a 
nominee for 1010. SN again advised that Mr Kazrni cou.ud give a paper 
on the oil and insurance groups. 

6. Hammoud 

SN said that we should read a file and memorandum fic.)rii HMK which 
would explain the Hammoud relationships. 

7. ICIC Ho!giros 

SN said that HMK would be able to help in respondirz711) queries about 
10I0 Holdings however these discussions must take pi e in Cayman. 
SN said that a memorandum had been prepared by 14arni on the 
subject of ICIC and that this could be reviewed in due =urse. He 
believed that the accounts of the ICIC group were kept cpy Siddiqi & Co 
and Jaftree/Dossani/Kazmi. 

briF, fiv explained the -ruct-iirn (7' 1nr . f7rf noted that 10I0 
as involved in 

the KBM share procurement arrangements. The other -commercial 
activities of Holdings were small and their objective wams to generate a 
profit for payment into the Staff Benefit Fund and Fourr=ation to allow 
those entrties loans to be repaid. SN confirmed that ICIC Overseas 
should not be the beneficial owner of BCCI shares an  Wabei Pharaon 
or ICIC Holdings would be used for this. 

SN also said that ICIC Investments was established to -manage both 
client and its own trading transactions. 

In order to understand the ICIC group SN said that rhea team should deal 
with HMK splitting the work down into 2 parts, that rei-sung to the DPA 
and that relating to BCC. SN also suggested that =ha.ianies like FilL 
were outside our terms of reference but we should be mrovided with 
information as this was necessary background. SN szard that HMK 
should get clearance from the DPA about providing irrmormation to PW 
and should discuss this with Mazrui. SN suggested it= the best way to 
deal with the ICIC group was for it to take over the aszaets of the oil and 
insurance group and realise these to help ease its cwm liquiciity posrtion. 

Following this conversation SN telephoned HMK at h=rne in England and 
asked him to provide all necessary support and explanations to the 
investigation team. 

MHA then asked SN to prepare a list of ex gratia pavrrnents which he 
agreed to do. He noted that SMA would be able to imentrfy the source of 

funding of the payment and that these were often in 2_ types - payments 

made under duress, and interim payments which were not made under 
nre5 ij ra r‘rry creqmrde H rn sheikh) 

i42 



8. BCC! shareholdings 

SN said that Hafeez was putting together a shareholder information 
schedule which would show all movements in sharehoxting since 
inception. The initial schedules prepared are from 19844 but Hafeez is 
now going through trying to bring this up from incept=n. SN said that 
on receipt of this he will try to prepare a statement shclwing where these 
shares were funded from. 

SJ Chapman" 
26 January 1991 

406,011/ 
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2 F(').' Minutes of a meetino held at the Advi or's 

Present: Swalen Naqvi 
SM Akbar 
MH Armour 
JA Guy 

The meeting was held to discuss List 1 issues. 

SN was askdjiow o could sure that List 1 was a full list  said that it would t 
impossible that a customer would not have come back to the tank znce tri the last fe\ 
years if the deposit had been left with it. The assumption is that thee cus7orner would r 
appeared with his claim. 

He said that the old Treasury losses met from deposits were now en-ther tri the books c 
List 1. He said that the statement of Ziaddin Akbar in, 1984 was scrmewnele in the 
records. In this list he sets out the deposits that have been used.- —These nave either , 
settled or appear in List 1. 

The initial list included NABCO. FIB, SASCO, SNH Cameroon, Cam-aeroch Airlines and 
Islamic International Bank Cairo. These have all been paid off aparc:from FIB which w 
on List 1. 

He also said that the old Treasury department was receiving most'? money market fur 
and was short of decosits. So there was not a large pool of depc= frcm which deo( 
could oisappear. 

The pool needs to Oe reconciled and FIB was the only pool accci= All he others nE 
been cc alt with separately from tne pool. 

In rescect of Sh Monammed. he explained that the bank recap/ea 6M remittance 
respect of loan In addition 55CM were received for investment pti:rooses. These we 
booked in the accounts but not for wnat_they were. In Fepruary Sh Mohammed 
asked for repayment of S134M and 554M. This had prompted a c.-mis arc the bank 
fleeced time to settle with the snarenolders. It had had a simuitar.E.F.ous procle 

SN said that there were no other investments missing. He said thar he rad supervise( 
whole process and that the position had been thoroughly researcn-aed by nim. 

ICIC he said was clean and separate in this regard. Some inveszrtaent funds were pia( 
by ICIC with Treasury and used by them. Trea uld a n  fl=tous statemi 
to Kasmi. When the Treasury problems arose in 1985/86 and the .:11-lokai oroblem, the 

ar1E-Th asked Kasmi fcr tans on wnicn interest was paid aria sme re-tnyments wE 
made. 

Kasmi first became aware of funds not being returned in 1986/87. SN to:d him that it 
wouid be made good and so there was a claim on the bank. Kasi-rni should have a re,
SN said that the bank hac let Kasmi down. It was all client a=ourn: money. 

Islamic cei.:osits were routed through ICIC who are responsitle fc7 - the iac.iiity to the 
tustomer. 

lc.



FIB reiationshio 

SN was asked why FIB should have such large balances outstandinc wrth one institute 
SN exciained that FIB had very substantial deposits with the Central Sank of Egypt. TI-
gave them a foreign exchange exposure and also made them open 70 moral pressure r 
to withdraw from the bank. 

BCC had always provided funds back to FIB when required even if rm-Latuntes were not 
due. In addition wnen there had been a run on FIB and it needed S=-4CM in casn BC 
flew the money in. 

The ex-FIB gcv js now an advisor to the bank. SN was amusec at the su esticr 
t at he might know-of the arrancement stating that was compietaly unceiare. 

SN stated that London is the principal with FIB but the local relations-hip is handled by 
cr at least one person there. This person has recently left and been replaced by his 
predecessor. SN said the movement in staff was some cause for ced-hcem since any 
change in the relationships could influence FIB's position. SN said t hp,was in daiiz 
contact with F 

SN said that the stcry given within the bank was that some funos ware received for 
investment purposes which was why they were not recorded in the =oks. 

SN said that interest was not accounted for on funds since, should 717-ley co so. the 
question would only arise of where the principal was to which the ir:rarest :eiated. 

Others 

SN explained the IBU. He would go to IBU and say that ICC- needs funds. IBU 
would then place funds with ICIC and these might normally roiled over. Whe 
the loan became overdue ne had to promise that ICIC would -repay. 

Tt-le GRP balance relates to amounts owed back. 

Re Oppenheimer, ICIC borrowed from Oppenheimer who lerrr: it to e bank who 
not recr-ii-j it. 

Watawan and Arab Livestock were Bahrain depositors vino :"*MC piaced funds wr 
were then transferred on to 1010. 

The overdraft was fcr BCC Luxembourg. 

Hussein Al Hartny. This reiated to one deposit. He has ott-ta7 depo..sits of over 
SlOOM SN said that ne was a Saudi client who was already fting very jittery ar 
had been persuaded not to withdraw in Cayman and CFC. rt-1 answer to a 
question. SN said that if asked to confirm his deposit baianc.a. Hary would co 
it and then withdraw his funas due to the unusual nature of F.Luch a request. 

SN said that Arab li vestock, BCC and GRP represented yin-r . offs .-stner than cz 
requirement i.e. the positions nad already been settled. 

MH Armour 
22 January 1991 



STRICTLY PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 
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Notes of a meeting at the Advisor's Office on112 March 1991 at 3 c:Tr. 

Present: Swaleh Naqvi 
Neil Blair 
Simon J Chapman 
Martin Hall 

The meeting was arranged primarily to discuss Dr GR Pharaon art tne meeting he 
recently held with Neil Blair and Saleem Siddiqi. 

Independence Bank 

GR.Pharaon now claims 100% ownership of Independence Bank. He claims that funding 
for the initial purchase of the bank came from 2 sources: - 

1. 58.5 million from the sale proceeds of BCC shares 
2. $12.5 million borrowed from the First National Bank of Boston:. 

SJC said that the investigation team have now seen the memorandurm between GRP and 
ICIC which is effectively a nominee agreement giving ICIC an 85% imteres-t in 
Independence Bank with the remaining 15% being held by Dr Phara=n. There is also a 
hand wrrtten letter from Dr Pharaon which appears to acknowledge :me existence of a 
15/85 spirt. 

SJC felt that the memorandum was an explicit nominee agreement and that this was 
further reinforced by the subsequent letter from Dr Pharaon, and was now somewhat 
perplexed that Dr Pharaon should seek to deny the validity of this o=umerit=tion. 
He asked if there had been any subsequent supplemental agreementm which would have 
altered the substance of the previously mentioned memorandum. SN said that he was not 
aware of any further agreements. However, he was also unaware or any discussions GRP 
might have had with Abeci. 

SN went on to say that there is no written agreement between E3CC aind GRP and that 
GRP's current position was probably oictateci by the pressure being applied to him by the 
regulators in the United States. SN said that he had once again gorTte through the files 
relating to Independence Bank and that he was unable to find anything to substantiate the 
fact that it was not in fact GRP's bank. Although there was substantmal correspondence 
between Kamal Shoat and SN it is possible that GRP could point tc—the Investment 
Advisory agreement wnen questioned about the level of contact between Independence 
Bank ano BCC. SN then talked about the ICIC memorandum and s_ad that he did not feel 
that it would be legally binding as he did not feel that ICIC had comrPined with any of the 
terms of the memorandum. 

As regards the $8.5 million which was paid towards the purchase or :independence Bank 
he firmly stated that this was not part of the sale proceeds of the SCZS shares and that Dr 
Pharaon would have a hard time establishing that it was due to the 'ack of a written 
agreement covering the sale of these snares. 

I 0 
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SN said that he was not aware at what stage GRP became involvea :m the acquisition of 
Incepencence Bank, which had originally been identified by BCC's L.  Angetes agency as 
a Potential acquisition target. He thougnt that the original arrangeirErnt was that BCC and 
GRP would share trots in a 50/50 arrangement similar to NBG. Su=sequently GRP 
reconsidered his position in the light of the fact that he thought the L.=11 lk to be less 
profitable than he had originally imagined. As a result of this the ai merrt was changed 
to the 15/85 split discussed earlier. 

SN is now very concerned about the regulators' views regarding Incaziencence Bank and 
he feels therefore that the new manaaement of BCC, along with thew. lawyers, will have to 
decide upon the position that they wish to take with the regulators remarding 
Independence Bank. He feels that this should be given very serious =nsicieration prior to 
his meeting with the officials from the Fed on 15/16 March. He saia that ft was important 
that.he should be aware of the bank's position prior to that meeting that there were no 
apparent contradictions when he spoke to the Fed.

SJC went on to say that it would probably be in the best interests at ECG for there to be a 
sale of Independence Bank at arm's length. However, it is important7that what ever 
position the bank takes that any funds from the sale should be receivied by BCC and 
applied towards the borrowings outstanding in the name of Dr Pha=n. 

SJC then raised the issue of the recent advance of 617.9 million in , it=sPect of non-
performing joint venture loans which had been removed from Indeparnaen Bank's 
portfolio. He said that Dr Pharaon was expecting that this amount wcibuid be repaid before 
any of the non-recourse loans in his name. Both SN and NB confiliii d that this amount 
was personaily guaranteed by Dr Pharaon and that the guarantee hma been agreed 
between both BCC's lawyers and GRP's own legal advisers. ThereiLLTe the non-recourse 
loans would be adjusted before any sale proceeds were set off aaalii_ t this can. 

SJC then went on to discuss the joint venture loans further and the mvolvement of Mr MM 
Hacue and Mr OH Rizvi in London. and their connection with the Vi iu croup. He argued 
that having used up all of the credit lines in Independence. Bank Kau .di Shoaib had then 
approached his contacts in BCC. This may make it difficult to argue that there had been 
no special relationship with BCC. SN felt however that these were nctrrnal banking 
transactions and they had no bearing on the relationship between inbbepencience Bank 
and BCC. 

SN's view is that GRP will not allow himself to be destroyed finanaaaw or suffer unduly as 
a result of the current investigations, and that he would undoubte-atv -ficht tack. Therefore 
BCC should take a pragmatic view of the issues surrounding the GF.FP accounts and 
should consider all of these before making a decision regarding Inampendence Bank. 

2 go 
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SN confirmed that the capital injection of $5 million in 1990 had been =rovIdecl by BCC. 
GRP did not want the authorities to know that they had provided the furnaing and therefore 
loans were allowed for other projects to the same value. 

SN was not aware of any promissory notes or loan agreements in re=ect of the original 
$8.5 million advance. If the balance had been confirmed by GRP aria was covered by one 
of the 'hold harmless' letters.then he would of course say that its repwmert should come 
from the sale of Independence Bank shares. 

SJC noted the apparent contradiction in GRP's stance in that he warm 100% control of 
the bank, but will not fund the additional $6 million capital injection now recuired. This 
puts BCC's investment at considerable risk. SN agreed that there wa indeed a 
contradiction in GRP's stance with regards to this meter. 

° 
BCC sharea 

SN confirmed that he was currently working on the overall analysis of CGRP's holdings of 
shares in the bank and that this would be available for the investigatiom team in the near 
future. This analysis would also explain the use of intermediate vehi companies such 
as UEL 

He confirmed that 50% of shares held in GRP's name had been pura72.sea from him. for 
$95 million and were later sold to the portfolio for $153 million. And tlicdt a further parcel of 
shares which had been held on a nominee basis were subsequently said to the portfolio 
for $160 million. 

Attack Oil 

SN confirmed that he has now gathered further documentation proving trim BCC is the 
beneficial owner of the company and that this would be made avaiiern= to tie investigation 
team in the near future. 

Eurotunnel shares 

SJC queried GRP's contradictory statements that he would not sell th shares even 
though they had been placed with brokers. SN said that the bank mu=t concentrate on 
perfecting their security and receiving the proceeds of any share sal . NE felt that GRP 
would consider it a hostile act to sell these shares at the present time. 

Rio Estates 

It was confirmed by SN that this account was not connected with the s.Virari group. 

Transcontinental Finanae and Trust Company 

SN was unaware of the details surrounding the operation or the ac=nts of this company 
and suggested that any questions should be directed towards Mr Imr- n Imam. 
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SJC then asked how long it would take to unravel the GRP transaction's and how best the 
process might be approached. It was agreed that MH would attempt mo lisz all major 
account movements on GAP related accounts and pass them to the m:tvisers. SN 
suggested that drawdowns and receipts of $1 million plus be investiamed. He estimated 
that this process could take approximately 2 months using the services both Nadeem 
Habib-Ullah and Mr Imran Imam, the account officer. 

Both SN and NB confirmed that they had not indicated any time scales for 71e resolution 
of the current issues to GAP during their recent meetings. 

The meeting closed at 4.30 pm. 

Martin Hall 
Recorded from contemporaneous notes 
12 Marcn 1G91 
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Notes of a meeting_ with Mr Nagvi onp —March 1991 

present: S Naqvi - BCCI 
S Chapman - PW 
J Guy - PW 

Tyler - PW 

1. SN said that when the bank was established in 1972 there were no r=minee shareholders 
Subsequent to this-nominees were used to 'front amounts invested zny ICC (0) which 
were ultimately to be held by two trusts, one a charity and one for 

2. ICIC was originally established as a Liechtenstein based company. wmose shares were 
held on a non-beneficial basis by 3 officers of the bank. This company was liquidated anc 
the assets transferred to ICIC (0). Subsequently ICIC (Holdings) an 1CIC (Apex) were 
established. 

3. BCCI shares were originally held directly in the name of 1010, but in :-rhe early 1980s 
shares were transferred to the Foundation, Staff Benefit Fund and Gr7-77iP - "-na nominee 
caoacrty. This was as a result of pressure from regulators who insis -d ICC should 
divest. Subsequent transfers were made to WRP. SN also mention thzr. shares were 
being revalued at $40 and on the basis of this further drawdowns wre being made on 
k.A/RP's account for use elsewhere. 

4. The use of nominees became extensive as the proper shareholders were unable/unwiilinc 
to tuna the various rights issues made by the bank. SN listed the   as follows: 

Hammoud 
Prince Turki 
Wabel Pharaon 
Raiff Khalil 
Faisal Saud Al Fulail 
Sheikh Kamal Adham 
Sayed Jawhary 

Holdings were funced by ICIC (0). No loan was given in BCCI exc_..Jc possibly in the 
case of Adham and Khalil in the earlier years. 

We did not directly discuss the question of whether these holdings were in turn held for 
the benefit of SZ and SK.] 

SN referred to the sale of 3.8 million shares by Ghaith Pharacn in 6. He sold to the 
bank at $28 a share (yielding $95 million) as a result of significant ..7....7.-rgaring, and the 
shares were then sold to the "portfolio" at $40 a share (yielding 51E.E.3M). Owing to the ft
it was not possible to sell the shares to the portfolio at the same pc..-mt in tale as they w( 
sold by GRP, loans were drawn down by GRP equal to $95 million. These accounts we 
then creaited with the sales proceeds from the portfolio. However. =y time the loan 
had already been repaid or manipulated or drawndown further and mad cist their identit 
He said there was generally a lot of transferring of accounts betweem BCC 1 and ICIC. 

1 
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6. Shares were sold on a ''buy bade basis in Such a way to ensure thmt-ne nominee holders 
earned a rate of return of between 12 - 16% per annum. This was.be=use they were 
confident that BCC could generate a better return for the portfolio tharn casn. However to 
enable this return more shares had to be given each year and the lo s to WRP became 
unsecured. The buy back arrangements were not documented. 

7 SC reviewed the list.of shareholders at 31 December 1990 (see attac.... d list). 

Nominee holdings remaining 

18. Wabel Pharaon 
21. Mohammed M Hammcud 
25. . Prince Turki 
26. Sayed Jawhary 
27. Faisal Saud Al Fulaii 

Other issues 

1.2m 
0.7m (small holding in =win capacity) 
0.2rn 
0.3m 
0.4m 

4. Sheikh Mubarak - sold and in suspense 
37. HE Sheikh Nahya.n bin Mubarak - sold, but share register not d d 
38. Sohail Faris Al Mazrui - sold, but share register not updated 
41. Yousuf Al Nowais - sold, but share register not updated 

Sowaidi - not nominee but residue of old shareholding. Lo= in 10:0 was for 
rights issue 

Shaf Corporation - loans not share connected 
Bugsham, All and Saleem - loans not share connected 

He also referred to a number of shareholders who had sold at S40 oar share in earlier 
years, earning significant profrts. Many of these shares had been bcgrrt oy nominees. 
He referred to Butt Bin Bishr and °tate as examples. 

Caoital rotes 

ICIC was used directly to purchase capital notes. Depositors' money was used on the 
uncerstanding that when they wanted to withdraw the notes would Pas- soic.. In 1989/90 
number wanted to withdraw and funds had to be found. SN said t er.....:3tomers were 
aware of where their funds were placed. 

Mehfouz 

SN said his capital notes were genuine. He said the bank should be very careful in 
dealing with Mahfouz. He acknowledged that the bank had pressed Warm: uz very harc 
get him to sign the audit confirmation letter. He said that to raise t.17'. issue would, 
however, create problems as Mahfouz had all the documentation reiating :o the buy ba 
arrangements. 
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North American Finance Comoanv 

SN said that this was originally formed for the reorganisation of the. ci. group. It was 
controlled by ICIC. He said that 4/5 companies had been formed to MKe on oil 
concessions. Kazmi can explain he said. 

Drafts of $S million 

JAG asked if he could explain why these were held in sundry creditors at Grand Cayman. 
he said that this was in relation to the Sharjah Power loan. The Goverrnmerrt of Sharjah 
had promised $S million would be received but it was not. They therarcre got $S million in 
drafts from Kazmi and applied this to the accounts. The $S million is Znerefore payable to 
1010. 

• 

410 
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SANDSTORM 

Notes of a meeting onipch February 19911 

10 

?resent: S Na 
Hike Hunter 
HH Armour 
S..1 Chapman 

SN confirmed that he had a meeting with Hazrui and Kazmi dur._--ng which they 

were both instructed to provide PW with all information reg==ing the ICIC 

and portfolio accounts with the exception of those matters ==nz related 

directly to the private affairs of the Rulers which were u.n.r. lated :o the 

bank. 

SN explained that the accounts of the customers in ICIC were Lncer-relaced 

with BCCI and there had been funds raised between the two en=ities. He 

assured that the only external funds in the ICIC group were -±or the DPA and 

that there was a small portfolio on behalf of Sh Hamdan whicln had been 

managed by Naqvi and Abedi but which was fairly stated. 

SN said chat PLi was fully aware of all of the ocher accounts Ln ICIC and 

had always had complete access to the accounts of the cus.comears such as 

?hereon and Fulaij. HHA questioned when the funds flow fits= took place 

between the portfolio and the bank and SN explained that :him,. was Cone 

properly in 183/4 as part of the general pool of the funds. In 'CIO books 

these were shown as amounts placed with the bank for periods of one to cwo 

months and initially the bank used to cry to repay them by c=acimg other 

Loans in 3CCI. After 2 to 3 Years this attrition became urm=nageable and 

the hole in ICIC became more apparent. We questioned the ac=untimg 

treatment in ICIC and SN explained that records were kept by :CIC 

Investments on behalf of the DPA and Sh Hamdan which were ou=ide of the 

books of account of the company itself. These records were ,::mpt by Kazmi. 

SN assured us that Kazmi was not aware of the hole in the portfolio 

until 1990 when he was bought into :he picture by SN. He is now assisting 

SHA in providing information about :he flow of funds between the portfolio 

and the bank. 

SN said that it was important that we should not try to reconistruct the 

portfolio and that the cash utilised by it had in some instainces been 

replaced by shares and other investments. 

SN under pressure acknowledged that some $2 billion had been absorbed in 

cash from the portfolio including interest accruals. In orm. r to try to 

give something back to the shareholders all of the ICIC ihcluding 

the related assets in the oil. insurance, BCCI shares, the =.7undation and 

the Staff Benefit Fund had been given to the DPA. The lezaL process of 

this transfer is still to be finalised. SN explained that =his is the 

reason why Hazrui was taking an interest in ICIC where as SaLiem was looking 

after :he affairs of :he bank. 



questioned SN several times about what the net gap was afte= takizg the 
2 billion and deducting from it any ocher shares investments gitven back to 
the DFA. SN said he was unable co do this but noted that much .47ork had now 
been done by Akbar in trying co reconcile the funds taken from .-the DPA. SN 
explained that this took place in 2 principle areas one the Gu.L.i.'" grouv, two 
other accounts. The Gulf Group funds flown from the DPA have Mmen 
substantially reconciled but chose for Other accounts have not. These is 
also very 1:--le record at the moment of the funds which have beeen recurned 
to the DFA. 

SN assured us that all ocher ICIC deposits were fairly stated zmd that 
there were no ocher portfolio accounts. 

HHa requested that SN/SMA provide a definitive list of the trazn=hes of 
money which had been taken -from the portfolio and absorbed in =me oank so 
chat :his can be passed to Hazrui for authentication. Initiai._av SN was 

reluctant to do this is as it would disclose tie totals involve-ad but ' 

eventually appeared to agree that this would be a useful idea. He 
suggested that the investigation partners spend three OL fur =mys with SMA 
and SN to work out exactly what the deficit was and how to preseent this. 
I: was agreed that SJC and JAG would meet Akbar and Naqvi on LI February to 
do this and also to review the Zia notes and register of Treatic-y 
transactions. 

i
SN confirmed chat the OPA were also arying co work out the port=folio 
shortfall based upon the funds taken and the assets reassigned -to --. SN 
was sure that there would be no claim on the bank from the por=folio 
particularly as the portfolio had received an inflated profit the rate 
of 121 rather than market rates. 

then spoke about the Treasury activity again and SN confir—r—ri that 
profits would often be created in Treasury from brokers who ha ora in ;urn 
funded by amounts taken from client accounts. These client ac=unts would 
then be made up from the external portfolio. In addition the =II accounts 

were increased in 1985 by money which was passed to Zia to givm to a broker 
and :hen bring back as profit. SN said that he had become awai--,= of this 
from the analysis he had done of the CGAR loan accounts. 

SN confirmed that some 9.9X of the GCAH shares had been passed to the 

portfolio but commenced that these had been paid for. This rectuces the 

bank's security holding down to about 501, 

also questioned SN about the alleged new bank being establL=ned by Abedi 

in Pakistan. Initially SN said chat he did not know much atoll= this, but 

then commenced that it was probably some of Abedi's family makiang use of 

his name as well as his wife and that the capital of the new b=ak was only 

$3 million. SN was sure that this money had not come from 3CCr_ although he 

felt there were bound to be rumours to this effect. 

F:5c: 



S2C questioned the loan to Abdul Malik at Hamma. SN said char -.:here were 
bound to be ocher small loans Like this that kept clouding the big picture 
and they should not be allowed to divert our attention. He consffirmed that 
:he borrower had asked for some interest concessions however =me bank had 
tried to provide this by creating the appearance of a portfolix upon which 
profits could be generated to finance this concession. It was -probable 
that the funds which flowed into the account came from externa:— sources. 

I questioned the schedule of deals originally done as part of Ha s 
portfolio and SN said that these deals had never existed. rhi.s was also 
confirmed by SM Akbar. SN commenced ion the sensitive politi=ma nature of 
this loan and assured us chat the true position of the loan vass as sec out 

in SN's most recent letter to Al Hamma 

SJ Chapman 
6 February 1991 
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Notes of a meeting held on 16 March 19cos 

Present: S Naqvi 
HM Kazrni 
Simon J Chapman 
John A Guy 
Derek Tyler. . 

1. SJC outlined the poson as agreed following the meeting held with M rui on the previous 
Thursday. We would be given complete access to ICIC records inducting the portfolio 
bank accounts. 

2. There was a certain degree of technics.] discussions on what we shourzi have access to 
and also what prior authorities would have to be obtained. Again the masic position was 
confirmed as unchanged. 

It was agreed that the investigation would encompass 

(1) Transactions that have passed through BCC1 and 1010 

(2) Accounts of BCC1 shareholders and nominees 

(3) Flow of funds to/from portfolio 

(4) Routing accounts - Credit Suisse, NCB, BCP 

(5) ICIC (Holdings) and 1010 Investments 

(6) Substance of assets and liabilities of 1010 group 

(7) Consider future of ICIC for regulators 

The work should be done with the full co-operation of Kazmi and :7= StZ.-f. 

3. Other matters discussed: 

(a) Most of the accounting records/documentations are in Grand Cayman. 

(b) 

(c) 

Deposit of Sheikh Mohamed bin Rashid - double courrteci? 

Personnel who would be able to assist: 
Mr Kasim - portfolio 
Mr Jaffree 
Clive Jennings 
Dossani 
Younes - portfolio 
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(d) Mr Naqvi told Mr Kazrni that he had told PW that with the exce=ion cf Sh Mohamed 
and Sh Mahfouz there are no unrecorded transactions. Kazrni :r..brrfirrned this to be 
the case although saying that these transactions were also, in f-act, recorded. 

(e) During the course of the meeting SN said that we should all forget what had been 
said before -ICIC and BCC1 are inextricabty linked. 

4. It was agreed that the reports prepared for HE Ghanim on the future =f ICIC should be 
handed over to PW. 

Derek Tyler 
16 Marcn 1991 
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Minutes of a meeting at the Advisor's Office ontIst May 1C.=1) 

Present: Simon Chapman 
John Guy 
Martin Hail 

1. Mr Naqvi.said. that there was no written agreement wfth Cr C.Thaith Pharaon 
in relation to sale Of his BCC! shares. There was no doc*,:n-nent that details 
the terms. It was agreed verbally. ICIC bought the shares from GRP but 
they did not register this transaction. They were subsequ iitty sold to 
Sheikh Khalifa. The deal with GRP was negotiated by Mr ALbedi and was 
arranged under duress. GRP needed the funds and Mr Atzsdi negotiated 
on behalf of ICIC. 

2. Mr Naqvi also made the point that there could be no dial= on the bank as 
the bank does not buy and sell its own shares. 

3. Mr Naqvi said that there was a paper in Zavahir's hand wrrrijng that showed 
the disbursement of the 595 million. This paper was suonsequerty 
presented to Martin Hall) 

4. In relation to Independence Bank, he said that it was not a-_- shared 
ownership arrangement but an agreement to share profits.. ICIC did not 
finance the deal; 10I0 may well have wanted it as a US tank or ust to 
make a profit. He said that the document with ICIC did r. t go tnrough. In 
the event of divestment it was agreed that the profit wouim be snared 50/50 
and BCC was to arrange financing for GRP of his 50%. :rr the event he 
said fi nancing could not be arranged and GRP said he w=id happy with a 
15/85 split. 

5. He said that it could be said that later on GRP was 100% owner out that 
this would be througn arrangement with Abedi. At prese-rm. in ris Opinion, 
management should be taking a decision as to where tre,..y stcca. 

6. Reverting to the share issue he said that he was a witnesz-E to the agreed 
price with Abedi and Pharacn. Abedi was acting for 1CIC .and not for the 
bank and the bank's records show that S95 million were =aid. He said that 
GRP was claiming that 540 per share was paid for other snare deals. In 
reality these were small ana not for such a large trancrle a- s his own. There 
was never a guarantee given in respect of the price. 

7. In relation to NBG there was no agreement in writing on zourchase or sale. 
He did receive the statement saying how the proceeds rad been disbursed 
but this statement never had a covering letter and was rzat redacted. In 

relation to the Independence Bank agreement he said that he had signed 
because GRP would not accept HMK's signature alone. If he nad signed 
this alone it may well have been void. 

1 
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8. As a side issue we discussed the North American Investrrrent Finance 
Company. He said that this was a convenience company. He also said 
that UEL was defunct: it was used as a nominee for BCC znares. HMK 
had acted for both these companies with a power of artormey. 

9. Reverting to Independence Bank he said that if the bank ywants to say it 
owns it then they should use the agreement positively, bi. otherwise they 
can disown the agreement. He said that the bank had nch exe-rtseci its 
control on either Independence Bank or NEG. 

10. He said the whole issue required a high powered legal te rn to ceal with it. 
As far as he was concerned they were just financial transai=ions. the bank 
wanting to share in profits. 

11. He said that any comments by GRP in relation to havinormubmntial 
deposits in the bank were factually wrong. 

12. In relation to the non-recourse lending he said that in 82. Pharaon had 
raised a lot of objections and in 86 he was given the ABC sptit with the 
security details. He took this and accepted this with the .Eatter cf indemnity. 

13. He estimated the net worth of GAP to be in the region cf S-175 million to 
S200 million. 

14. Finally he said that the lawyers should be very careful: y should not 
allow people to take advantage of the bank's bad puotio.-:7.,. The oank 
snould get the best possible legal advice and use it. 

John A Guy 
recoroc1 from contemporaneous notes 
6 May 1991 

2 

gg 


